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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH -V
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. C.A. (CAA) 224/MB/2022

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
AND

In the matter of Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 and Rule 11 and other applicable rules of the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) Rules, 2016

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (‘SW ME’ or ‘the
Transferor Company’) WITH Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (‘SWPL’ or ‘the Transferee Company’) and their
respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme’ or ‘this Scheme’)

STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
...the Non-Applicant Company / Transferor Company

STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
...the Applicant Company / Transferee Company

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

9" Floor, Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg,
Chembur (West), Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra
CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538

[

... Applicant Company / Transferee Company

FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]
Company Scheme Application No. C.A. (CAA)/224/MB-V/2022

STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
...the Applicant Company / Transferee Company

Notice of meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Sterling under Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232 read
and Wilson Private Limited convened in accordance with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
with the Order of the Hon’ble National Company Law applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’)

Tribunal, Mumbai Bench read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. The Scheme, if approved by
To the Unsecured Creditors, will be subject to the subsequent
The Unsecured Creditors of Sterling and Wilson Private  approval of the Hon’ble Tribunal and such other approvals,
Limited as on 31t October 2022 permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities,

as may be necessary.

TAKE NOTICE that by the order dated 29" November 2022

in the above mentioned Company Scheme Application TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in pursuance of the
(‘Order’), the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, said Order and as directed therein, a meeting of the
Mumbai Bench (‘Hon’ble Tribunal’ or ‘NCLT’) hasdirected = Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company will be held
inter alia that a meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the  physically on Thursday, 16" February, 2023 at 2:30 P.M.
Applicant Company be convened and held to consider and, IST (‘Meeting’) at the registered office of the Applicant /
if thought fit, to approve the proposed Composite Scheme  Transferee Company at Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande
of Arrangement between Sterling and Wilson Middle East Marg, Chembur (West), Mumbai 400043, Maharashtra, at
Electromechanical LLC and Sterling and Wilson Private  which day, date and time, when you the said Unsecured
Limited and their respective Shareholders (‘Scheme’) Creditors, are requested to attend.




TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a copy of the Scheme,
Notice and the Explanatory Statement under Sections
230(3), 232(1), 232(2) and 102 of the Act read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other annexures as stated
in the Index including the valuation report are enclosed
herewith. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying
documents will be placed on the website of the Applicant
/ Transferee Company at https://sterlingandwilson.com.
Any creditor may also obtain a copy of this Notice, scheme
and explanatory statement and any other accompanying
documents free of charge from the registered office of the
Applicant / Transferee Company or by sending an email to
companysecretary@sterlingwilson.com.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the voting rights of
the Unsecured Creditors shall be in proportion to their
outstanding amount in the Applicant / Transferee Company
as on 31t October 2022.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that Mr. Parameshwar V.
Hegde, Chief Financial Officer of the Applicant Company,
failing whom, Mr. K. P. Hariharan, Company Secretary
of the Applicant Company, failing whom, Mr. Dipendra
Maheshwari, DGM of the Applicant Company have been
appointed to be the Chairperson of the meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that Sanjay Rane and
Associates, Chartered Accountants have been appointed
as the Scrutinizer of the meeting.

In the Tribunal Convened Meeting, the Unsecured Creditors
are requested to consider, and if thought fit, to pass with
requisite majority, the following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
234 read with Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force) read with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the
approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Tribunal’)
and subject to such other approvals, permissions and
sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as may be
necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications
as may be prescribed or imposed by the Tribunal or by
any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such
consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed
to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Board’), the arrangement embodied in
the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC
and Sterling and Wilson Private Limited and their respective
shareholders (‘Scheme’) enclosed with the Notice of the
Meeting, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as
it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable,
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution
and effectively implement the arrangement embodied in the
Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments,
limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required
and/or imposed by the Tribunal while sanctioning the
arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any authorities
under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving
any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to
the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

For Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Sd/-
Parameshwar V. Hegde

Chairperson appointed for the meeting

: Mumbai
: 14" January, 2023

Place
Date

Registered Office:

9t Floor, Universal Majestic,

P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West),
Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra

NOTES:

1. A proxy appointed to attend and vote on behalf of a
creditor at this meeting, as aforesaid, need not be a
creditor of the Transferee Company. The instrument
of proxy to be effective, should however, be duly
signed by the creditor entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting or by his authorised representative and
deposited not later than 48 hours before the time for
holding the meeting with the Transferee Company at
its Registered Office. Respective forms of proxy are
attached and can also be obtained free of charge at
the registered office of the Transferee Company.

2. All alterations made in the form of Proxy must be
initialled by the creditor.

3. Where a body corporate authorises any person to
act as its representative to attend and vote at the
meeting, as aforesaid, a copy of the resolution of the
Board of Directors or other governing body of such
body corporate authorising such person to act as its
representative at such meeting, and certified to be a
true copy by a director, the manager, the secretary, or
other authorised officer of such body corporate shall be
lodged with the Transferee Company at its registered
office or emailed to the Scrutinizer at sarikap@ssrane.
net with a copy marked to companysecretary@
sterlingwilson.com not later than 48 hours before the
time for holding the meeting.




The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections
102, 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) of the Act read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, in respect of the
business set out above is annexed hereto.

The Notice of the Meeting along with the Explanatory
Statement and other documents mentioned in the
Index (collectively referred to as ‘Notice’) is being sent
to the Unsecured Creditors as on 31st October 2022
through electronic mode at their email addresses as
per the records of the Applicant / Transferee Company
and in case the email address of any unsecured
creditor is not available with the Transferee / Applicant
Company, the Notice is being delivered at their last
know addresses as per the records of the Applicant /
Transferee Company.

Electronic copies of all the documents referred to in
the Notice shall be made available for inspection.
The Unsecured Creditors desiring inspection
of such documents may send their request in
writing to the Applicant / Transferee Company at
companysecretary@sterlingwilson.com.

VOTING BY UNSECURED CREDITOR

The voting rights of the Unsecured Creditors shall be
in the same proportion to the amount outstanding in
the Applicant / Transferee Company as on 31t October
2022.

V)

(ii)

(iii)

Sanjay Rane and Associates, Chartered Accountants,
shall act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process
during the Meeting, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Notice convening the Meeting will be published
through an advertisement in the ‘Free Press Journal
in English language and ‘Navshakti’ in the Marathi
language, both having circulation in Mumbai.

DECLARATION OF RESULTS ONTHE RESOLUTION

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after and not later
than 48 hours from conclusion of the Meeting, make a
consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast
in favour and against the resolution and invalid votes,
if any, to the Chairman of the Meeting or a person
authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the
same.

The result of the voting shall be announced by the
Chairman of the Meeting or a person authorized by
him in writing within 48 hours from the conclusion of
the Meeting, upon receipt of the Scrutinizer’s Report.

Subject to the receipt of requisite majority (being
majority of persons representing three-fourths in value
of the Unsecured Creditors voting in person or by
proxy), the resolution shall be deemed to be passed
on the date of the Meeting i.e., on 16" February 2023.




BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH -V
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. C.A. (CAA) 224/MB/2022

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
AND

In the matter of Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 and Rule 11 and other applicable rules of the NCLT Rules, 2016

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (‘SW ME’ or ‘the
Transferor Company’) WITH Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (‘SWPL’ or ‘the Transferee Company’) and their
respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme’ or ‘this Scheme’)

STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
...the Non-Applicant Company / Transferor Company

STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
...the Applicant Company / Transferee Company

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

9" Floor, Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg,
Chembur (West), Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra
CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538

[

... Applicant Company / Transferee Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

1. This is a statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant /
Transferee Company, pursuant to the order dated 29" November 2022, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘Hon’ble Tribunal’/’NCLT’) in the Company Scheme Application referred to hereinabove.
A meeting is being called, convened and conducted at the registered office of the Applicant / Transferee Company
on Thursday, 16" February, 2023 at 2:30 P.M. IST, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the
arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the Applicant Company and Sterling and
Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC and their respective shareholders (‘Scheme’) which inter alia envisages
reduction of share capital and reorganization of reserves of the Applicant / Transferee Company as per Part Il of the
Scheme followed by merger of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (‘SW ME’ or ‘the Transferor
Company’) with and into Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (‘SWPL’ or ‘Transferee Company ’) and their respective
Shareholders as per Part lll of the Scheme.

2. Acopy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the scheme, inter alia, providing for the proposed
reduction of share capital and reorganisation of reserves and Scheme of Arrangement between the Applicant /
Transferee Company and Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC and their respective Shareholders,
which has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company at its meeting held on 6" June 2022, is
attached to this explanatory statement and forms part of this statement as ANNEXURE A.

3. Background of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited is as under:
a) Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“SWPL” or “Transferee Company” or “Applicant Company”), was

incorporated on 13" June 1974, as a private limited company in the State of Maharashtra under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and style of “Sterling and Wilson Electricals Private Limited”. The




name was then changed to “Sterling and Wilson Private Limited” on 27" June 2007. The name was then changed
to “Sterling and Wilson Limited” on 8" December 2009. The name was then changed to its present name of
“Sterling and Wilson Private Limited” on 27th November 2014. The Transferee Company’s Corporate Identity
Number is U31200MH1974PTC017538 and is having its registered office at 9" Floor, Universal Majestic, P. L.
Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West), Mumbai 400043. The Transferee Company is, inter alia, engaged in designing,
procurement, installation testing commissioning of Mechanical, Electrical Plumbing (MEP) systems, firefighting
systems, building management systems, Transmission & Distribution system, building data centers, Operation &
maintenance of these systems etc. business in India. The PAN of SWPL is AAACS9939D.

The e-mail id of the Authorized Representative of SWPL is hegde@sterlingwilson.com.

The Share Capital of SWPL, as on 31t October 2022 was as under:

Share Capital Amount in (Rs.)
Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000

3,45,00,000 0% Compulsorily Convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares of 34,50,00,00,000
Rs. 1,000/- each

Total 35,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up
2,93,69,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 29,36,93,330

1,80,25,000 0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000 | 18,02,50,00,000
each

Total 18,31,86,93,330

Subsequent to the above date, SWPL has issued 90,00,000 CCPS of face value Rs. 1,000 each, fully paid-up.
There has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital of SWPL.

The main object of SWPL is set out in the Memorandum of Association. The main objects inter alia are as under:

To carry on the business in India or elsewhere of electricians, mechanical engineers, manufacturers, contractors,
installers, supervisors, workers, repariers, maintainers, service providers and dealers in electrical, mechanical,
electronic, pneumatic, hydraulic apparatus, goods and sites, to plan, develop, establish, erect, construct, acquire
, operate, run, manage, hire, lease, buy, sell, maintain, enlarge, alter, renovate, modernize, work and use power
generating stations based on conventional/ nonconventional resources for evacuation, transmission, distribution,
trading or supply of power through establishing or using stations, tie-lines, sub-stations and transmission or
distribution lines in any manner including build, own and transfer (BOT), and/or build, own and operate (BOO) and/
or build, own, lease and transfer (BOLT) and/or build, own, operate and transfer (BOOT) basis or otherwise and
to do all the ancillary related or connected activities as may be considered necessary or beneficial or desirable for
or along with any or all of the aforesaid purposes which can be conveniently carried on these systems, networks
or platforms. to design, engineer, supply, erect, commission, operate and maintain telecommunication systems,
(wireless or other), including formation of exchange centres, air-conditioning systems for commercial, industrial
or for other applications, safety and alarm systems, solid or liquid waste treatment and energy recovery systems.

The Shareholding Pattern of SWPL as on 315t October 2022 is as under:

Sr | Name of the Equity First Holder of Face Value Number of Percentage (%)

No. | Shareholders joint shares shares held

1 Shapoorji Pallonji and Not applicable 10 1,94,80,000 66.33
Company Private Limited

2 Khurshed Y. Daruvala Not applicable 10 97,45,293 33.17

3 Rohiga C. Mistry Not applicable 10 72,000 0.25

4 Pallon S. Mistry Not applicable 10 72,000 0.25




Sr | Name of the Equity First Holder of Face Value Number of Percentage (%)

No. | Shareholders joint shares shares held

5 Parvin Z. Madan jointly with | Parvin Z. Madan 10 10 0.00
Khurshed Y. Daruvala

6 Kainaz K. Daruvala jointly Kainaz K. 10 20 0.00
with Khurshed Y. Daruvala Daruvala

7 Zarine Y. Daruvala Not applicable 10 10 0.00

Total 2,93,69,333 100.00

Sr | Name of the Shareholders Number of Face Value Amount Percentage (%)

No. shares held

1 Shapoorii Pallonji and 95,00,000 1,000| 9,50,00,00,000 52.70
Company Private Limited

2 Khurshed Y. Daruvala 60,25,000 1,000| 6,02,50,00,000 33.40

3 | Sashwat Energy Private 25,00,000 1,000| 2,50,00,00,000 13.90
Limited

Total 1,80,25,000 18,02,50,00,000 100.00

f)  The details of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of SWPL along with their addresses as well as
shareholding as on 31t October 2022 are as follows:

Sr. Name Designation Address Shares (Nos) | Shareholding
No. (%)
1 Zarine Yazdi Managing 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame 10 0.00
Daruvala Director Jamshed Road, Parsi Colony,
Dadar, Mumbai — 400 014
2 Khurshed Yazdi Director 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame 97,45,293 33.17
Daruvala Jamshed Road, Parsi Colony,
Dadar, Mumbai — 400 014
3 Pallon Shapoorji Director Sterling Bay, 103, Walkeshwar 72,000 0.25
Mistry Road, Mumbai — 400 004.
4 Kalapathy Company Forward House No. 01, Flat No. - -
Parameswaran Secretary 06, Plot No. 325, Bhairavnath
Hariharan Mandir Road, Wadala West,
Mumbai — 400 031.
5 Parameshwar Chief 972-A, 4 Main, 2nd E Cross, 3rd - -
Venkatraman Financial Stage, 3rd Block, Basaveshwara
Hegde Officer Nagar, Bengaluru — 560 079.

g) The details of Promoters of SWPL along with their addresses as well as shareholding as on 31t October 2022
are as follows:

Sr. Name Address Shares (Nos) | Shareholding
No. (%)
1 Shapooriji Pallonji and 70, Nagindas Master Road, Fort, 1,94,80,000 66.33
Company Private Limited Mumbai — 400 023.
2 Khurshed Y. Daruvala 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame Jamshed 97,45,293 33.17
Road, Parsi Colony, Dadar,
Mumbai — 400 014
3 Rohiga C. Mistry Sterling Bay, 103, Walkeshwar Road, 72,000 0.25
Mumbai — 400 004.




h)

Sr. Name Address Shares (Nos) | Shareholding
No. (%)
4 Pallon S. Mistry Sterling Bay, 103, Walkeshwar Road, 72,000 0.25
Mumbai — 400 004.
5 Parvin Z. Madan jointly 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame Jamshed 10 0.00
with Khurshed Y. Road, Parsi Colony, Dadar,
Daruvala Mumbai — 400 014
6 Kainaz K. Daruvala 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame Jamshed 20 0.00
jointly with Khurshed Y. Road, Parsi Colony, Dadar,
Daruvala Mumbai — 400 014
7 Zarine Y. Daruvala 613, Dinshaw Building, Jame Jamshed 10 0.00
Road, Parsi Colony, Dadar,
Mumbai — 400 014

The Board of Directors of SWPL have at their meeting held on 6" June 2022 unanimously approved the Scheme.
The Directors who voted in favor of / against / did not participate or vote in relation to the Scheme are as follows:

Sr.

Name of Directors

Voted in favour/ against /

No. did not participate or vote
1 Zarine Yazdi Daruvala In Favour
2 Khurshed Yazdi Daruvala In Favour
3 Pallon Shapoorji Mistry In Favour

Background of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC is as under:

a)

Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (“SW ME” or “Transferor Company”) is a foreign,
unlisted, Limited Liability Company incorporated on 19th May 2008 in the Emirate of Dubai under Federal Law
No. (8) of 1984 under License No. 611316 and having its registered office at Office No. 123, Plot No. 582, Jabail
Ali Industrial First, Box No. 88146, Dubai, United Arab Emirates and is, inter alia, engaged in the business of
designing, procurement, installation testing commissioning of Mechanical, Electrical Plumbing (MEP) systems,
firefighting systems, building management systems etc. The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Transferee Company.

The e-mail id of the authorized representative of SW ME is neville.madan@sterlingwilson.com.

The Share Capital of SW ME, as on 315t October 2022 was as under:

Particulars Amount in (AED)
Authorized Share Capital

300 Equity Shares of AED 1,000 each 3,00,000
Total 3,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up

300 Equity Shares of AED 1,000 each 3,00,000
Total 3,00,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of SW ME.

The main object of SW ME is set out in the Memorandum of Association as under:

Aowbdb==~

Electric Power Lines Contracting

Air-Conditioning, Ventilations & Air Filtration Systems Installation & Maintenance.

Electricity Transmission & Control Equipment Installation Works
Electromechanical Equipment Installation and Maintenance




© NSO

Measuring & Control System Installation
Plumbing & Sanitary Installation
Electrical Fitting Contracting

Solar Energy Systems Installation”

e) The Shareholding Pattern of SW ME as on 31t October 2022 is as under:

Sr Name of the Shareholders Number of Amount (in AED) | Percentage (%)
No. shares held

1 Sterling and Wilson Private Limited 300 3,00,000 100
Total 300 3,00,000 100

f)  The details of the Director of SW ME along with his address as well as shareholding as on 31t October 2022 are

as follows:
Sr. | Name Designation Address Shares (Nos) Shareholding
No. (%)
1 Neville Madan Managing Director P. O. Box No. NIL -
54811, Dubai,
United Arab
Emirates

g) The details of Promoter of SW ME along with its address as well as shareholding as on 315tOctober 2022 are as

follows:
Sr. | Name Address Shares (Nos) Shareholding
No. (%)
1 Stering and Wilson | Universal Majestic, 9th Floor, P. L. 300 100
Private Limited Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West),
Mumbai — 400043

h) The Board of Director of SW ME has at their meeting held on 6" June 2022 approved the Scheme by voting in
favor of the Scheme.

Relationship subsisting between the Companies involved in the Scheme

a) Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited

Rationale of the Scheme

Part Il of the Scheme of Arrangement would facilitate as under:

a. The reduction of share capital in the manner proposed in the Scheme would enable the Transferee Company to
rationalize its capital structure and present a true and fair financial position of the Transferee Company in a better
manner, which is commensurate with its business and assets.

b. The Scheme envisages reduction by way of cancellation of its Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(“CCPS”) and face value of equity shares and subsequent payout against such cancellation so to create a
Capital Reduction Reserve which shall be utilized to write off the accumulated losses in the Profit & Loss Account
appearing as on the Appointed Date in the books of the Transferee Company.

c. The Scheme would not affect the ability or liquidity of the Transferee Company to meet its obligations / commitments
in the normal course of business. Further, this Scheme would also not in any way adversely affect the ordinary
operations of the Transferee Company.




The proposed restructuring pursuant to this
Scheme is expected, inter-alia, to result in the
following benefits:

a) SW ME has been sustaining substantial business
losses overanumber of years due to aweak overall
business performance and general business
environment, including the weak business
environment in the Middle East (as also globally)
on account of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
Further, RBI-prescribed One Time Restructuring
of debt at the ultimate shareholder level (i.e., at
Shapoorji Pallonji Group level) further stressed
the business of SW ME due to non-availability of
normal banking credit facilities (both fund-based
and non-fund based) which would otherwise be
available. Resultantly, there has been a steep
decline in the overall business of SW ME.

b) In the context of the above, given that the
management of SW ME and SWPL do not foresee
a meaningful revival of the business of SW ME,
it is envisaged that the business of SW ME be
amalgamated with and into SWPL under this
Scheme.

c) The amalgamation and consolidation of group
structure, reduction in overheads including
administrative, managerial and other expenditure,
significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances required at present to be
carried out by the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company.

d) The proposed Scheme shall also enable the
Transferor Company to address competitive
regulatory environment, risks and policies, better
management, ability to strategize the remaining
business for long term growth, consolidation and
creation of shareholder’s value.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders,
creditors, lenders and various other stakeholders of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.
It is not prejudicial to the interests of shareholders,
creditors, lenders and various other stakeholders of
the respective companies.

Details of Share Entitlement Ratio Report

Not Applicable for Part Ill of the Scheme, since the
Scheme involves Amalgamation of a wholly owned
subsidiary with its Holding Company.

The valuation report obtained from the Registered
Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets certifying the
valuation of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited is

annexed and marked as Annexure B for Part Il of the
Scheme.

Salient features of the Scheme

The Salient features of the composite Scheme of
arrangement are as under:

a) Appointed Date: “Appointed Date” for the
purpose of this Scheme means the closing hours
of 31t day of March 2022.

b) Effective Date: “Effective Date” means the last
of the dates on which the conditions specified in
Clause 19 are complied with. Any references in
this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of
this Scheme” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” or
“Scheme taking effect” shall mean the Effective
Date.

¢) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:
“Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares”
or “CCPS” means fully paid-up 0% Compulsorily
Convertible non-cumulative preference shares
of Rs. 1,000 each issued by the Transferee
Company;

d) Equity Shares: “Equity shares” means fully
paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued by
Transferee Company;

e) Profit & Loss Account: “Profit & Loss Account”
means the accumulated losses / debit balances
appearing in the books of accounts of the
Transferee Company as on the Appointed Date
and includes balances in profit and loss account of
the Transferor Company which shall be recorded
in the books of Transferee Company.

f)  Iransferor Company: “Transferor Company”
or “SW ME” means Sterling and Wilson Middle
East Electromechanical LLC having License No.
611316 and registered office of which is situated
at Office No. 123, Plot Number 582, Jabail Ali
Industrial First, Box No. 88146, Dubai, United
Arab Emirates and Email ID of its authorized
representative is neville.madan@sterlingwilson.
com;

g) Iransferee Company: “Transferee Company”
or “SWPL” means Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited having Corporate Identity
No: U31200MH1974PTC017538 and having its
registered office at 9th Floor, Universal Majestic,
P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West), Mumbai
400043. The PAN of the Transferee Company is
AAACS9939D and the email ID of its authorized
representative is hegde@sterlingwilson.com.
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Part || — Re-organisaton of reserves and reduction of

share capital of the Transferee Company

.

1.

Consideration: With effect from the Appointed
Date, 1,80,25,000 number of CCPS (having
face value of INR 1,000 each) of the Transferee
Company shall stand extinguished and cancelled
through capital reduction proportionate to
percentage of such CCPS held by the holders
of the CCPS as on the Effective Date, for a
consideration of INR 11.68 per equity share (as
determined on a fully diluted basis), as determined
vide Valuation Report dated 2 June, 2022, issued
by an Independent Registered Valuer, bearing
registration  number  IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106,
amounting to a total payout of INR 87,71,68,000.

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,46,84,667
number of Equity Shares (having face value of
INR 10 each) of the Transferee Company (50%
of the Equity Shares of the Company as on 28
February 2022) shall stand extinguished and
cancelled through capital reduction proportionate
to percentage of such Equity Shares held by the
holders of the Equity Shares as on the Effective
Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68 per equity
Share, as determined vide Valuation Report
dated 2 June, 2022, issued by an Independent
Registered Valuer, bearing registration number
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106, amounting to a total
payout of INR 17,15,16,905.

Accounting Treatment: With effect from the
Appointed Date, the difference between the
aggregate of face value of CCPS and Equity
Shares so extinguished and cancelled through
capital reduction as per Clause 4.2 and 4.3 above,
on the one hand, and the amount of consideration
payable on such extinguishment and cancellation,
shall stand transferred to and be recorded as
credit to the Capital Reduction Reserve.

With effect from the Appointed Date, such Capital
Reduction Reserve shall be utilised for set-off of
the debit balance in the Profit & Loss Account of
the Transferee Company.

The extinguishment and cancellation of CCPS and
Equity Shares in the manner stated above shall
be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and
the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme
shall be deemed to be an order under section 66
and other applicable provisions of the Act and
no separate sanction under section 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Act will be necessary.

PART Ill - Amalgamation of the Transferor Company

with and into the Transferee Company:

(i)

(i)

Subject to the provisions of this Scheme as
specified hereinafter and with effect from the
Appointed Date and upon the Part Il of the
Scheme becoming effective, the entire business
and Undertaking of the Transferor Company,
including all the debts, liabilities, losses, duties and
obligations, including those arising on account of
taxation laws and otherallied laws, of the Transferor
Company of every description and also including,
without limitation, all the movable and immovable
properties and assets (whether tangible or
intangible) of the Transferor Company comprising,
amongst others, all investments, receivables,
actionable claims, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment, telephones, telex, facsimile and other
communication facilities and business licenses,
permits, deposits, authorizations, approvals,
lease, tenancy rights, permissions, incentives, if
any, and all other rights, know-how, trade secret,
patents, trademark, service mark, other intellectual
property rights, registrations, title, interest,
contracts including but not limited to contracts
entered into with customers, vendors and service
providers, consents, approvals and rights and
powers of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever, privileges, liberties, easements,
advantages, benefits and approvals, shall, under
the provisions of section 234 read with sections
230 to 232 of the Act and applicable provisions
of UAE and pursuant to the order of the NCLT
sanctioning this Scheme and without further act,
instrument or deed, but subject to the changes
affecting the same as on the Effective Date, be
transferred and/or deemed to be transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company, so as to
become the properties, assets, rights, business
and Undertaking of the Transferee Company.

Consideration: The entire share capital of
Transferor Company is held by the Transferee
Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the shares held by the Transferee Company and
its nominees in the Transferor Company shall
be cancelled and extinguished and no share
shall be issued by the Transferee Company in
consideration for this Scheme of Amalgamation.
Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the
share certificates, if any, and / or the shares in
electronic form representing the shares held
by Transferee Company, and its nominees, in
the Transferor Company, shall be deemed to
be cancelled without any further act or deed for
cancellation thereof by the transferor and shall
cease to be in existence accordingly.
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(iii)

(iv)

h)

Accounting Treatment: Amalgamation of
the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company shall be accounted in the books of the
Transferee Company for by way of as per “Pooling
of Interests Method” under Appendix C of Ind-
AS 103 (Accounting for Business Combinations
under common control) notified under Section
133 of the Act and under any other relevant
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015, as may be amended from time to time.

Dissolution of the Transferor Company: Upon
the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved and the Transferor
Company shall initiate and pursue all actions
necessary under Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on
Commercial Companies for its liquidation and
such other additional requirements in accordance
with the regulatory provisions of UAE.

Conditionality of the Scheme:

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to (to
the extent applicable and required) the following:

() The requisite consents, approvals or
permissions of any Appropriate Authority(ies)
from India, UAE, which by law may be
necessary, for the implementation of this

Scheme.
(i) The Scheme being approved by the
respective requisite majorities of the

shareholders and/ or creditors (as may be
required and / or to the extent not dispensed
with by the Appropriate Authority(ies)) of
the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company as required under applicable laws,
if any, and as may be directed by the NCLT.

(iii)
(iv)

The Appointed Date having ensued.

Obtaining the sanction of the NCLT by
the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company under Section 234 read with
Sections 230 to 232, Section 52 and Section
66 of the Act and other applicable provisions
of the Act.

(v) The certified copies of the Orders of the
Hon’ble NCLT sanctioning this Scheme,
are filed with the jurisdictional Registrar of
Companies, as may be required.

10.

1.

12,

(vi) Compliance by the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company of all the necessary
and applicable provisions of its respective
Applicable Law.

(vii) Compliance with such other conditions
as may be imposed by the NCLT or other
Government Authority.

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY
THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME, THE
UNSECURED CREDITORS OF THE APPLICANT
COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE
ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME TO GET
THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE
PROVISIONS THEREOF.

Disclosure about effect of compromise or
arrangement on material interest of Director and,
Key Managerial Personnel:

The Directors and KMP and their respective relatives
of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company may be effected only to the extent of their
shareholding in the Transferor Company and / or
Transferee Company, or to the extent that the said
Directors / KMP are the partners, directors, members
of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies
corporate and/or beneficiary of trust that hold shares in
Transferor Company and / or Transferee Company, if
any. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors / KMP of
the Transferor Company and / or Transferee Company
have any material interest in the Scheme.

The Scheme of Arrangement does not envisage any
debt restructuring.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors as on 31s
October 2022

The Amount due to Unsecured Creditors standing
in the books of SWPL as on 31t October 2022 is
INR 2,306.48 Crores.

Pre and Post Capital Structure and Shareholding
pattern

The pre-Scheme capital structure and shareholding
pattern of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company are provided under clauses 3(c), 3(e), 4(c)
and 4(e) above respectively. Upon the coming into
effect of the Scheme, SW ME shall stand dissolved
without winding up.
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a) Pre Scheme Capital Structure of SWPL
Share Capital Amount in (Rs.)
Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000
3,45,00,000 0% Compulsorily Convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/-| 34,50,00,00,000
each
Total 35,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up
2,93,69,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 29,36,93,330
1,80,25,000 0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000 each| 18,02,50,00,000
Total 18,31,86,93,330
b) Post Scheme Capital Structure of SWPL

Share Capital

Amount in (Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

5,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each

50,00,00,000

3,45,00,000 0% Compulsorily Convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/-
each

34,50,00,00,000

Total

35,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up

1,46,84,667 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

14,68,46,670

Total

14,68,46,670

13. Effect of the Scheme on various parties

Under the Scheme, an arrangement is sought to be entered into amongst SWPL and SW ME (together as “Participating

Companies”) and their respective equity shareholders.

a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Scheme is not expected to have any effect on the directors and KMP of the Participating Companies except
pursuant to Part Il of the Scheme becoming effective, there will be cancellation of 50% of equity share capital and

100% of preference share capital as on 315t March 2022 of SWPL to the extent as follows:

.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:

Sr. |[Name of the Promoter / Equity Number of Number of Percentage (%)
No. | Shareholders shares held shares held

(pre-merger) (post-merger)
1 Khurshed Yazdi Daruvala 97,45,293 48,72,646 33.17
2 Pallon Shapoorji Mistry 72,000 36,000 0.25
3 Zarine Yazdi Daruvala 10 5 0.00
Total 98,17,303 49,08,651 33.42

. COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL

Sr | Name of the Promoter Number of Number of Percentage (%)
No. shares held shares held

(pre-merger) (post-merger)
1 Khurshed Yazdi Daruvala 60,25,000 NIL 33.40
Total 60,25,000 NIL 33.40
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b)

d)

Promoters and Non-Promoter members:

Under Part Il of the Scheme, pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, there will be a cancellation of 50% of
equity share capital and 100% of preference share capital as on 31t March 2022 of SWPL as follows:

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:

Sr. |Name of the Equity Shareholders Number of Number of Percentage
No. shares held shares held (%)
(pre-merger) | (post-merger)
1 Khurshed Y. Daruvala 97,45,293 48,722,646 33.17
2 Pallon S. Mistry 72,000 36,000 0.25
3 Zarine Y. Daruvala 10 5 0.00
4 Cyrus P. Mistry 72,000 36,000 0.25
5 Parvin Madan jointly with Khurshed Y. Daruvala 10 5 0.00
6 Kainaz K. Daruvala jointly with Khurshed Y. Daruvala 20 10 0.00
7 Shapooriji Pallonji and Company Private Limited 1,94,80,000 97,40,000 66.33%
Total 2,93,69,333 1,46,84,667 100.00
COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL
Sr. |Name of the Shareholders Number of Number of Percentage
No. shares held shares held (%)
(pre-merger) | (post-merger)
1 Shapooriji Pallonji and Company Private Limited 95,00,000 - 52.70
2 Khurshed Y. Daruvala 60,25,000 - 33.40
3 Sashwat Energy Private Limited 25,00,000 - 13.90
Total 1,80,25,000 - 100.00

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of SW ME is held by SWPL. Upon the Part Il of the Scheme
becoming effective, the entire equity share capital of SW ME held by SWPL shall stand automatically cancelled
and there will not be any issue and allotment of equity shares in SWPL.

Depositors, Debenture Holders,
trustee and Debenture trustee

Deposit

No effect of the Scheme on Depositors, Debenture
Holders and Deposit trustee and Debenture trustee
since there are no Depositors, Debenture Holders
and Deposit trustee and Debenture trustee in the
Participating Companies.

Creditors

Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement
with the creditors, either secured or unsecured
of the respective Participating Companies (as
applicable). No compromise is offered under
the Scheme to any of the creditors of the
respective Participating Companies. The liability
of the creditors of the respective Participating
Companies, under the Scheme, is neither being
reduced nor being extinguished.

e) Employees

The Scheme shall in no manner whatsoever
affect the terms and conditions of employment of
the employees of SW ME as they will, pursuant
to the scheme of the arrangement, become the
employees of SWPL, as the case may be, without
any break in their service.

14. Auditors Certificate of conformity of accounting

treatment in the Scheme with Accounting Standards

The Statutory Auditors of the Applicant/Transferee
Company have by their certificate dated 8™ July 2022
confirmed that the accounting treatment in the said
Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 which is attached to this explanatory statement
and forms part of this statement as Annexure H.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

Approvals and intimations

a) The Scheme is subject to the approvals as
mentioned in Clause 19 of the Scheme. The
shareholders of the Applicant / Transferee
Company have since already approved the
Scheme and their meeting has been dispensed
with by the said order dated 29" November
2022 of the Hon’ble Tribunal passed in the
instant Company Scheme Application No. C.A.
(CAA)224/MB/2022 filed by the Applicant. The
Applicant / Transferee Company will also seek
other approvals / orders as contemplated.

b) The Applicant / Transferee Company confirms
that they have filed the Scheme with the Registrar
of Companies.

c) The Applicant / Transferee Company further
confirms that notice in the prescribed form is
also being served on all Authorities in terms of
the order dated 29" November 2022 along with
copy of this notice, Scheme and other documents
accompanying the same.

No investigation or proceedings under Sections
210 to 227 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been
instituted or are pending in relation to SWPL.

SWPL has made the application before Mumbai
Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal for
the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement under
Section 234 read with sections 230 to 232 and
section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed thereunder.

Inspection of documents

Following documents will be available for obtaining
extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or
inspection by the Unsecured Creditors of SWPL at
their registered office between 10:00 a.m. to 06:00
p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays
and Public Holidays, up to the date of the meeting
namely:

a. Audited Financial Statements of SWPL for the
year ended 315t March 2022.

b. Provisional Unaudited Financial Statements of
SWPL for the period ended 31t October 2022.

c. Audited Financial Statements of SW ME for the
year ended 31%t March 2021.

d. Unaudited Financial Statements of SW ME for the
period ended 31t March 2022.

e. Provisional Unaudited Financial Statements of
SW ME for the period ended 315t October 2022.

f.  Copy of Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association of SWPL and SW ME.

g. Copy of the Order dated 29" November 2022 of
the NCLT passed in Company Scheme Application
No. C.A. (CAA) / 224 | MB / 2022 directing the
convening of the meeting of the Unsecured
Creditors of SWPL.

h. Copy of the Scheme of Arrangement.
i.  Statutory Auditor’s Certificate of SWPL confirming

accounting treatment (specified in scheme) is in
compliance with Accounting Standards.

j-  Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective

Board of Directors of SWPL and SW ME.

k. Copy of Valuation Report dated 2" June
2022 issued by an Independent Registered
Valuer, bearing registration number IBBI/
RV/05/2019/11106.

I.  Such other information or documents as the
Board or the management believes necessary
and relevant for making decision for or against the
Scheme.

This statement may be treated as an Explanatory
Statement under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 and Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of the
Scheme and Explanatory Statement may be obtained
from the Registered office of the Applicant Company.

Dated this 14" Day of January 2023

For Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Sd/-
Parameshwar V. Hegde
Chairperson appointed for the meeting
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SUB-SECTION 2 OF SECTION 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, CIRCULATED

FOR THE MEETING
Dear Unsecured Creditors,

Pursuant to Sub-section 2 of Section 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where an Order has been made by the Tribunal
under Sub-Section (1), the companies between which a
compromise or arrangement is proposed shall circulate
information for the meeting so ordered by the Tribunal.

Whereas the Hon’ble Mumbai Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) has ordered the meeting
of the Unsecured Creditors to consider the proposed
Scheme, in terms of Sub-section 2 of Section 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the following information is circulated
for the meeting:

« Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited and Sterling and
Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC and their
respective Shareholders (Annexure A).

*  Valuation Report dated 2™ June 2022, obtained from
the Registered Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets
certifying the valuation of Sterling and Wilson Private
Limited (Annexure B).

*  Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Sterling
and Wilson Private Limited pursuant to the provisions
of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
(Annexure C).

+  Audited Financial Statements as on 31t March 2022 of
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (Annexure D).

*  Provisional Unaudited Financial Statements as on 31¢
October 2022 of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Annexure E).

*  Audited Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021
of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical
LLC (Annexure F).

. Unudited Financial Statements as on 31t March 2022
of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical
LLC (Annexure G).

«  Statutory Auditor’s Certificate of SWPL confirming
accounting treatment (specified in scheme) is in
compliance with Accounting Standards (Annexure H).

Dated this 14" Day of January 2023

For Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Sd/-
Parameshwar V. Hegde
Chairperson appointed for the meeting
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ANNEXURE A

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTION 234 READ WITH SECTIONS 230 TO 232, AND SECTION 66 AND OTHER APPLICABLE

PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RELEVANT RULES AND REGULATIONS
MADE THEREUNDER

OF

STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
(“TRANSFEOR COMPANY” OR “SW ME”)

AND

STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
(“TRANSFEREE COMPANY” OR “SWPL”)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

A. PREAMBLE AND PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

1.

This Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) is
presented for the reduction of share capital
and reorganization of reserves of Sterling and
Wilson Private Limited (“SWPL” or “Transferee
Company”), an Indian Company registered under
the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner as set
out in Part Il of this Scheme, in accordance with
Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
applicable provisions and rules made thereunder.
This Scheme also provides for merger of Sterling
and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC
(“SW ME” or “Transferor Company”), a foreign
Limited Liability Company incorporated in the
Emirate of Dubai under Federal Law No. 8 of
1984 and its subsequent amendments as a going
concern with and into The Transferee Company
in the manner as set out in Part lll of this Scheme
and in accordance to the provisions of Section 234
read with Section 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder for the Transferee Company and
provisions as may be applicable to Transferor
Company for mergers or arrangements in United
Arab Emirates (“UAE”).

This Scheme seeks to undertake the following:
* Reorganization of reserves and reduction of

share capital of The Transferee Company in
the manner set out in this Scheme; and

* Amalgamation and vesting of business of
Transferor Company with and into Transferee
Company, being 100% holding company of
the Transferor Company.

The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company have resolved that
the reduction of share capital and reorganization
of reserves of the Transferee Company and the
merger of Transferor Company with and into
Transferee Company would be in the interest of
all the stakeholders of the Transferor Company as
well as the Transferee Company, for the reasons
stated in the rationale.

Further, the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company have decided to write off the
accumulated losses in the Profit & Loss Account
(as defined hereunder) appearing as on the
Appointed Date, against the reduction in the paid
up CCPS (as defined hereunder) and the face
value of equity shares of the Transferee Company
in accordance with section 66 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the National Company Law
Tribunal (Procedure for Reduction of Share Capital
of Company) Rules, 2016 and other applicable
provisions.

As on date, the Transferee Company holds the
entire share capital of Transferor Company.

This Scheme also provides for various other
matters consequential or otherwise integrally
connected therewith.
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B. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANIES

1.

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“SWPL”
or “Transferee Company”), was incorporated on
13" June 1974 as a private limited company in the
State of Maharashtra under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 under the name and style of
“Sterling and Wilson Electricals Private Limited”.
The name was then changed to “Sterling and
Wilson Private Limited” on 27" June 2007. The
name was then changed to “Sterling and Wilson
Limited” on 8" December 2009. The name was
then changed to its present name of “Sterling and
Wilson Private Limited” on 27" November 2014.
The Transferee Company’s Corporate Identity
Number is U31200MH1974PTC017538 and is
having its registered office at 9th Floor, Universal
Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West),
Mumbai 400043. The Transferee Company is,
inter alia, engaged in designing, procurement,
installation testing commissioning of Mechanical,
Electrical Plumbing (MEP) systems, firefighting
systems, building management systems,
Transmission & Distribution system, building
data centers, Operation & maintenance of these
systems etc. business in India.

Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical LLC (“SW ME” or
“Transferor Company”) is a foreign, unlisted,
Limited Liability Company incorporated on 19th
May 2008 in the Emirate of Dubai under Federal
Law No. (8) of 1984 under License No. 611316
and having its registered office at Office No.
123, Plot No. 582, Jabail Ali Industrial First, Box
No. 88146, Dubai, United Arab Emirates and is,
inter alia, engaged in the business of designing,
procurement, installation testing commissioning of
Mechanical, Electrical Plumbing (MEP) systems,
firefighting systems, building management
systems etc. The Transferor Company is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company.

C. RATIONALE

SW ME is a wholly owned subsidiary of SWPL.

The reorganization of reserves and reduction of
share capital of The Transferee Company, would,
inter alia, entail the following benefits:

i.  The reduction of share capital in the manner
proposed in the Scheme would enable the
Transferee Company to rationalize its capital
structure and present a true and fair financial
position of the Transferee Company in a
better manner, which is commensurate with
its business and assets.

ii. The Scheme envisages reduction by way
of cancellation of its CCPS and face value
of equity shares and subsequent payout
against such cancellation so to create a
Capital Reduction Reserve which shall be
utilized to write off the accumulated losses
in the Profit & Loss Account appearing as
on the Appointed Date in the books of The
Transferee Company.

iii. The Scheme would not affect the ability or
liquidity of The Transferee Company to meet
its obligations / commitments in the normal
course of business. Further, this Scheme
would also not in any way adversely affect
the ordinary operations of The Transferee
Company.

Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
and into the Transferee Company would, inter
alia, entail the following benefits:

i. SW ME has been sustaining substantial
business losses over a number of years due
to a weak overall business performance and
general business environment, including the
weak business environment in the Middle
East (as also globally) on account of the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Further,
RBI-prescribed One Time Restructuring of
debt at the ultimate shareholder level (i.e.,
at Shapoorji Pallonji Group level) further
stressed the business of SW ME due to non-
availability of normal banking credit facilities
(both fund-based and non-fund based) which
would otherwise be available. Resultantly,
there has been a steep decline in the overall
business of SW ME.

i. In the context of the above, given that the
management of SW ME and SWPL do not
foresee a meaningful revival of the business
of SW ME, it is envisaged that the business
of SW ME be amalgamated with and into
SWPL under this Scheme.

iii. The amalgamation and consolidation of
group structure, reduction in overheads
including administrative, managerial and
other expenditure, significant reduction
in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances required at present to be carried
out by the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company.

iv. The proposed Scheme shall also enable the
Transferor Company to address competitive
regulatory environment, risks and policies,
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better management, ability to strategize the
remaining business for long term growth,
consolidation and creation of shareholder’s
value.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders,
creditors, lenders and various other stakeholders of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.
It is not prejudicial to the interests of shareholders,
creditors, lenders and various other stakeholders of
the respective companies.

GENERAL
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

(a) Part I: deals with definitions and interpretations,
and sets out the share capital of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company;

(b) Part Il: deals with reduction of share capital and
reorganization of reserves of The Transferee
Company;

(c) Part lll: deals with the Amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company; and

(d) Part IV: deals with general terms and conditions
applicable to the Scheme.

SEQUENCE OF EFFECTIVENESS OF SCHEME

Upon the Scheme becoming operative, with effect from
the Appointed Date, the following shall be deemed to
have occurred and become effective and operative
from the Effective Date only in the order mentioned
hereunder:

1. Part Il which provides for reorganization of
reserves and reduction of share capital of The
Transferee Company shall be operative prior to
coming into effect of Part Ill; and

2. Part lll which provides for Amalgamation and
vesting of the Transferor Company with and
into the Transferee Company shall take effect
immediately after coming into effect of Part Il of
the Scheme.

TREATMENT OF THE SCHEME IN RELATION TO
MERGER FOR THE PURPOSES OF INCOME TAX
ACT. 1961

The provisions of this Scheme have been drawn up to
comply with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation”
as defined under section 2(1B) and other applicable
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If, at a later

date, and to the extent applicable, any of the terms
or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted
to be inconsistent with the provisions of section 2(1B)
and other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961, including as a result of an amendment of law
or enactment of new legislation or any other reason
whatsoever, the provisions of section 2(1B) and other
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, or
corresponding provisions of any amended or newly
enacted law, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand
modified to the extent determined necessary to comply
with section 2(1B) and other applicable provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Such modifications will,
however, not affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

PART |

DEFINITIONS. INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL

1.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme (as defined hereunder), unless
repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, (i) terms
defined in the introductory paragraphs and recitals
shall have the meanings throughout this Scheme and
(i) the following words and expressions, wherever
used (including in the recitals and the introductory
paragraphs above), shall have the following meanings:

1.1 “Act” or “the Act” means the Companies
Act, 1956 and/or Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent its provisions relevant for this
Scheme are notified and ordinances, rules and
regulations made there under, and shall include
any statutory modifications, re-enactment,
alterations, amendments made thereto;

1.2 “Amalgamation” means merger of the
Transferor Company with and into the Transferee
Company in accordance with Section 234 read
with Sections 230 to 232 of the Act read with
Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, in
terms of Part Il of the Scheme;

1.3 “Applicable Law” means any statute, law,

regulation, ordinance, rule, judgement,
notification, rule of common law, order,
decree, bye-law, approval, directive,

guideline, requirement or other governmental
restriction, or any similar form of decision of, or
determination by, or any interpretation, policy or
administration, having the force of law of any of
the foregoing, by any Governmental Authority
having jurisdiction over the matter in question;

1.4 “Appointed Date” for the purpose of this
Scheme means the closing hours of 31t day of
March, 2022;
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1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

“Appropriate  Authority” means any
applicable central, state or local government,
legislative body, regulatory, administrative
or statutory authority, agency or commission
or department or public or judicial body or
authority, including but not limited to Registrar
of Companies, Regional Directors, National
Company Law Tribunal (to be constituted under
the Companies Act, 2013), Reserve Bank of
India, the High Court(s), or arbitration or arbitral
body having jurisdiction, and other government
and regulatory authorities of UAE and India as
may be applicable;

“Board” or “Board of Directors” in relation
to the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, as the case may be means the
Board of Directors of such company, and shall
include a Committee of Directors or any person
authorized by the Board or such committee of
Directors duly constituted and authorized for the
purposes of matters pertaining to this Scheme
and/or any other matter relating thereto;

“Compulsorily  Convertible  Preference
Shares” or “CCPS” means fully paid-up 0%
Compulsorily  Convertible  non-cumulative
preference shares of Rs. 1,000 each issued by
the Transferee Company;

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates on
which the conditions specified in Clause 19 are
complied with. Any references in this Scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme”
or “effectiveness of this Scheme” or “Scheme
taking effect” shall mean the Effective Date;

“Encumbrance” means any options, pledge,
mortgage, lien, security, interest, claim,
charge, pre-emptive right, easement, limitation,
attachment, restraint or any other encumbrance
of any kind or nature whatsoever, and the term
“Encumbered” shall be construed accordingly;

“Employees” means all the permanent
employees of the Transferor Company who are
on the payroll of the Transferor Company as on
the Effective Date;

“Equity shares” means fully paid-up equity
shares of Rs. 10 each issued by Transferee
Company;

“FEMA” means Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder and shall include
any statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force;

1.13

117

“Income Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act,
1961, including any statutory modifications re-
enactments or amendments thereof for the time
being in force;

“NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench

“Parties” means the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, collectively;

“Profit & Loss Account” means the
accumulated losses / debit balances appearing
in the books of accounts of the Transferee
Company as on the Appointed Date and
includes balances in profit and loss account
of the Transferor Company which shall be
recorded in the books of Transferee Company.

“Relevant Jurisdiction” means the territories
of the Republic of India and the territories of
United Arab Emirates as the case may be;

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC” means
the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, India
and the registrar or its equivalent of such other
Appropriate Authority who has oversight on the
company from a corporate law perspective in
UAE;

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme”
means this scheme of Amalgamation in its
present form or as modified by an agreement
between the Parties, submitted to the NCLT or
any other Appropriate Authority in the Relevant
Jurisdiction with any modification made under
Clause 18 of this Scheme, as approved or
directed by the National Company Law Tribunal
or any other Appropriate Authority;

1.20 “Taxation” or “Tax” or “Taxes” means all forms

of taxes and statutory, governmental, state,
provincial, local government or municipal
impositions, duties, contribution and levies and
whether levied by reference to income, profit,
book profits, gains, net wealth, asset values,
turnover, added value or otherwise and shall
further include payments in respect of or on
account of Tax, whether by way of deduction
at source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax
or otherwise or attributable directly or primarily
to the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, as the case may be or any other
person and all penalties, charges, costs and
interest relating thereto;

1.21“Tax Laws” means all the applicable laws,

acts, rules and regulations dealing with Taxes
including but not limited to the any tax liability
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under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act
1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, Goods and
Services Tax Act, 2017, State Value Added
Tax laws, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 or other
applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/
duties/ levies of similar nature;

1.22“Transferor = Company” or “SW ME”

1.23

1.24

1.25

means Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical LLC having License No.
611316 and registered office of which is situated
at Office No. 123, Plot Number 582, Jabail Al
Industrial First, Box No. 88146, Dubai, United
Arab Emirates and Email ID of its authorized
representative is neville.madan@sterlingwilson.
com;

“Transferee Company” or “SWPL”
means  Sterling and  Wilson Private
Limited having Corporate Identity No.
U31200MH1974PTC017538 and having its
registered office at 9" Floor, Universal Majestic,
P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West), Mumbai
400043. The PAN of the Transferee Company is
AAACS9939D and the email ID of its authorized
representative is hegde@sterlingwilson.com.

“UAE” shall mean United Arab Emirates or
Emirates of Dubai.

“Undertaking” shall mean all the undertakings
and businesses of the Transferor Company as
a going concern and includes all the assets,
properties, rights, licenses, investments and
their debts, outstanding’s, liabilities, duties,
obligations and employees of the Transferor
Company, of whatsoever nature and kind and
wherever situated, as on the Appointed Date,
including but not in any way limited to the
following:

1.25.1 The Transferor Company’s businesses, all

secured and unsecured debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations and all the assets, properties,
rights, titles and benefits, whether movable or
immovable, real or personal, in possession or
reversion, corporeal or in corporeal, tangible or
intangible, present or contingent and including
but without being limited to land and building
(whether owned, leased, licensed), all fixed
and movable plant and machinery, vehicles,
fixed assets, work-in-progress, current assets,
investments, reserves, provisions, funds,
licenses, registrations, copyrights, patents,
trade names, trademarks and other rights and
licenses in respect thereof, applications for
copyrights, patents, trade names, trademarks,
pre-qualifications, track record, experience,

goodwill and all other rights, leases, licenses,
tenancy rights, premises, ownership flats,
hire purchase and lease arrangements,
lending arrangements, benefits of security
arrangements, computers, office equipment,
telephones, telexes, facsimile connections,
internet connections, communication facilities,
equipment and installations and utilities,
electricity, water and other service connection,
benefit of agreements, contracts and
arrangements, powers, authorities, permits,
allotments, approvals, consents, privileges,
liberties, advantages, easements and all
the right, title, interest, goodwill, benefit and
advantage, deposits, reserves, provisions,
advances, receivables, deposits, funds, cash,
bank balances, accounts and all other rights,
benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants,
tax credits (including but not limited to credits
in respect of income tax, sales tax, goods and
service tax , value added tax, octroi, excise duty,
turnover tax, service tax, MAT etc.), software
license, Domain / Websites etc. in connection
/ relating to the Transferor Company and other
claims and powers, of whatsoever nature
and wheresoever situated by the Transferor
Company, as on the Appointed Date;

1.25.2 All the assets and properties (whether movable

or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or
personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal
or incorporeal, present, future or contingent) of
the Transferor Company, whether situated in
UAE or anywhere in the world, including, stock-
in-trade, packing material, raw materials, capital
work in progress, sundry debtors, furniture,
fixtures, interiors, office equipment, vehicles,
appliances, accessories, power lines, depots,
deposits, all stocks, stocks of fuel, assets,
investments of all kinds (including shares,
scripts, subsidiaries, stocks, bonds, debenture
stocks, units or pass through certificates)
including shares or other securities held by the
Transferor Company in its subsidiaries, cash
balances or deposits with banks, cheques on
hand, loans, advances, contingent rights or
benefits, book debts, receivables, actionable
claims, earnest monies, advances or deposits
paid by the Transferor Company, financial
assets, leases (including but not limited to lease
rights of the Transferor Company), hire purchase
contracts and assets, lending contracts, rights
and benefits under any agreement, benefit
of any security arrangements or under any
guarantees, reversions, powers, bids, tenders,
letters of intent, expressions of interest,
development rights (whether vested or potential
and whether under agreements or otherwise),
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tenancies or license in relation to the office
and /or residential properties (including for the
employees or other persons), guest houses,
godowns, warehouses, licenses, fixed and
other assets, intangible assets (including but
not limited to software), trade and service
names and marks, patents, copyrights, designs
and other intellectual property rights of any
nature whatsoever, rights to use and avail of
telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet,
leased line connections and installations,
utilities, electricity and other services, reserves,
provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties
or other interest held in trust, registrations,
contracts, engagements, arrangements of
all kind, privileges and all other rights, title,
interests, other benefits (including tax benefits),
assets held by or relating to any Transferor
Company employee benefit plan, export
incentives accrued, derivative instruments,
forward contracts, insurance claims receivable,
tax holiday benefit, incentives, credits (including
tax credits), tax credit entitlement tax losses,
rights, easements, privileges, liberties and
advantages of whatsoever nature and wherever
situated belonging to or in the ownership, power
or possession and in the control of or vested
in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the
Transferor Company or in connection with or
relating to the Transferor Company and all other
interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in
the ownership, power, possession or the control
of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor
Company, in each case, whether in UAE or
anywhere in the world;

1.25.3 All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements,

licenses, permits, permissions, incentives,
approvals, registrations, tax deferrals and
benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights,
claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special
status and other benefits or privileges and
claims as to any patents, trademarks, designs,
quotas, rights, engagements, arrangements,
authorities, allotments, security arrangements,
benefits of any guarantees, reversions, powers
and all other approvals of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever relating to the business
activities and operations of the Transferor
Company;

1.25.4 All intellectual property rights, engineering and

process information, software licenses (whether
proprietary or otherwise), drawings, records,
files, books, papers, computer programmes,
manuals, data, catalogues, sales and
advertising material, lists of present and former

customers and suppliers, customer credit
information, customer pricing information, other
customer information and all other records and
documents, whether in physical or electronic
form, relating to the business activities and
operations of the Transferor Company;

1.25.5 Amounts claimed by the Transferor Company

whether or not so recorded in the books of
account of the Transferor Company from any
Government Authority, under any law, act,
scheme or rule, as refund of any tax, duty, cess
or of any excess payment;

1.25.6 Rights to any claim not preferred or made by the

Transferor Company in respect of any refund of
tax, duty, cess or other charge, including any
erroneous or excess payment thereof made
by the Transferor Company and any interest
thereon, under any law, act, rule or scheme,
and in respect of set-off, carry forward of un-
absorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure,
deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance,
amortization benefit, etc. or any other or like
benefits under the said acts or under and in
accordance with any law or act, whether in UAE
or anywhere outside UAE;

1.25.7 All debts (secured and unsecured), liabilities

including contingent liabilities, duties, leases
of the Transferor Company and all other
obligations of whatsoever kind, nature and
description whatsoever and howsoever arising,
raised or incurred or utilized. Provided that
if there exists any reference in the security
documents or arrangements entered into by
the Transferor Company under which the
assets of the Transferor Company stand offered
as a security for any financial assistance or
obligation, the said reference shall be construed
as a reference to the assets pertaining to the
Undertaking of the Transferor Company vested
in the Transferee Company by the virtue of
the Scheme. The Scheme shall not operate
to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit
or facility created by the Transferor Company
which shall vest in Transferee Company by
virtue of the Amalgamation. The Transferee
Company shall not be obliged to create any
further or additional security thereof after the
Amalgamation has become effective;

1.25.8 Allother obligations of whatsoeverkind, including

liabilities of the Transferor Company with regard
to their employees, with respect to the payment
of gratuity, pension and provident fund or other
compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the
event of resignation, death, voluntary retirement
or retrenchment or otherwise;
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1.25.9All permanent and temporary employees
engaged by the Transferor Company at various
locations;

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme
shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to
them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be or any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from
time to time

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

i.  Words denoting singular shall include plural and
vice versa;

ii. Headings and bold typeface are only for
convenience and shall be ignored for the purposes
of interpretation;

iii. References to the word “include” or “including”
shall be construed without limitation;

iv. A reference to an article, clause, section,
paragraph or schedule is, unless indicated to the
contrary, a reference to an article, clause, section,
paragraph or schedule of this Scheme;

v. Unless otherwise defined, the reference to the
word “days” shall mean calendar days;

vi. References to dates and times shall be construed
to be references to Indian dates and times;

vii. Reference to a document includes an amendment
or supplement to, or replacement or novation of,
that document;

viii. Word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in
the Scheme will have the meaning(s) respectively
ascribed to them under the Act or any other
Applicable Law; and

ix. References to a person include any individual,
firm, body corporate (whether incorporated),
government, state or agency of a state or any joint
venture, association, partnership, works council
or employee representatives’ body (whether or
not having separate legal personality).

SHARE CAPITAL
2.1 The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up

share capital of Transferor Company or SW ME
as on 28" February 2022 is as under:

A |Authorised Share Capital | Amount (in AED)
300 Equity Shares of AED 3,00,000
1,000 each
Total 3,00,000

B |Issued, Subscribed Paid
up Share Capital
300 Equity Shares of AED 3,00,000
1,000 each
Total 3,00,000

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Transferee @ Company.
Subsequent to the above, and till the date of the
Scheme being approved by the Board of Directors
of the Transferor Company, there has been no
change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company.

2.2 The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of Transferee Company or SWPL on
28" February 2022 is as under:

A |Authorised Share Capital| Amount (in Rs.)
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares 50,00,00,000
of Rs. 10/- each
2,15,00,000 0%
Compulsorily Convertible
non-cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each
Total 22,00,00,00,000
B |Issued, Subscribed Paid
up Share Capital
2,93,69,333 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each
1,80,25,000 0%
Compulsorily convertible

non-cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs. 1,000 each

Total 18,31,86,93,330

21,50,00,00,000

29,36,93,330

18,02,50,00,000

Subsequent to above, and till the date of the
Scheme being approved by the Board of Directors
of the Transferee Company, there has been no
change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid-up capital of the Transferee Company.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

3.1 The Scheme as set out herein in its present form
or with any modification(s), as may be approved
or imposed or directed by the NCLT, shall become
effective from the Appointed Date as defined under
Section 232 (6) of the Act in terms of Clause 1.4 of
Part | of this Scheme but shall become operative
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3.2

from the Effective Date in terms of Clause 19 of
this Scheme.

Any references in the Scheme to ‘upon the
Scheme becoming effective’ or ‘effectiveness
of the Scheme’ or ‘upon coming into effect of
this Scheme’ shall mean the Effective Date.

PART Il

REORGANISATION OF RESERVES AND REDUCTION
OF SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

4,

REORGANISATON OF

RESERVES AND

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,80,25,000
number of CCPS (having face value of INR
1,000 each) of the Transferee Company shall
stand extinguished and cancelled through capital
reduction proportionate to percentage of such
CCPS held by the holders of the CCPS as on the
Effective Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68
per equity share (as determined on a fully diluted
basis), as determined vide Valuation Report
dated 2 June, 2022, issued by an Independent
Registered Valuer, bearing registration number
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106, amounting to a total
payout of INR 87,71,68,000.

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,46,84,667
number of Equity Shares (having face value of
INR 10 each) of the Transferee Company (50%
of the Equity Shares of the Company as on 28"
February 2022) shall stand extinguished and
cancelled through capital reduction proportionate
to percentage of such Equity Shares held by the
holders of the Equity Shares as on the Effective
Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68 per equity
share, as determined vide Valuation Report
dated 2 June, 2022, issued by an Independent
Registered Valuer, bearing registration number
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106, amounting to a total
payout of INR 17,15,16,905.

With effect from the Appointed Date, the difference
between the aggregate of face value of CCPS
and Equity Shares so extinguished and cancelled
through capital reduction as per Clause 4.2 and
4.3 above, on the one hand, and the amount of
consideration payable on such extinguishment
and cancellation, shall stand transferred to and
be recorded as credit to the Capital Reduction
Reserve.

With effect from the Appointed Date, such Capital
Reduction Reserve shall be utilised for set-off of

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

the debit balance in the Profit & Loss Account of
the Transferee Company.

The extinguishment and cancellation of CCPS and
Equity Shares in the manner stated above shall
be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and
the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme
shall be deemed to be an order under section
66 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
no separate sanction under section 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Act will be necessary.

Notwithstanding the reduction of share capital as
stipulated hereinabove, the Transferee Company
shall not be required to use the words “AND
REDUCED” as part of its corporate name and
such use is dispensed with.

This Part of the Scheme does not envisage
transfer or vesting of any of the properties and/
or liabilities of the Transferee Company to or in
any Person and consequently, the order of the
Tribunal to the extent of this Part of the Scheme
will not attract any stamp duty.

The Transferee Company submits that the
proposed reduction of capital as above is
in conformity with and does not violate or
circumscribe any provision of the Act.

All actions taken by the Transferee Company
pursuant to and in accordance with this Scheme
shall be deemed to have not breached any terms
and conditions or any other provisions of the Law.

PART Ill

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY
WITH AND INTO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

AMALGAMATIONAND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING
OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

5.1

Subject to the provisions of this Scheme as
specified hereinafter and with effect from the
Appointed Date and upon the Part lll of the
Scheme becoming effective, the entire business
and Undertaking of the Transferor Company,
including all the debts, liabilities, losses, duties
and obligations, including those arising on
account of taxation laws and other allied laws, of
the Transferor Company of every description and
also including, without limitation, all the movable
and immovable properties and assets (whether
tangible or intangible) of the Transferor Company
comprising, amongst others, all investments,
receivables, actionable claims, furniture and
fixtures, office equipment, telephones, telex,
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5.2

53

54

facsimile and other communication facilities
and business licenses, permits, deposits,
authorizations, approvals, lease, tenancy rights,
permissions, incentives, if any, and all other rights,
know-how, trade secret, patents, trademark,
service mark, other intellectual property rights,
registrations, title, interest, contracts including
but not limited to contracts entered into with
customers, vendors and service providers,
consents, approvals and rights and powers of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever,
privileges, liberties, easements, advantages,
benefits and approvals, shall, under the provisions
of section 234 read with sections 230 to 232 of the
Act and applicable provisions of UAE and pursuant
to the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme
and without further act, instrument or deed, but
subject to the changes affecting the same as on
the Effective Date, be transferred and/or deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, so as to become the properties, assets,
rights, business and Undertaking of the Transferee
Company.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 5.1
above, in respect of the assets of the Transferor
Company, including cash and bank balances, as
are movable in nature or are otherwise capable
of transfer by manual delivery, by paying over or
by endorsement and delivery or otherwise, the
same shall be so transferred by the Transferor
Company to the Transferee Company, without
requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance
for the same and shall become the property of
the Transferee Company as an integral part of
the assets of the Transferee Company, with effect
from the Appointed Date and upon the Part Il of
the Scheme becoming effective.

All the intellectual property rights of any nature
whatsoever, including but not limited to intangible
assets appertaining to the Transferor Company,
whether or not provided in books of accounts of the
Transferor Company, shall under the provisions
of Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, as applicable, and all other provisions
of applicable law, if any, without any further act,
instrument or deed, cost or charge and without any
notice or other intimation to any third party for the
transfer of the same, be and stand transferred and
vested in the Transferee Company as a part of the
transfer of the Undertaking as a going concern,
so as to become, as and from the Appointed
Date, the intellectual property of the Transferee
Company.

All intangible assets including various business
or commercial rights, pre-qualification for past

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

projects / sales, customer-base, etc. belonging
to but not recorded in books of the Transferor
Company shallbe transferred toand vested with the
Transferee Company and shall include all letters
of intent, request for proposal, prequalification,
permits, registrations, bid acceptances, tenders,
technical experience (including experience in
executing projects), goodwill earned in execution
of the projects, technical know-how, contracts,
deeds, memorandum of understanding, bonds,
agreements, track record and all other rights
claims, powers in relation to or enjoyed by or
granted in favour of the Transferor Company, and
the historical financial strength including turnover,
profitability, performance, market share, net-
worth, liquid/ current assets and reserves of the
previous years of the Transferor Company and
all empanelments, accreditations, recognitions as
approved vendors for undertaking any jobs.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause
5.4 above, with effect from the Appointed Date,
all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of
the Transferor Company as on the Appointed
Date whether provided for or not in the books of
account of the Transferor Company and all other
liabilities which may accrue or arise after the
Appointed Date but which relate to the period on
or up to the day of the Appointed Date, shall be
the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Transferee Company including any encumbrance
on the assets of the Transferor Company or on
any income earned from those assets.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations
attributed to Transferor Company on the
Appointed Date has been discharged by it after
the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed to have been for
and on behalf of the Transferee Company. Where
after the Appointed Date, Transferor Company has
taken any further loans, liabilities or obligations
such further loan shall also be deemed to have
been for and on behalf of the Transferee Company
and the Transferee Company will assume liability
for the same.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon
the Part lll of the Scheme becoming effective, all
inter-party transactions between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall
be considered as intra-party transactions for all
purposes from the Appointed Date.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the
Part Il of the Scheme becoming effective, loans,
advances and other obligations (including any
guarantees, letters of credit, letters of comfort or
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5.9

any other instrument or arrangement which may
give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form),
if any, due or which may at any time thereafter
become due between the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company shall, on and from
the Effective Date stand discharged and come
to an end and there shall be no liability in that
behalf on any party and appropriate effect shall
be given in the books of accounts and records of
the Transferee Company.

All existing securities, mortgages, charges, liens or
other Encumbrances, if any, as on the Appointed
Date and created by the Transferor Company
after the Appointed Date, over the properties
and other assets comprised in the Undertaking
transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue
of this Scheme and in so far as such securities,
mortgages, charges, liens or other Encumbrances
secure or relate to liabilities of the Transferor
Company, the same shall, after the Effective Date,
continue to relate and attach to such assets or any
part thereof to which they are related or attached
prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred
to the Transferee Company, and such securities,
mortgages, charges, liens or Encumbrances shall
not relate or attach to any other assets of the
Transferee Company, provided however that no
Encumbrances shall have been created by the
Transferor Company over its assets after the date
of filing of the Scheme, without the prior written
consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company, except for those done in the normal
course of business, to the extent permissible
under the Foreign Exchange Management (Cross
Border Merger) Regulations, 2018.

5.10All existing Encumbrances over the properties

and other assets of the Transferee Company or
any part thereof which relate to the liabilities and
obligations of the Transferee Company prior to
the Effective Date shall continue to relate only to
such assets and properties and shall not extend
or attach to any of the assets and properties of the
Transferor Company transferred to and vested in
the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme,
to the extent permissible under the Foreign
Exchange Management (Cross Border Merger)
Regulations, 2018.

5111t is expressly provided that, save as herein

provided, no other term or condition of the
liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company
is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the
extent that such amendment is required statutorily
or by necessary implication.

5.12For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that upon

coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance
with the provisions of relevant laws, consents,
permissions, licenses, certificates, authorities
(including for the operation of bank accounts),
powers of attorneys given by, issued to or
executed in favour of the Transferor Company,
and the rights and benefits under the same
shall, and all quality certifications and approvals,
trademarks, brands, patents and domain names,
copy rights, industrial designs, trade secrets and
other intellectual property and all other interests
relating to the goods or services being dealt with
by the Transferor Company, be transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company without any
further act or deed and shall be appropriately
mutated by the statutory authorities concerned,
in favour of the Transferee Company upon
the vesting and transfer of the undertaking of
Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme. The
benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions,
licenses and consents shall vest in and become
available to the Transferee Company pursuant to
this Scheme.

5.13Benefits of any and all corporate approvals as

may have already been taken by the Transferor
Company, whether being in the nature of
compliances or otherwise, shall under the
provisions of Section 234 read with Sections 230
to 232 of the Act, all other provisions of applicable
law, if any, without any further act, instrument or
deed, cost or charge and without any notice or
other intimation to any third party for the transfer of
the same, be and stand transferred and vested in
the Transferee Company as part of the transfer of
the Undertaking as a going concern, and the said
corporate approvals and compliances shall be
deemed to have originally been taken /complied
with by the Transferee Company.

5.14 Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing

Clauses, and upon the Scheme becoming
effective, Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall execute any instruments or
documents or do all the acts and deeds as
may be required, including filing of necessary
particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with
the concerned Registrar of Companies to give
formal effect to the above provisions, if required.

5.15The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company

with the Transferee Company, pursuant to and
in accordance with this Scheme, shall take place
with effect from the Appointed Date and upon the
Part Il of the Scheme becoming effective, and
shall be in accordance with Section 2(1B) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961.
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6. CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

6.1

6.2

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
with effect from Appointed Date and subject
to the other provisions of the Scheme, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other
instruments of whatsoever nature to which any
of the Transferor Company are party subsisting
or having effect on or immediately before the
Effective Date shall remain in full force and effect
against or in favour of the Transferee Company
and shall be binding on and be enforceable by
and against the Transferee Company as fully and
effectually as if the Transferee Company had at all
material times been a party thereto. Any inter-se
contracts between Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and
cease to operate in the Transferee Company from
the Effective Date upon coming into effect of this
Scheme.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of
this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that
vesting of the Undertaking occurs by virtue of
this Scheme itself, the Transferee Company
may, at any time after the coming into effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions
hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise,
take such actions and execute such deeds
(including deeds of adherence), confirmations or
other writings or tripartite arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement to which the
Transferor Company is a party or any writings as
may be necessary in order to give formal effect
to the provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee
Company shall under the provisions of this Part
of the Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such writings on behalf of Transferor
Company to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on
the part of the Transferor Company, as the case
may be, to be carried out or performed.

7. PERMITS, CONSENTS, LICENSES,
REGISTRATIONS ETC.
7.1 All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals,

incentives, subsidies, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other
benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon
or held or availed of by and all rights and benefits
that have accrued to the Transferor Company,
shall without any further act, instrument or deed,
be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in and be
available to the Transferee Company so as to
become from the Appointed Date, the estates,
assets, rights, title, interests and authorities of

7.2

the Transferee Company and shall remain valid,
effective and enforceable on the same terms
and conditions to the extent permissible in law.
From the Effective Date and until the licenses,
permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies,
rights, claims, liberties, special status, etc. are
transferred, vested, recorded, effected and /
or perfected, in the records of the Appropriate
Authority, in favor of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company is authorized to carry on
business in the name and style of the Transferor
Company and under the relevant license and or
permit and / or approval, as the case may be, and
the Transferee Company shall keep a record of
such transactions.

The Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company shall also be entitled to make an
application for amending, cancelling or obtaining
fresh registrations, as the case may be, under all
applicable laws and legislations. The Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company would
be entitled to make an application for amending
licenses/ authorisations.

STAFF AND EMPLOYEES

8.1

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all
permanent staff and employees of the Transferor
Company in service on the Effective Date,
shall deemed to have become the staff and
employees of the Transferee Company on the
same terms and conditions on which they are
engaged by the Transferor Company without any
break or interruption in their service as a result
of the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company. The Transferee
Company agrees that the services of all such
Employees with the Transferor Company prior
to the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company shall be taken
into account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the said Employees may be eligible. It is
hereby clarified that the accumulated balances,
if any, standing to the credit of the Employees
in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund or any other special fund or
trusts, if any, created or existing for the benefit of
the of Employees of the Transferor Company shall
be transferred, subject to applicable laws, to such
provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation
fund or such trusts / funds of the Transferee
Company or to be established and caused to be
recognized by the appropriate authorities, by the
Transferee Company for all purposes whatsoever
in relation to the administration or operation of
such fund or funds or in relation to the obligation
to make contributions to the said fund or funds
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9.

in accordance with the provisions thereof as per
the terms provided in the respective trust deeds,
if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties,
powers and obligations of Transferor Company in
relation to such fund or funds shall become those
of the Transferee Company. The accumulated
balances, if any, standing to the credit of the
former Employees of Transferor Company in the
existing provident fund of Transferor Company
shall be transferred to the account of the relevant
provident fund authorities (including the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner having jurisdiction).
8.2 Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues
of the Employees of the Transferor Company
would be continued to be deposited in the existing
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
fund respectively of the Transferor Company.
8.3 Upon transfer of the aforesaid funds to the
respective funds of the Transferee Company,
subject to applicable laws, the existing trusts
created for such funds by the Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved and no further act
or deed shall be required to this effect. It is further
clarified that the services of the Employees of the
Transferor Company will be treated as having
been continuous, uninterrupted and taken into
account for the purpose of the said fund or funds.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

9.1 If any suit, cause of action, appeal or other legal,
quasi-judicial, arbitral or other administrative
proceedings of whatever nature (hereinafter
called “the Proceedings”) by or against the
Transferor Company be pending on the Effective
Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued
or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason
of the Amalgamation or of anything contained
in the Scheme, but the Proceedings shall be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Transferee Company in the same manner and
to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Transferor Company as if the Scheme had not
been made.

9.2 On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee

Company may initiate any legal proceeding for

and on behalf of the Transferor Company. In case

of any litigations, suits, recovery proceedings
which are to be initiated or may be initiated against
the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date,
the Transferee Company shall be made party
thereto and any payment and expenses made
thereto shall be the liability of the Transferee

10.

1.

12.

Company. The Transferee Company undertakes
to continue to abide by the agreement/settiement
if any entered into by the Transferor Company
with any of its employees, which is in force as on
the Effective Date.

TREATMENT OF TAXES
TRANSFEROR COMPANY

PAID BY THE

All taxes, levies, cess, etc. (whether direct or indirect)
that might have been paid by the Transferor Company
(whether before or after the Appointed Date) during
the period when the merger has not become effective
for any tax liability that arises after the Appointed Date
shall be deemed to be tax paid by the Transferee
Company and credit in respect thereof shall be given
to the Transferee Company accordingly.

CONSIDERATION

The entire share capital of Transferor Company is
held by the Transferee Company. Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the shares held by the Transferee
Company and its nominees in the Transferor
Company shall be cancelled and extinguished and
no share shall be issued by the Transferee Company
in consideration for this Scheme of Amalgamation.
Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the share
certificates, if any, and / or the shares in electronic form
representing the shares held by Transferee Company,
and its nominees, in the Transferor Company, shall be
deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed
for cancellation thereof by the transferor and shall case
to be in existence accordingly.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

12.1 Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company shall be accounted
in the books of the Transferee Company for by
way of as per “Pooling of Interests Method”
under Appendix C of Ind-AS 103 (Accounting for
Business Combinations under common control)
notified under Section 133 of the Act and under
any other relevant Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as may be
amended from time to time.

12.2 All the assets and liabilities of Transferor Company
shall be recorded in the financial statements of
the Transferee Company at the carrying value
as appearing in the financial statements of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date
after giving effect to Part Il of this Scheme.
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12.3The identity of the reserves pertaining to the

Transferor Companies, shall be preserved and
shall appear in the merged financial statements
of Transferee Company in the same form in which
they appeared in the financial statements of the
Transferor Company and it shall be aggregated
with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of Transferee Company, as
on the Appointed Date after giving effect to Part Il
of this Scheme.

12.4The investments in shares of the Transferor

Company, as appearing, inter alia, in the books of
the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled.

12.5To the extent that there are inter-company

loans, deposits, obligations, balances or other
outstanding including any interest thereon,
as between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company as the case may be, the
obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end
and there shall be no liability in that behalf and
corresponding effect shall be given in the books of
account and records of the Transferee Company
for the reduction of such assets or liabilities as the
case may be.

12.6 The surplus / deficit of the value of the assets

over the value of liabilities and reserves of the
Transferor Company, pursuant to Amalgamation of
Transferor Company with and into the Transferee
Company, and as recorded in the books of account
of the Transferee Company shall, after adjusting
for cancellation of inter-company investments in
Clause 12.4 and other adjustments as above in
Clause 12.5, be recorded as “Capital Reduction
Reserve” in the books of the Transferee Company.

12.7In case of any differences in accounting policies

between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the accounting policies
followed by the Transferee Company shall prevail
to ensure that the financial statements reflect the
financial position based on consistent accounting
policies and the difference till the Appointed Date
will be quantified and adjusted in the Capital
Reduction Reserve mentioned earlier to ensure
that the financial statements of the Transferee
Company reflect the financial position on the
basis of consistent accounting policy.

12.8 Comparative financial information in the financial

statements of the Transferee Company shall be
restated for the accounting impact of merger, as
stated above, as if the merger had occurred from
the beginning of the comparative period.

12.9 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein above, the Board of Directors
of the Transferee Company, in consultation with
its statutory auditors to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be
deemed fit, in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and generally
accepted accounting principles.

13. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS FOR THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

13.1 With effect from the Appointed Date up to and
including the Effective Date:

13.1.1 The business of the Transferor Company shall
be deemed to have been carried on and shall
carry on the business and activities in ordinary
course and shall be deemed to have held and
stood possessed of and shall hold and stand
possessed of all of the assets for and on account
of and in trust for the Transferee Company.

13.1.2 Any of the rights, powers, authorities or
privileges exercised by the Transferor Company
shall be deemed to have been exercised by the
Transferee Company for and on behalf of, and
in trust for and as an agent of the Transferor
Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties
and commitments that have been undertaken or
discharged by the Transferor Company shall be
deemed to have been exercised for and on behalf
of the Transferee Company.

13.2Without prejudice to Clause 13.1 above, with
effect from the Appointed Date and upon the
Scheme becoming effective, any documents
of title/ rights and easements in relation thereto
shall stand transferred to and be vested in and/or
be deemed to have been transferred and vested
in the Transferee Company and shall belong to
the Transferee Company. With effect from the
Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall, in
relation to such properties, be accountable for all
rates, rents and taxes whatsoever inclusive of the
same remaining outstanding as on the Appointed
Date. Transferor Company shall be deemed to
have been undertaken for and on behalf of and as
an agent of the Transferee Company.

13.3Where any liabilities and obligations attributed to
the Undertaking are discharged by the Transferor
Company on or after the Appointed Date, but
before the Effective Date, such discharge shall
be deemed to have been for and on behalf of the
Transferee Company.
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13.4All the income or profits accruing or arising to

Transferor Company or expenditure or losses
arising or incurred by the Transferor Company for
the period falling on and after the Appointed Date
shall, for all purposes be treated as the income,
profits, expenditure or losses (as the case may
be) of the Transferee Company.

13.5All Taxes paid or payable by the Transferor

Company in respect of the operations and / or
profits of the business before the Appointed Date
and from the Appointed Date till the Effective Date,
shall be on account of the Transferor Company
and in so far as it relates to the Tax payment by
the Transferor Company in respect of the profits
or activities or operation of the business after the
Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be
the corresponding item paid by the Transferee
Company and shall in all proceedings be dealt
with accordingly.

13.6 Any refund under any Tax Laws dealing with

Taxes allocable or related to the business of the
Transferor Company and due to the Transferor
Company consequent to the assessment made
on the Transferor Company shall also belong to
and be received by the Transferee Company.

13.7 All Tax benefits of any nature, duties, cesses or

any other like payments or deductions available to
Transferor Company under the Tax Laws or any
Tax deduction/ Collections at Source, unabsorbed
depreciation, Tax credits, benefits of CENVAT
credits, GST Input Tax credits, benefits of input
credits up to the Effective Date shall be deemed to
have been on account of or paid by the Transferee
Company and the relevant authorities shall be
bound to transfer to the account of and give credit
for the same to Transferee company upon the
passing of the order.

13.8 All Tax assessment proceedings and appeals of

whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company, pending or arising as at the Effective
Date, shall be continued and/or enforced by or
against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as would or
might have been continued and enforced by or
against the Transferor Company Further, the
aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate
or be discontinued nor be in any way prejudicially
affected by reason of the Amalgamation of
the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company or anything contained in this Scheme.

13.9Any transaction entered into by the Transferor

Company between the Appointed Date and
the Effective Date will not be regarded as

noncompliant of withholding tax/tax deduction
at source obligation under the Income Tax Act
or Goods and Service Tax obligation only on the
ground that, on the sanction of the scheme, the
transactions are regarded as having been carried
out by the Transferee Company.

13.10 All expenses incurred by the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company in relation to the
Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company in accordance with this
Scheme, including Stamp Duty expenses, if any,
shall be allowed as deduction to the Transferee
Company in accordance with Section 35DD of
the Income Tax Act over a period of five (5) years
beginning with the financial year in which the
scheme becomes effective.

13.11 Upon this Scheme being effective, and in terms
thereof, both the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company are expressly permitted to
prepare/redraw the relevant financial statements,
as required, in accordance with, and in terms
of, Appendix C to Indian Accounting Standards
(IndAS”) 103 and/or International Financial
Reporting Standards, as applicable, and the
financial statements once certified by the Auditors
and/or Firm of Chartered Accountants, will be
regarded as duly drawn up in compliance with
Companies Act, 2013 and/or laws applicable
in relation to the Transferor Company. Further,
the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company are expressly permitted to revise and
file their respective income tax returns and other
statutory returns, including tax deducted / collected
at source returns, service tax returns, excise tax
returns, sales tax / value added tax, goods and
services tax returns, minimum alternate tax returns
as may be applicable and has expressly reserved
the right to make such provision in its returns and
to claim refunds or credits etc. if any. Such returns
may be revised and filed notwithstanding that the
statutory period for such revision and filing may
have expired and without incurring any additional
liability on account of interest, penalty, late fees or
any other sum.

14. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the transfer
and vesting of the Undertaking as per the provisions
of the Scheme shall not affect any transactions or
proceedings already concluded by the Transferor
Company on or before the Appointed Date or after the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date. The Transferee
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and
things made, done and executed by the Transferor
Company.




15.

16.

17.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved and the Transferor
Company shall initiate and pursue all actions necessary
under Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on Commercial
Companies for its liquidation and such other additional
requirements in accordance with the regulatory
provisions of UAE.

PART IV
GENERAL PROVISIONS
DIVIDENDS

16.1The Transferor Company and Transferee
Company shall be entitled to declare and pay
dividends, whether interim and/or final, to their
members in respect of the accounting period prior
to the Effective Date.

16.2The holders of the shares of the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company shall, save
as expressly provided otherwise in this Scheme,
continue to enjoy their existing rights under their
respective Articles of Association including the
right to receive dividends.

16.3 ltis clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect
of declaration of dividends (whether interim or
final) are enabling provisions only and shall not
be deemed to confer any right on any member of
the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee
Company to demand or claim or be entitled to
any dividends which, subject to the provisions of
the said Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of
the respective Boards of the Transferor Company
and/or the Transferee Company as the case may
be, and subject to approval, if required, of the
shareholders of the Transferor Company and/or
the Transferee Company, as the case may be.

APPLICATION TO THE NCLT OR SUCH OTHER
COMPETENT AUTHORITY

17.1The Transferee Company shall, as may be
required, make applications and/or petitions
under Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232,
Section 52 and Section 66 of the Act and other
applicable provisions of the Act to the NCLT at
Mumbai Bench for sanction of this Scheme and
all matters ancillary or incidental thereto.

17.2The Transferor Company shall comply with
the necessary and applicable provisions and
procedural requirements under the applicable
laws of UAE for effectuating the Scheme and

18.

19.

dissolution of the Transferor Company. The
Transferor Company shall take all necessary
steps for sanctioning of this Scheme and for their
continuing as one company with the Transferee
Company and apply for and obtain such other
approvals, if any, required under the Applicable
Laws.

MODIFICATION / AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME
AND GENERAL POWER TO THE BOARD

18.1The Transferor Company and Transferee
Company with approval of their respective
Board of Directors may consent, from time to
time, on behalf of all persons concerned, to
any modifications / amendments or additions /
deletions to the Scheme which may otherwise be
considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by
the said Board of Directors to resolve all doubts
or difficulties that may arise for carrying out this
Scheme and to do and execute all acts, deeds,
matters, and things as may be necessary for
bringing this Scheme into effect or agree to any
terms and/ or conditions or limitations that the
NCLT or any other authorities under law may
deem fit to approve of, to direct and/ or impose.
The aforesaid powers of the Transferor Company
and Transferee Company to give effect to the
modification / amendments to the Scheme may be
exercised by their respective Board of Directors
or any person authorized in that behalf by the
concerned Board of Directors subject to approval
of the NCLT or any other authorities under the
applicable law to such modification/ amendments
to the Scheme. In case of any provisions that
is inconsistent with the FEMA Regulations, the
Scheme shall stand amended to that extent.

18.2The Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company may withdraw this Scheme prior to the
Effective Date at any time.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to (to the
extent applicable and required) the following:

i.  The requisite consents, approvals or permissions
of any Appropriate Authority(ies) from India,
UAE, which by law may be necessary, for the
implementation of this Scheme.

ii. The Scheme being approved by the respective
requisite majorities of the shareholders and/
or creditors (as may be required and / or to the
extent not dispensed with by the Appropriate
Authority(ies)) of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company as required under applicable
laws, if any, and as may be directed by the NCLT.

31



20.

iii. The Appointed Date having ensued.

iv. Obtaining the sanction of the NCLT by the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company
under Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232,
Section 52 and Section 66 of the Act and other
applicable provisions of the Act.

v. The certified copies of the Orders of the Hon’ble
NCLT sanctioning this Scheme, are filed with the
jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, as may be
required.

vi. Compliance by the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company of all the necessary and
applicable provisions of its respective Applicable
Law.

vii. Compliance with such other conditions as may
be imposed by the NCLT or other Government
Authority.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS /
SANCTIONS

20.1In the event of any of the said sanctions and
approvals referred to in the preceding Clause 19
is not being obtained and/or the Scheme not being
sanctioned by the NCLT or such other competent
authority, if applicable, the Scheme shall become
null and void, and be of no effect, save and except
in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto
as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right,
liability, or obligations which have arisen or accrued

21.

22.

23.

pursuant thereto and which shall he governed
and be preserved or worked on as is specifically
provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise
in law and the Transferee Company shall bear
the charges and expenses in connection with the
Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed.

20.21n the event of this Scheme failing to take effect or
becomes null and void no rights and liabilities of
whatsoever nature shall accrue to or be incurred
inter-se to or by the parties to the Scheme or any
of them.

OPERATIVE DATE OF SCHEME

The Scheme, although operative from the Appointed
Date, shall become effective from the Effective Date.

BINDING EFFECT

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the same
shall be binding on the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company and all concerned parties without
any further act, deed, matter or thing.

COSTS

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and
all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise
agreed), arising out of or incurred in carrying out and
implementing this Scheme und matters incidental
thereto, shall be borne by the Transferee Company
and shall be charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the Transferee Company.
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ANNEXURE B
CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets
(IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106 and
Membership No. ICMAL RVQ/S&FA/00054)

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

To,

The Board of Directors,

Steriing and Wilson Private Limited
S Floor, Universal Majestic
P.L. Lokhande Marg,

Chembur, Mumbai - 400 043,

4

Sub: Report on recommendation of Fair Value per equity share of Sterling and

Wiison Private Limited

Dear Sirs,

I refer to my engagement jetter, whereby CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, Registered
Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets (hereinafter referred to as “the Valuer” or “1")
has been requested by the management of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited [CIN:
U31200MH1974PTC017538] (hereinafter referred to as “SWPL” or “the Company”) to
undertake the valuation of equity shares of Steriing and Wilson Private Limited and

issue a report recommending the fair value per equity share of the Company.

In the following paragraphs, I have summarized my understanding of the key facts;
key information relied upon, valuation approach and limitations to my scope of work.

The report is structured as under:

1. Purpose of Vaiuation

2. Background

3. Sources of Information

4. Valuation Approach

5. Recommendation

6. Exclusions and Scope Limitations

Page 1 of 11

Phone No: +91 22 28050744 B/702, Jyoti Tower,
Cell No: +91 90043 57775 . Kandivali Jyoti Park CHS Ltd,
e-mail: harsh.ruparelia@yahoo.com Opp. Anand Ashram,

S.V. Road, Kandivali (West),
Mumbai — 400 067

)
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CA Harsh C. Ruparelia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financizi Assets
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understand that the management of SWPL is considering reduction of
Equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In this regard, CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, Registered Valuer - Securities
or Financial Assets has been appointed by the Company to issue a report on
recommendation of Fair Value per Equity Share of Sterling and Wiison Private
Limited as on 315t March 2022 (“Vaiuation Date”).

BACKGROUND

STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED ("SWPL")

SWPL was incorporated on 13% June 1974 under the erstwhile provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is currently situated
at 9™ Floor, Universal Majestic, P.L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur, Mumbai - 400
043 in the State of Maharashtra.

The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capitai of the Company

on the date of this repoit is as under

articulars

,00,000, 0% Compulsorily Convertible Non- 2150,00,00,000
nulative Preference Shares of INR 1,000/- each

Fotai 2200,50,00,065

2,93,69,333 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 29,36,93,330
1,80,25,000, 0% Compulsorily Convertible Non- 1802,50,00,000
Cumulative Preference Shares of INR 1,000/- each

Total 1831,86,83,330

The equity shareholding pattern of the Company (on diluted basis) as on the
date of this report is as under:

Name of the Sharehoider | No, of Shares | % holding
Shapoorji Pailonji and Company Private 5,94,80,000 56.94%
Limited

Khurshed Daruvala 3,48,45,293 33.35%
Cyrus P. Mistry . 72,000 0.07%

\\
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Registered Valuer — Securities or Financiai Assets

CA Harsh C, Ruparelia

Pallon S. Mistry 72,000 0.07%

Mrs. Parvin Zarir Madan jointly with Mr 10 0.00%

Khurshed Y. Daruvala

Mrs. Kainaz K. Daruvala jointly with Mr. 20 0.00%

Khurshed Y. Daruvala

Mrs. Zarine Y. Daruvala ' 10 0.00%

Sashwat Energy Private Limited 1,00,00,000 9.57%
L Total 10,44,69.333 100.00%

2.1.4 The company is specialised in complete turn-key soiutions, offering a large
spectrum of services like electrical contracting, heat ventilation and air
conditioning systems, public health and safety, LV Systems, EPC contracting
and data centre solutions.

3. SOURCES OF INFORMATION
3.1. For the purpose of the valuation exercise, I have relied upon the following
sources of information provided by the management of SWPL:

(a) Audited financial statements of the Company for the vear ended 31%
March 2021;

(b) Management certified unaudited financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31% March 2022;

() Management certified projected financial statements {including key

underlying assumptions) comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for FY 2022-23 to FY
2030-31;

(d) Shareholding pattern of the Company (on diluted basis) as on the date of
this report;

(e) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

(f) Cther relevant detaiis regarding the Companv such as its history, past and
present activities, future plans and prospects, income-tax position and
other refevant information; and

(9} Such other information and explanations as required and which has been

provided by the Management of the Company.

3
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ay be other information
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opportunity to review the draft report as part of the standard practice to make sure

that factual inaccuracy & omissions are avoided in the final report.

4.

4.1.

4.2.

VALUATION APPROACH

For the purpose of valuation, generally the following approaches are adopted:

(a)
(b)
(0

the ‘Underlying Asset’ approach;
the ‘Income’ approach; and

the *Market’ approach.

‘Underlving Asset’ Approach

(a)

In case of the “Underlying Asset’ approach, the value per equity share is
determined by arriving at the Net Assets (Assets Less Liabilities) of the
Company. The said approach is considered taking into account fair vaiue
of assets and liabilities, to the extent possible, the respective asset would
fetch or liability is payable as on the Valuation Date. The following
adjustments be made to arrive at the Fair Value per Share as per the
‘Underlying Asset’ Approach at Fair Values:

e The Fair Value of Quoted Shares held by the Company, if any, be
considered at Market Value of such shares;

= The Fair Value of Unquoted Shares held by the Company, if any, in
other entities be arrived at as per suitable approach to that entity to
arrive at Fair Value of Investments heid by the Company;

e The Fair Value of Immovable properties, if any, held by the Company
be considered at Market Value / Ready Reckoner Value as on the
Valuation Date, made available to us by the management of the
Company;

e  Adjustments may be made to book value of any other assets for their
recoverability on censervative basis after taking into account the
management representations and their estimate of the recoverability
of the same;

¢ Liabilities of the company be considered at their respective Book
Values or their payable amounts as on the Valuation Date; and

e Potentiai Contingent Liability, if any, be considered based on the

discussions with the management and their reasonable estimate of

the sutflow on acesunt of the same.
Alternatively, the vaiue may be datermined considering the book value of
the net assets (Assets Less Liabilities) of the Company and/or replacement

cost basis, to the extent possibie.
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4.3,

‘Income’ Approach

Under the 'Income’ approach, the equity shares of the company can be valued
using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method — FCFF Approach.
DCF Method ~ FCFF Approach (for instance)

0]

(i)

Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows from business

operations after considering fund requirements for projected capital

expenditure, incrementai working capitai and other adjustments are

discounted at the Weight Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The sum of the

discounted vaiue of such free cash flows and discounted value of

perpetuity is the value of the business.

Using the DCF method involves determining the fQ“QWiﬂQQ‘

s Estimating the future free cash fiows:
Future Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated
by the entity that are available to the providers of entity’s capital. The
free cash flows under the FCFF method are determined by adjusting
the Profit after tax for Depreciation and other Non-Cash items,
Interest, Incremental working capital requirements and capital
expenditure.

e Time Frame of such cash flows:
The time frame for free cash fiows is determined by separating the
vaiue of the business in the explicit projection period and the post
explicit projection period.

e Appropriate Discount rate (WACC);
Under DCF-FCFF Method, the time value of money is recognized by
applying a discount rate viz. WACC to the future free cash flows to
arrive at their present value as on the date of valuation. WACC is
considered as the most appropriate discount rate in the DCF Method,
since it refiects poth the business and the financial risk of th
company. In other words, WACC is generally the weighted average of
the company’s cost of equity capital and debt. Normally, in stabie
growth companies, the cost of equity is determined by using Capital
Asset Pricing Model ({CAPM").

s Terminai or perpetuity value:
The Perpetuity vaiue of an ongeing business is determined as present
value of the estimated future free cash flows by capitalizing the free
cash flows of the last year of the explicit projection period into
perpetuity using an appropriate rate of return and perpetual growth
rate.
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4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

s Vaiuation of Investment in other entities
The investment of the Company in other entities is to be valued as
per the valuation methodologies suitable to that entity.
* Value for Equity Shareholders:
The Value of Business so arrived considering the Net Present Vaiue of
the explicit period and terminal or perpetuity value is adjusted for net
of cash & cash equivalents, loan funds and surplus assets viz.
Deposite, Investmentg, etc. as on the valuation date to arrive at the
value for equity sharehoiders as on the Valuation Date.
‘Market” Approach
(a) Market Price Method ("MP Method”)

Since the Company is not listed on any stock exchange, the market price

of the equity share of the Company is not avallabie and the sald method is
not applicable for the current valuation exercise.
(b) Comparable Companies Multiple Method ("CCM Method™)

Under the CCM method, the value of the equity share of an unlisted
company is determined based on pubiicly availabie information of the
market valuations of the comparable companies on the basis of multiples
derived from such market information. This method is applied on the
premise that markets are perfect and have captured all the information and
factors, which are reflected through their market vaiuations.

(c) Comparabie Transaction Method ("CTM")

Under the CTM, the vailue of the equity share of an unlisted company is
determined considering the past transaction of similar companies as well as
the market value of comparable companies that have an equivalent
business model to the company being valued.
The value so arrived at under any of the approaches is divided by the
cutstanding number of equity shares to arrive at the value per share of the
Company.
Considering the proposed nature of business of the Company and based on the
review of projected financial statements made available to me by the Company,
I am of the view that ‘Income’ approach may be appropriate for the current
vaiuation exercise for arriving at fair value per equity share of the Company as
the assets may not provide true reflection of the earning capacity of the
Company. Further, based on the analysis and in my opinion, it may not ba
appropriate to consider CCM or CTM methods for the current valuation exercise,

since the present nature or size of ¢
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4.7.

5.1.

5.2,

Company may not refiect the true potentiai of business operations of the
Company as that of the comparables,

It is universally recognized that the vaiuation is not an exact science and that
estimating values necessarily involves selecting a method or approach that is
suitabie for the purpose. The application of any particular method of valuation
depends upon various factors including nature of its business, overall objective
of the transaction and the purpose of vaiuation.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recognized that valuation of any company or assets as a matter is
inherently subjective and subject to various factors, which are difficuit to predict
and beyond our control. Valuation exercise invoives various assumptions with
respect to the gpecific industry, general business and economic conditions,
which are beyond the control of the Companies. The assumptions and analysis
of market conditions, comparables, prospects of the Industry as a whole and
the Company, which influences the valuation of companies are subject to
change over a period of time and even differ between the valuers at the given
point of time.

In the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to involve the exercise of judicious
discretion and judgment taking into account all the relevant factors. There will
always be several factors, e.g., present and prospective competition, vield on
comparable securities and market sentiments, etc. which are not evident from
the face of the balance sheets but which wiil strongly influence the worth of a
share. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions. For example,
Viscount Simon Bd in Gold Coast Selection Trust Ltd. vs. Humphrey reported in
30 TC 209 (House of Lords) and quoted with approval by the Supreme Court of
India in the case reported in 176 ITR 417 as under:

If the asset takes the form of fully paid shares, the valuation will take into
account not only the terms of the agreement but a number of other factors,
such as prospective yield, marketability, the general outlook for the type of
business of the company which has allotted the shares, the result of a
contemporary prospectus offering similar shares for subscription, the capital
position of the company, so forth. There may aiso be an element of vaiue in the
fact that the holding of the shares gives control of ihe company. If the asset is
difficult to value, but is nonetheless of a money value, the best valuation
possible must be made. Valuation is an art, not an exact science. Mathematical

certainty is not demanded, nor indeed is it possible.”

“Ch
]
3

&)

~Jl

Q

=y

et

.

(Secthities or
Financi

39



CA Harsh C. Rupareiia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financiai Assets

5.3,

6.1,

6.2.

6.3,

6.4,

6.5,

In the light

Q

f the above and on consideratior
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relevant factors and
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e
circumstances as discussed and outlined herein in this report (including scope
limitation and exciusions given below), in my opinion, it is thought fit to consider
value per equity share determined as per ‘Income’ approach - DCF Method in the
ultimate analysis as the fair value per equity share of the Company, which works

out to INR 11.88 - Refer Annexure A.

EXCLUSIONS AND SCOPE LIMITATIONS

The report is subject to the scope limitations detailed hereinafter. As such, the
report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein.

No investigation of the Company’s claim to title of assets has been made for

the purpose of this valuation and their claim to such rights has been assume

(W}

to be valid. Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for matters of legal nature.
The recommendation is based on the estimates of future financial performance
as projected by the Management of the Company, which represents their view

of reasonable expectation at the point of time when they were prepared, after

giving due considerations to the commearcial and financial aspects of the
Company and the industry in which the Company operates. But such
information and estimates are not offered as assurances that the particuiar ievel
of income or profit will be achieved or events will occur as predicted. Actual
results achieved during the period covered by the projected financial statements
may vary from those contained in the statement and the variation may be
materiai. The fact that I have considered the projections in this valuation
exercise should not be construed or taken as I being associated with or a party
to such projections.

The work does not constitute certification of the historical financial statements
including the working resuits of the Company referred to in this report.
Accordingly, I am unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness or
accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report. Valuation
analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation and the vaiuation
date mentioned in the report is as per agreed terms of the engagement. It may
not be valid or used for any other purpose or as at any other date. Also, it r ay
not be valid it done on behalf of any other entity.

This report is issued on the understanding that the Company has drawn my
attention to all material information, which they are aware of concerning the
financial position of the Company and any other matter, which may have an

impact on my opinion, on the value of the eguity share of the Company,
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6.6,

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

including any significant changes that have taken place or are likely to take
place in the financial position, subsequent to the report date. I also have no
responsibiiity to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of this report.

This valuation Report does not look into the business / commerdial reasons
behind the proposed transaction or address any potential synergies to the
Company and other parties connected thereto.

In the course of the valuation, I was provided with both written and verbal
information. I have evaluated the information provided to me by the Company
through broad inquiry, analysis and review. I assume no responsibility for any
errors in the above information furnished by the Company and consequentiai
impact on the present exercise. I do not express any opinion or offer any
assurence regarding accuracy or compieteness of any information made
available to me.

The report is not, nor should it be construed as me opining or certifying any
compliance with the provisions of any law, whether in India or any other country
including companies, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any
legal implications or issues arising from any transaction proposed to be
contemplated based on this Report.

The information contained herein and the report is confidential. Any
person/party intending to provide finance/invest in the shares/businesses of the
Company, shall do so, after seeking their own professional advice and after
carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making
an informed decision. It is to be noted that any reproduction, copying or
otherwise quoting of this report or any part thereof, can be done only after
obtaining prior permission in writing.

This report is prepared exclusively for the use of the Company soleiy for the
purpose of assisting the Company, under consideration, in recommending the
fair vaiue per equity share of the Company. Further, the fees for this
engagement is not contingent upon the results arrived under this valuation
exercise.

By its very nature, valuation work cannot be regarded as an exact science, the
conclusions arrived at in many cases will of necessity be subjective and
dapendent on the exercise of individual judgement. Given the same set of facts
and using the same assumptions, opinion on the valuation exercise may differ
due to application of the facts and assumptions,

other factors. There is, therefore, no indisputable
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methodology for arriving at the vaiue per equity share. Although my conciusions
are in my opinion reasonable, it is quite possibie that others may not agree.

CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparslia, nor his employees or agents or any of them,
makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy,
reasonabieness or completeness of the information, based on which the report
is issued. All such parties expressly disclaim any and all liability for, or based
on or relating te any such information contained in the report. I am not liable
te any third party in relation to issue of this report. In no event, I shall be liable
for any loss, damage, cost or expense arising in any way from any acts carried

out by the Company referred herein or any person connected thereto.

If you require any clarifications on the above, I wouild be happy to clarify the same. I

am thankful to your team for kind co-operation and support during this assignment.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

CA HARSH CHANDRAKANT RUPARELIA

IBBI Reglstration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106

/' RVREGN. NO\.\‘«,
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RED VALUER - Securities or Financial Assets . GJa O

Membership No. ICMAI RVO/S&FA/00054
ICAI Membership No. 160171

Date: 2" June 2022

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure A

INR in Crores

Particulars 310323 | 31-03-24 | 31035 [ 31032 310327 | 31-03-28 | 310399 | 31.03-36 | 310331 v
PAT ~1§6.57 6171 ~21.3% 45.34 107.54 7741 261,27 352.67 387.78 294.33
Depreciation 35,00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 33.00 33.00 33.00 33.00 34.65
Interest (net of tax) 132.00 155.63 147.88 119.50 114.00 108.50 97.50 92.00 78.70 59.85
Adjustments:
Adj for Working Capital 491.47 -267.29 163.36 130.16 162.21 -38.98 -4.87 -123.02 -143.94 -75.61
Additions to Fixed Assets (Net) -30.00 -30.00 -40.00 -40.00 -40.00 -40.00 -40.00 -40.00 -40.00 -34.65
Net Inflows/{ Outflows) 48180 168.27 204081 20450 278,98 230,63 31601 ais.8c siz.ea 27857
| Discounting Factor (WACC) 17.5% 0.02 0.79 0.67 0.57 0.48 0.41 0.35 .30 0.25
N&t Prasent Vahe of Taflows/{Duifiows) : 42641 -13220| 33635 _ 38748 18331 “88.70 12164 93.87 80.12
[¢ ion for Perpetuity INR in Crores|
FCFF for Perpetuity 27857
Growth Rate 5%
Total Capitalised Value 2,228.60
Discount Factor 0.25
Present Value of Perpetuity ... .|. .| . 56586
‘Ex_ltv Vaiug of Company INR in Crores
Net Present Value of Expicit Period 1,229.36
Present Value of Perpetuity 565.86
FCEE 1,795.22
Add/
Cash and bank balances 204.00
Loan Receivable 185.57
Loan to JV's 25.00
Borrowings -2,300.00
Investments 212.23
Equity Value for Shareholders 122.02
[No. of Equity Shares (on diluted basis) 3 104,469,333
ﬁitv Value for Shareholders % 11.68
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STERLING & WILSON

Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (the
“Company”) on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) of Sterling and Wilson Middle
East Electromechanical LLC (“SW ME” or “the Transferor Company”) WITH Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited (“SWPL” or “the Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders
pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

i

Registered Office: Universal Majestic, 9th Floor, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (W), Mumbai — 400 043

BACKGROUND:

A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board’) of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“the
Transferee Company” or “SWPL”) is scheduled to be held on 6™ June, 2022 to consider
and recommend the proposed Scheme of Arrangement of the Transferor Company with
the Company and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”) to be implemented as
per the terms specified in the scheme.

The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board of
Directors to adopt a report explaining the effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on each
class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and non-promoter
Shareholders and the same is required to be appended with the notice of the meeting of
Shareholders and / or creditors. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with
the requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

This report is made by the Board after perusing, inter alia, the following necessary
documents (‘Documents’): a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement initialled by the Director for
the purposes of identification. b) Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
of the Transferor and Transferee Company. c) Audited accounts of the Transferor and
Transferee Company as on 31st March, 2021. d) Valuation report issued by Registered
Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets certifying the valuation of Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited e) Provisional statement of accounts of the Transferor and Transferee
Company as on 28™ February, 2022.

BOARD REPORT:

Based on review of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement and the above-mentioned
Documents, the Board has formed the opinion that:

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the
entire paid- up share capital of the Transferor Company is held by the Company, as a
result of the proposed Arrangement, the shares of the Transferor Company held by the
Company shall stand cancelled and there shall be no issuance of shares or payment of
any consideration by the Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company.

Page 1 of 4

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Associates of: Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited

Phone: (91-22) 25485300 | Fax: (91-22) 25485331 | CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538
Email: mumbai@sterlingwilson.com | www.sterlingandwilson.com

ANNEXURE C
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As the entire undertaking of thevfransferor Company shall stand transferred to the
Company, the rights and interests of the shareholders and / or the creditors of the
Transferor Company shall not be affected and the Scheme shall also not be prejudicial to
the interest of the shareholders and / or creditors of the Transferor Company.

The proposed Arrangement would, inter alia, have the following benefits:

The reduction of share capital and reorganization of reserves of the Transferee Company,
would, inter alia, entail the following benefits:

a.  The reduction of share capital in the manner proposed in the Scheme would enable
the Transferee Company to rationalize its capital structure and present a true and
fair financial position of the Transferee Company in a better manner, which
commensurate with its business and assets.

b.  The Scheme envisages reduction by way of cancellation and payout its CCPS and
face value of equity shares so to create a Business Reconstruction Reserve Account
(“BRR Account”) which shall be utilized to write off the accumulated losses in the
Profit & Loss Account appearing as on the Appointed Date in the books of the
Transferee Company.

c.  The Scheme would not affect the ability or liquidity of the Transferee Company to
meet its obligations / commitments in the normal course of business. Further, this
Scheme would also not in any way adversely affect the ordinary operations of the
Transferee Company.

Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into Transferee Company would,
inter alia, entail the following benefits:

a.  SW ME has been sustaining substantial business losses over a number of years due
to a weak overall business performance and general business environment,
including the weak business environment in the Middle East (as also globally) on
account of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Further, RBI-prescribed One Time
Restructuring of debt at the ultimate shareholder level (i.e., at Shapoorji Pallonji
Group level) further stressed the business of SW ME due to non-availability of
normal banking credit facilities (both fund-based and non-fund based) which would
otherwise be available. Resultantly, there has been a steep decline in the overall
business of SW ME.

b.  In the context of the above, given that the management of SW ME and SWPL do

not foresee a meaningful revival of the business of SW ME, it is envisaged that the
business of SW ME be amalgamated with and into SWPL under this Scheme.

Page 2 of 4

45



< /
\/

The amalgamation consolidation of group structure, reduction in overheads
including administrative, managerial and other expenditure, significant reduction
in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be
carried out by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

The proposed Scheme shall also enable the Transferor Company to address
competitive regulatory environment, risks and policies, better management, ability
to strategies the remaining business for long term growth, consolidation and
creation of shareholder's value.

3. The effect of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement on the stakeholders of the

Company would be as follows:

Effect of the Scheme on:

(a) | Shareholders 1 The shareholders have provided their consent affidavit
to SWPL with respect to the proportionate reduction
and cancellation of 50% of equity share capital and
100% reduction and cancellation of preference share
capital as on 31t March 2022 which would be effected
by Part Il of the Scheme.

(b) | Key managerial | No impact since the KMPs would continue to be KMPs

personnel (KMP) post the effectiveness of the Scheme.

(c) | Directors Except Promoter director.

(d) | Promoters The impact on the rights of the Promoters would be

proportionate to the reduction and cancellation of 50%
of equity share capital held by them, in their capacity as
shareholders, as on 31%t March 2022, which would be
effected by Part Il of the Scheme.

Non-promoter

No impact since the Scheme does not affect the rights

members | and interests of the members or the creditors of the
Company.
(f) | Depositors No impact since there are no depositors in the
Company.
(g) | Creditors No impact since the Scheme does not affect the rights

and interests of the members or the creditors of the
Company.

Employees of the
Company

No impact as the employees would continue to be
employed with the Company

Page 3 of 4
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4. Inthe opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the
Company, its Shareholders, Creditors and other Stakeholders and the terms thereof are
fair and reasonable. It is for these reasons that the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the Scheme at their meeting held on 6t June, 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

\ \
g‘l\\;x‘\\\ \\,‘;\;,\ (
\

ZARINE Y. DARUVALA
Director

DIN: 00190585

Place: Mumbai

Date: 5™ June, 2022
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STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
PROVISIONAL STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2022

ANNEXURE E

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 135.21 140.75
Capital Work-in-Progress 4 0.00 -
Right-of-use assets 4.1 24.29 28.29
Other intangible assets 5 1.13 1.60
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 94.79 94.79
(i) Loans 7 11.38 11.68
(iii) Other financial assets 8 1.61 1.25
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 43.90 43.90
Non-current tax assets (net) 10 75.89 65.75
Other non-current assets 11 14.72 6.46
Total non-current assets 402.93 394.47
Current assets
Inventories 12 36.99 34.40
Financial assets
(i) Investments 13 0.79 0.77
(i) Trade receivables 14 1,240.09 1,248.61
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 9.63 48.72
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 40.25 49.72
(v) Loans 17 2,647.12 2,868.69
(vi) Other financial assets 18 645.24 1,028.80
Other current assets 19 253.37 311.91
Asset held-for-sale - 9.39
Total current assets 4,873.48 5,601.03
Total assets 5,276.42 5,995.50
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 20 29.37 29.37
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares 20 1,802.50 1,802.50
1,831.87 1,831.87
Other equity 21
- Capital redemption reserve 50.00 50.00
- Securities premium account 560.04 560.04
- Retained earnings (756.10) (614.33)
- General Reserve 13.39 13.39
- Other comprehensive income 1.09 1.09
(131.58) 10.19
Perpetual Loan 920.61 958.21
Total equity 2,620.90 2,800.27
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 748.00 750.00
(i) Lease liabilities 24.76
Provisions 23 13.08 17.29
Total non-current liabilities 761.08 792.05
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 644.11 622.29
(ii) Lease liabilities 51 26.82 5.46
(iii) Trade payables 25
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 23.34
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 805.94 1,096.53
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 26 116.56 124.86
Other current liabilities 27 270.87 479.00
Provisions 28 22.86 44.29
Current tax liabilities (net) 29 7.26 7.41
Total current liabilities 1,894.43 2,403.18
Total liabilities 2,655.51 3,195.23
Total equity and liabilities 5,276.41 5,995.50

163



STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

PROVISIONAL STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2022

Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 30 747.60 2,144.15
Other income 31 46.04 224.25
Total income 793.64 2,368.40
Expenses
Cost of construction materials, stores and spare parts 32 455.08 1,262.20
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 33 1.93 2.76
Direct project costs 34 296.48 828.28
Employee benefits expense 35 75.45 180.03
Other expenses 38 30.68 105.96
Total expenses 859.62 2,379.22
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (65.98) (10.82)
Finance costs 36 64.81 97.30
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 10.98 23.86
(Loss) / Profit before income tax (141.77) (131.98)
Exceptional items
Provision for impairment of loans to subsidiaries 40.00
(Loss) before income tax (141.77) (171.98)
Tax expense: a7
Current tax - 1.87
Less:Mat credit - -
Provision for earlier years - -
Deferred tax (credit) / charge - 31.10
- 32.97
(Loss) / Profit for the year (141.77) (204.95)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability - 1.78
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - 1.78
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (141.77) (203.17)

164



STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

PROVISIONAL STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2022

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax (141.77) (171.98)
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10.98 23.86
Supplier balances written back (0.55) (11.41)
Provision for gratuity (4.21) (2.24)
Provision for leave encashment (7.47) (6.33)
Bad debts written off 1.92 27.29
(Write back)\Provision for bad and doubtful debts written back (1.00) (14.93)
Loans and advances written off - 1.04
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) 0.02 (0.27)
Property, plant and equipment written off - 6.40
(Write back) / provision for foreseeable losses (net) (15.07) 8.60
Provision for liquidated damages (net) (0.00) (11.46)
Dividend income - (2.00)
Guarantee commission - (1.20)
Finance costs 64.81 97.30
Interest income (43.90) (161.45)
Financial assets measured at FVTPL - net change in fair value - (6.90)
Provision for impairment of loan - 40.00
Gain on foreclosure of lease rental - (0.47)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 34.51 34.65
Operating profit before working capital changes (101.72) (151.50)
Working capital adjustments
(Increase) in inventories (2.59) 16.75
(Increase) in trade receivables 2.43 59.21
Decrease\(Increase) in loans and advances (0.81) (26.39)
(Increase) in other financial assets 383.56 11.54
(Increase) in other current and non-current assets 32.49 51.19
Increase in trade payable, other current liabilites and (536.15) (404.71)
provisions
Net change in working capital (121.05) (292.40)
Cash flows generated from operating activities (222.77) (443.90)
Income tax (paid) (net) (10.29) (31.17)
Effects of exchange differences on translation of assets and 0.17 0.17
liabilities
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) (232.89) (474.91)
B) Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in equity shares of a subsidiary (0.00) (4.88)
(Purchase) of non-current investments (0.02) (0.02)
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and intangible (0.20) (3.28)
assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.60 11.81
(Purchase) of fixed deposits, net 9.11 1.32
Loan given to subsidiaries(net) 210.77 (794.49)
Interest received 43.90 161.45
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B) 272.16 (628.10)
C) Cash flows from financing activities
Perpetual loan (37.60) -
Buyers credit 11.01 -
Unsecured loans obtained 130.25 1,709.94
Unsecured loans repaid (82.19) -1,249.61
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Increase in cash credit from banks (net) (15.60) 9.48
Secured loans obtained 341.45 1,338.59
Repayment of secured loans (net) (365.11) -587.56
Repayment of lease liabilities (5.28) -8.28
Finance costs paid (55.30) -125.18
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (C) (78.36) 1,087.39
Net movement in currency translation (D) - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) (39.09) (15.62)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 48.72 64.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9.63 48.72

Notes :
The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS

1

4

7’) on Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash comprises cash on hand and current accounts. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or

less from the date of acquisition).

Components of cash and cash equivalents

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 9.49 47.93
Cheques in hand - 0.08
Cash on hand 0.14 0.71
9.63 48.72

The movement of borrowings as per Ind AS 7 is as follows:

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activity, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars As at Changes considered Non-cash As at
1 April 2022 in the standalone changes (including 31 October 2022
statement of foreign exchange
cashflows adjustment)
Long-term borrowings - 748.00 - 748.00
Short-term borrowings 637.26 6.84 - 644.11
Particulars As at Changes considered Non-cash As at
1 April 2021 in the standalone changes (including 31 March 2022
statement of foreign exchange
cashflows adjustment)
Long-term borrowings 14.97 735.03 - 750.00
Short-term borrowings 1,063.46 485.80 0 637.26

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)
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A. Share capital

Note Balance as at Changes in Balance as at
1 April 2021 share capital 31 March 2022
during the year
Equity share capital 20 29.37 - 29.37
29.37 - 29.37

Previous year numbers are in italics

B. Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares

Note

Balance as at
1 April 2021

Changes in
share capital
during the year

Balance as at
31 March 2022

preference shares

Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative

20

1,802.50

1,802.50

1,502.50

300.00

1,802.50

Previous year numbers are in italics

C. Other equity

Sub- | ltems of other comprehensive income| Sub- Total

Deemed
equity
contribution
received
from the
holding
company

Retained
earnings

Securities
premium
account

General
reserve

Capital total Foreign
Redemption
reserve

flow
hedge

Other items total
currency | Effective of other

translation| portion | comprehensive
reserve | of cash income

Balance as at 1 April -
2020

-70.19

560.04

13.39

50.00| 553.24

(141) - -

Total comprehensive -
income for the period

Profit for the period -

-339.20

-[(339.20)

(339.20)

ltems of OCI for the -
period, net of tax:

Remeasurement -
of the net defined
benefit liability

Exchange differences -
in translating financial
statements of foreign
operations

Loan towards Equity (335.00)

Total comprehensive
income for the period

(339.20;

(339.20;

(0.69) - (339.203

Balance as at 31
March 2021

(409.39)

560.04

13.39

50.00| 214.04

(33.12)

(33.12)[ (372.32)

Balance as at 1 April -
2022

(614.33)

560.04

13.39

50.00 9.10

1.09 1.09 10.19

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Profit for the year

(141.77)

(141.77)

(141.77)

Iltems of OCI for the
period, net of tax:

Remeasurement
of the net defined
benefit liability, net
of tax
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Sub- | Items of other comprehensive income| Sub- Total
Deemed |Retained |Securities| General Capital total Foreign Other items total
equity earnings | premium | reserve |Redemption currency | Effective of other
contribution account reserve translation| portion | comprehensive
received reserve | of cash income
from the flow
holding hedge
company
Exchange differences - - - - - - - - - -
in translating financial
statements of foreign
operations
Loan towards Equity - - - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive -l (141.77) - (141.77) - - - -| (141.77)
income for the year
Balance as at 31 -] (756.10) 560.04 13.39 50.00((132.66) - - 1.09 1.09] (131.58)
October 2022
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Background

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“the Company”)
is one of India’s leading Mechanical, Electricals and
Plumbing and Fire-fighting services (collectively
known as ‘MEP services’). The Company has a pan
India presence and international operations in Middle
East, South East Asia, Africa, Europe and Australia.

The Company is specialised in complete turn-key
solutions, offering a large spectrum of services
like electrical contracting, heat ventilation and air-
conditioning systems, public health and safety, LV
systems, EPC contracting and data centre solutions
with having experience of executing more than 3,500
projects.

The Company was established in 1927 as Wilson
Electric Works. The Company was renamed as Sterling
and Wilson Electricals Private Limited in 1974 and
subsequently as Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
in financial year 2007. The name has been changed
to Sterling and Wilson Limited on 24 June 2009 and
subsequently as Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
on 7 November 2014.

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited is a subsidiary
of Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited,
effective from 17 April 2008.

Basis of preparation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements

Statement of compliance

The accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant rules issued thereafter.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone Ind AS financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded off to the nearest two decimal places in
crores, unless otherwise stated.

Current/ non-current classification

The Schedule Il to the Act requires assets and liabilities
to be classified as either current or non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of
the following criteria:

(i) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for
sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

(ii) itis expected to be realised within twelve months
from the reporting date;

(iii) itis held primarily for the purposes of being traded;
or

(iv) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

Aliability is classified as current when it satisfies any of
the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s
normal operating cycle;

(i) it is due to be settled within twelve months from
the reporting date;

(iii) itis held primarily for the purposes of being traded;
or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast
twelve months from the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out above which are in
accordance with the Schedule 11l to the Act.

In respect of the engineering, procurement and
construction services (EPC) segment of the Company,
the construction projects usually have long gestation
periods and based on the nature of services and the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
36 months for the purpose of current - non-current
classification of assets and liabilities. For the other
operations, the operating cycle is ascertained as
12 months for the purpose of current — non-current
classification of the assets and liabilities.
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d

(i)

(ii)

Basis of measurement

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) that are measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments); and

- employee’s defined benefit plan as per actuarial
valuation.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use
of judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in
the year ending 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Evaluation of percentage of completion

Determination of revenue under percentage of
completion method necessarily involves making
estimates, some of which are of a technical nature,
concerning, where relevant, the percentage of
completion, costs to completion, the expected revenue
from the project or activity and foreseeable losses to
completion. Estimates of project income, as well as
project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect
of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in the
standalone financial statements for the period in which
such changes are determined.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment is based on collective assessment of
industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
on the historical experience with similar assets. It is

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

possible, however, that future results from operations
could be materially affected by changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any
period would be affected by changes in these factors
and circumstances. The estimated useful lives are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

Recoverability of deferred income tax assets

In determining the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets, the Company primarily considers current and
expected profitability of applicable operating business
segments and their ability to utilise any recorded tax
assets. The Company reviews its deferred income
tax assets at every reporting period end, taking into
consideration the availability of sufficient current
and projected taxable profits, reversals of taxable
temporary differences and tax planning strategies.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations and
other employee benefit obligations

The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

Compensated absences which are not expected to
occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services
are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
other long-term employment benefits.

The present value of the obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date by an
Independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognises each period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures. The obligation is measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are
based on the market yields on Government securities
as at the balance sheet date.

Provision for obsolete inventory

The Company reviews its inventory to assess loss
on account of obsolescence on a regular basis. In
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(vi)

determining whether provision for obsolescence
should be recorded in the standalone statement of
profit and loss, the Company makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is any future saleability of the product, including
demand forecasts and shelf life of the product. The
provision for obsolescence of inventory is based on the
ageing and past movement of the inventory.

Impairment losses on trade receivables

The Company reviews its trade receivables to assess
impairment at regular intervals. The Company’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables.
In determining whether impairment losses should be
reported in the standalone statement of profit and
loss, the Company makes judgments as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
Accordingly, an allowance for expected credit loss is
made where there is an identified loss event or condition
which, based on previous experience, is evidence
of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

In case of trade receivables, lease receivables and
contract assets, the Company follows a simplified
approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL
is measured and recognition as loss allowance. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime of ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible defaults events over the expected life
of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the
lifetime ECL which result from default events that are
possible within 12-months from the reporting date.

(vii) Impairment losses on investment

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments
carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently
when there is indication for impairment. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is accounted for.

(viii)Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values,
which includes overseeing all significant fair value
meaasurements, including Level 3 fair values by the
management. The management regularly reviews

significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.
The management regularly reviews significant

unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as broker quotes or
pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the management assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind
AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which the valuations should be classified. Significant
valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board
of Directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value
of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels
of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
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(ix)

3.1

Further information about the assumptions made
in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:-

- Note 48 — Financial Instruments.
Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies
to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate. The Company determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease, together with both periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease if the Company
is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers
all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period
of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on
the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Significant accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably and is measured at cost.
Subsequent to recognition, all items of property, plant
and equipment (except for freehold land) are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

If the cost of an individual part of property, plant and
equipment is significant relative to the total cost of
the item, the individual part is accounted for and
depreciated separately.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price plus any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and the initial estimate of
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if
any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

ltems such as spare parts, stand-by equipments and
servicing that meets the definition of property, plant
and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated
over the useful life. Cost of repairs and maintenance
are recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Assets under construction includes the cost of property,
plant and equipment that are not ready to use at the
balance sheet date. Advances paid to acquire property,
plant and equipment before the balance sheet date
are disclosed under other non-current assets. Assets
under construction are not depreciated as these assets
are not yet available for use.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has
been provided using the straight line method in the
manner and at the rates prescribed by Schedule Il of
the Act, except for certain items of plant and machinery
(such as welding machine, drilling machine, porta cabin
etc. whose useful life has been estimated to be five
years) wherein depreciation is provided based on the
estimated useful lives of the plant and machinery so
acquired, determined by the Company’s management
based on the technical evaluation carried out by the
projects team. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is
provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of). The useful
lives used, as set out in the following table, are lower
than or as those specified in Schedule Il of the Act as
under :

Assets Life in no. of Schedule 1l
years useful lives

Office buildings 60 years 60 years

Plant and S5yearsto 15 15 years

equipment years

Furniture and 3 years to 10 10 years

fixtures years
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Assets Life in no. of Schedule 1l
years useful lives
Vehicles 8 years to 10 8 years to 10
years years
Computer 3yearsto 6 3years/6
hardware years years

3.2

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives
unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Lease hold improvements are amortised over the
primary lease period or the useful life of the assets,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Assets costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated
in the year/period of purchase.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise primarily of computer
software (including enterprise systems). Intangible
assets are initially recorded at cost and subsequent
to recognition, intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation

Other intangible assets are amortised over an expected
benefit period of one to five years using straight line
method.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed
at the end of each financial year. If any of these
expectations differ from previous estimates, such
changes is accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of an item of intangible asset is
measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and
loss in the period the asset is derecognised.

3.3 Financial instruments

(a)

(b)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are
initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at

- amortised cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or
- FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and
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- the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective
of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way
the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

Financial assets: Business model assessment
(Continued)

—  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated
— e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate,
including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash
flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued
(but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
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include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant
at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains
and losses

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL:

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in
the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Debt investments at FVOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition,

gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to the standalone statement of profit
and loss.

(iv) Equity investments at FVOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
standalone statement of profit and loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to the standalone statement of profit
and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification,
measurement and gains and losses

subsequent

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL. Afinancial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or
it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

(c)

(d)

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
the standalone statement of profit and loss. See Note
3.3 (e) for financial liabilities designated as hedging
instruments.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(e)

Derivative financial
accounting

instruments and hedge

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for separately if the host contract is not a
financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are
generally recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

The Company designates certain derivatives as
hedging instruments to hedge variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the
Company documents the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company
also documents the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including
whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item
and hedging instrument are expected to offset each
other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in
the fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the other equity under ‘effective portion
of cash flow hedges’. The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in
OCl is limited to the cumulative change in fair value
of the hedged item, determined on a present value
basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivatives is
recognised immediately in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial item such
as inventory, the amount accumulated in other equity
is included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial
item when itis recognised. For all other hedged forecast
transactions, the amount accumulated in other equity
is reclassified to the standalone statement of profit and
loss in the same period or periods during which the
hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

3.4

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires,
is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting
for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount
that has been accumulated in other equity remains
there until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in
recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in
the non-financial item’s cost on its initial recognition
or for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the same
period or periods as the hedged expected future cash
flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected
to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated
in other equity are immediately reclassified to the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at
fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
(i) in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the standalone financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels, as described as follows,
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : inputs that are unobservable for the asset or
liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
standalone financial statements at fair value on a
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3.5

3.6

3.7

recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each
reporting period.

Inventories

Construction material, stores and spare parts at
central stores comprises of modules, wires, cables,
components and spares. Stock in trade comprises of
land acquired for Solar EPC projects.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value; cost is determined on the moving weighted
average method basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Statement of cash flows

The Statement of cash flows are prepared using the
Indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank
balances and short-term fixed bank deposits that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
These also include bank overdrafts and cash credit
facility that form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred
tax assets and non-current assets classified as
held for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Corporation estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or Cash-Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets.

3.8

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
Post-employment benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan for the post-
employment benefit of an employee under which
the Company pays fixed periodic contributions
into Provident Fund and Employee State
Insurance Corporations in accordance with Indian
regulations. The Company has no further legal or
constructive obligation to pay once contributions
are made. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the standalone statement of
profit and loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees.
In respect of foreign branch, the Company’s
contribution towards defined contribution benefit
plan is accrued in compliance with the domestic
laws of the country in which the standalone foreign
branch operates.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is
a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefitis discounted to determine its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognises each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement
and measures each unit separately to build up
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the final obligation. The obligation is measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The discount rates used for determining
the present value of the obligation under defined
benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
Government securities as at the balance sheet
date.

All remeasurement gains and losses arising
from defined benefit plans are recognised in the
standalone statement of other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur and not
reclassified to the standalone statement of profit
and loss in the subsequent period. The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or
when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
the standalone statement of profit and loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term
employment benefits, other than gratuity, is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated at the balance sheet date on the
basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit Method and is
discounted to its present value and the fair value of any
related assets is deducted. Remeasurement gains or
losses are recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Compensated absences which are not expected to
occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services
are recognised as a liability at the present value of the

3.9

defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.
The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under long term employment
benefits, are based on the market yields on Government
securities as at the balance sheet date.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating
losses are not provided for.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the
expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under
the contract. The provision for an onerous contract
is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
such a provision is made, the Company recognises
any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.

3.10 Revenue recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01
April 2018. The Company has applied the following
accounting policy for revenue recognition:
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Revenue from contracts with customers:

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with
customers based on a five step model as set outin Ind
AS 115:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A
contract is defined as an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract
that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service
to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the Company
will allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance
obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

1. The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs; or

2. The Company’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into

account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes and duty. The Company assesses
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria
to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal
in all of its revenue arrangements.

Revenue from works contracts

Revenue from works contracts, where the outcome
can be estimated reliably, is recognised under the
percentage of completion method by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity. The stage
of completion is measured by calculating the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total
costs of a contract. Determination of revenues under
the percentage of completion method necessarily
involves making estimates by the management.

When the Company satisfies a performance obligation
by delivering the promised goods or services it creates
a contract asset based on the amount of consideration
to be earned by the performance. Where the amount
of consideration received from a customer exceeds
the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a
contract liability.

Any variations in contract work, claims, and incentive
payments are included in the transaction price if it is
highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will
not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved.

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money
if the period between the transfer of goods or services
and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months
and there is a significant financing benefit either to the
customer or the Company.

Revenue from sale of goods

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods
once the customer takes possession of the goods.
Revenue respresents the invoice value of goods
provided to third parties net of discounts and sales
laxes/value added taxes

Operation and maintenance income:

The Company recognises revenue from Operations &
Maintenance services using the time-elapsed measure
of progress i.e input method on a straight-line basis.

Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities or
deliverables are provided under a single arrangement,
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each deliverable that is considered to be a separate unit
of account is accounted for separately. The allocation
of consideration from a revenue arrangement to its
separate units of account is based on the relative fair
value of each unit. If the fair value of the delivered item
is not reliably measurable, then revenue is allocated
based on the difference between the total arrangement
consideration and the fair value of the undelivered item.

3.11 Unbilled Revenue, Advances from customers,

progress payments and retention

Revenue from services performed on contracts from
the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date is
recognised as unbilled revenue.

Advances received from customers in respect of
contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against
progress billing as per terms of the contract.

Progress payments received are adjusted against
amount receivable from customers in respect of the
contract work performed.

Amounts retained by the customers until the
satisfactory completion of the contracts are recognised
as receivables.

3.12Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses
whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
asset the Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset —
this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of
the capability of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier
has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified;

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

The Company has the tight to direct the use of the asset.
The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how
and for what purpose the asset is used.

As alessee
Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure
the right-of-use asset at cost which comprises initial
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Company measures right-of-use assets at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Lease liabilities

Atthe commencement date, alessee shall measure the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall
be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that
have a lease term of less than 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets, including IT Equipment. The
Company recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The election for short-term leases shall be made by
class of underlying asset to which the right of use
relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping
of underlying assets of a similar nature and use in
Company’s operations. The election for leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value can be made
on a lease-by-lease basis.

3.13Recognition of dividend income, interest income

or expense

Dividend income is recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss on the date on which the
Company’s right to receive payment is established.
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Interest income or expense is recognised using the
effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interestincome and expense, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent
to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.

3.14Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or to an item recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using
applicable tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset
only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’)

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current
tax in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The
credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is
recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company

will pay normal income tax during the period for which
the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off
against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised
as an deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid
convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of
unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case
of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax asset
can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised
or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

3.15Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions
- Initial Recognition

All transactions that are not denominated in
the Company’s functional currency are foreign
currency transactions. These transactions
are initially recorded in the functional currency
by applying the appropriate daily rate which
best approximates the actual rate of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during
the year are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss.

- Measurement of foreign currency items at
the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences are
recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss, except exchange differences
arising from the translation of the equity
investments classified as fair value through
OCI (FVOCI) which is recognised in OCI.

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
(branches) including goodwill and fair value

adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated
into INR, the functional currency of the Company,
at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into INR at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and accumulated in
Equity (as exchange differences on translating the
financial statements of a foreign operation).

3.16 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including
exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

3.17 Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended
to be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

Any reductions in the carrying amount and any
reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to
the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Cost of investments include acquisition charges such
as brokerage, fees and duties.

Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on
the basis of first in first out (FIFO) basis of carrying
amount of investment disposed off.

3.18 Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the period, by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.
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Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average
number of equity and dilutive (potential) equity
equivalent shares outstanding during the period except
where the results would be anti-dilutive.

3.19 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date
provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such events is
adjusted with the standalone financial statements.
Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of
material size or nature are only disclosed.

3.20 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.

3.21 Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards
Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from
1 April 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition
as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under
Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.
The Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its standalone financial
statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items
produced while the company is preparing the asset for
its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such
sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The
Company does not expect the amendments to have
any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and
equipment in its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling
a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification
and the Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its standalone financial
statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes
when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.
The Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its standalone financial
statements.

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might
arise because of how lease incentives were described
in that illustration. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its
standalone financial statements.
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4 Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress

10

Particulars Office Leasehold Plant and | Furniture | Vehicles | Computer Total Capital Total
buildings | improvements | equipment and hardware (A) work-in- (A+B)
fixtures progress
(B)

Gross carrying amount :
Balance as at 1 April 2020 119.30 16.92 71.29 2.05 6.14 20.79 236.49 7.61 244.10
Add: Exchange differences on translation of - (0.00) (0.15) (0.00) 0.02 (0.02) (0.16) - (0.16)
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year 2.48 1.79 12.28 0.05 0.74 0.29 17.63 - 17.63
Less: Disposals during the year - - 3.25 - 0.59 0.47 4.30 7.29 11.59
Balance as at 31 March 2021 121.78 18.70 80.17 2.10 6.31 20.59 249.66 0.33 249.99
Balance as at 1 April 2021 121.78 18.70 80.17 2.10 6.31 20.59 249.66 0.33 249.99
Add: Transfer - - - - - - - - -
Add: Exchange differences on translation of - 0.15 -0.00 -0.01 -0.08 0.06 - 0.06
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year - 0.00 2.69 0.00 0.19 0.14 3.03 - 3.03
Less: Disposals during the year 0.05 - 21.88 0.23 1.14 1.33 24.62 0.33 24.95
Balance as at 31 March 2022 121.74 18.71 61.13 1.87 5.35 19.33 228.13 - 228.13
Balance as at 1 April 2022 121.74 18.71 61.13 1.87 5.35 19.33 228.13 - 228.13
Add: Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year 0.00 0.10 0.07 0.17 - 0.17
Less: Disposals during the year 11.47 0.10 0.14 0.12 11.83 11.83
Balance as at 31 October 2022 121.74 18.71 49.76 1.78 5.21 19.27 216.47 - 216.47
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 April 2020 6.01 8.09 20.16 0.84 2.48 12.96 50.54 - 50.54
Add: Exchange differences on translation of - -0.00 -0.02 0.00 -0.00 -0.01 (0.04) - (0.04)
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year 1.93 4.22 8.96 0.23 0.66 3.72 19.72 - 19.72
Less: Disposals during the year - - 0.36 - 0.39 0.38 1.13 - 1.13
Balance as at 31 March 2021 7.94 12.31 28.74 1.07 2.75 16.29 69.09 - 69.09
Balance as at 1 April 2021 7.94 12.31 28.74 1.07 2.75 16.29 69.09 - 69.09
Add: Exchange differences on translation of - -0.00 -0.05 0.00 0.00 0.06 0.02 - 0.02
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year 1.93 2.82 7.88 0.20 0.61 245 15.89 - 15.89
Less: Disposals during the year 0.02 - 4.56 0.14 1.00 1.29 7.01 - 7.01
Balance as at 31 March 2022 9.85 15.13 32.01 1.13 2.36 17.51 77.99 - 77.99
Balance as at 1 April 2022 9.85 15.13 32.01 1.13 2.36 17.51 77.99 77.99
Add: Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year 1.13 1.47 3.03 0.09 0.28 0.47 6.47 6.47
Less: Disposals during the year 2.93 0.03 0.13 0.12 3.21 3.21
Balance as at 31 Oct 2022 10.98 16.60 32.11 1.20 2.50 17.86 81.26 81.26
At 31 October 2022 110.77 2.11 17.65 0.58 2.70 1.41 135.21 - 135.21
At 31 March 2022 111.89 3.58 29.12 0.74 2.99 1.82 150.14 - 150.13
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(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)
5 Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Particulars Computer Total
software
Gross carrying amount :
Balance as at 1 April 2020 15.15 15.15
Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations -0.03 (0.03)
Add: Additions during the year 0.05 0.05
Less: Disposals during the year 2.75 2.75
Balance as at 31 March 2021 12.42 12.42
Balance as at 1 April 2021 12.42 12.42
Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (0.11) (0.11)
Add: Additions during the year 0.26 0.26
Less: Deleton during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 12.57 12.56
Balance as at 1 April 2022 12.57 12.57
Add: Additions during the year 0.04 0.04
Balance as at 31 Oct 2022 12.61 12.61
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses:
Balance as at 1 April 2020 8.45 8.45
Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations -0.02 (0.02)
Add: Amortisation for the year 2.05 2.05
Less: Disposals during the year 0.93 0.93
Balance as at 31 March 2021 9.56 9.56
Balance as at 1 April 2021 9.56 9.56
Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.10 0.10
Add: Amortisation for the year 1.31 1.31
Less: Deleton during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10.97 10.97
Balance as at 1 April 2022 10.97 10.97
Add: Amortisation for the year 0.51 0.51
Less: Deleton during the year
Balance as at 31 Oct 2022 11.48 11.48
At 31 Oct 2022 1.13 1.13
At 31 March 2022 1.61 1.60
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
6 Non-current investments
Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)
(a) Unquoted, in subsidiaries (at cost)
Sterling and Wilson International FZE 1.12 1.12
1,000 [31 March 2022: 1,000] shares of AED 1,000 each, fully paid-up -
Range Consultants Private Limited # 4.96 4.96
150,000 [31 March 2022: 150,000] shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Sterling and Wilson Security Systems Private Limited 0.01 0.01
10,000 [31 March 2022: 10,000] shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited 0.17 0.17
6,375,000 [31 March 2022 : 6,375,000] shares of Naira 1 each, each -
fully paid up
Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions AG 0.35 0.35
50,000 [31 March 2022 : 50,000] shares of CHF 1 each, fully paid up -
Sterling and Wilson Middle East W.L.L. 0.19 0.19
98 [31 March 2022 : 98] shares of Qatari Riyals 1,000 each, fully paid up -
GCO Australia PTY Ltd 0.18 0.18
38,000 [31 March 2022 : 38,000] shares of AUD 1 each, fully paid up -
Sterling & Wilson Nigeria FZE 0.73 0.73
100,000 [31 March 2022: Nil] shares of USD 1 each, fully paid-up -
Sterling & Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Pvt Ltd 5.00 5.00
5,000,000[31 March 2022: Nil] shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up -
Sterling & Wilson Middle East Electro Mechanical L.L.C. 0.62 0.62
3,000[31 March 2022: Nil] shares of AED 1000 each, fully paid-up
# The Company has pledged 100% of equity shares held by it in the -
share capital of Range Consultants Private Limited as a collateral
security to secure bank loans.
(b) Unquoted, in others (at fair value through profit or loss) -
Enel X e-Mobility Pvt Ltd 4.27 4.27
Transtel Utilities Ltd, UK*# 0.00 0.00
10 [31 March 2022 : 10] shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid up -
SWB Power Ltd*# 0.00 0.00
10 [31 March 2022 : 10] shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid up -
Monijin Interviews Private Limited (Refer note 48(b)) 28.70 28.70

237,037 [31 March 2022: 237,037] shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up

* The investments in Transtel Utilities Ltd, UK and SWB Power Ltd.
are shown at Cost since the information about the fair value of those
investments are not available. Management is of the view that the
difference between Cost and Fair value is not material.

# The Investment value is less than Rs. 1,000
Investment in Preference Shares

(Measured at fair value through Profit and loss)
(a) Unquoted, in fellow subsidiaries
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Sterling Generators Private Limited 48.49 48.49
500,000 [31 March 2022: 500,000] 4% redeemable, non-convertible, -
non-cumulative preference shares of Rs 1,000 each, fully paid-up. The
preference shares are redeemable after a period of 7 years from the
date of issue either at option of the Company at premium to be fixed
based on expert’s valuation report.
Investment in Partnership Firm (at Cost) -
Enrich-SWPL JV 0.01 0.01
Name of the Partners Share in Profits (%)
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited 49%
Enrich RD Infraprojects Private Limited 51%
Total Capital of firm : Rs One lakh only.
Note: During the year 2019-20, the Company formed a Partnership
Firm viz. Enrich-SWPL JV by entering into a partnership deed dated 01
November 2019 for the purpose of supply, design, erection, testing and
commission of electrification works including electrical work for Indian
Railways.

94.79 94.80

The aggregate book value of unquoted non-current investments
are as follows:

Aggregate carrying amount of non-current investments 94.79 94.80
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

7 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 11.38 11.68
11.38 11.68
8 Other non-current financial assets
Bank deposits* (due to mature after 12 months from reporting date) 1.61 1.25
1.61 1.25
9 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits 20.04 20.04
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 8.89 8.89
Provision for unbilled receivables - -
Provision for loans and advances 1.83 1.83
Provision for foreseeable losses 3.22 3.22
Carry forward business losses * - -
Unabsorbed depreciation 19.24 19.24
Provision for liquidated damages - -
Mat credit entitlement 5.40 5.40
Others 0.23 0.23
58.85 58.85
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Excess of depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over book 12.57 12.57
depreciation
Fair valuation of investments 2.13 213
Writeback of Provision for liquidated damages 0.26 0.26

14.96 14.96
Deferred tax assets, net 43.90 43.90
Deferred tax assets recognised, net 43.90 43.90

10 Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax 75.89 65.75
(includes fringe benefits tax and wealth tax)

75.89 65.75
11 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
To parties other than related parties
Capital advances 3.42 3.42
Prepayments 11.30 3.04
14.72 6.46
12 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value unless otherwise
stated)
Construction materials, stores and spare parts 8.45 3.93
Stock-in-trade 28.54 30.47
36.99 34.40
13 Current investments
Investment in equity instruments
(Measured at fair value through profit and loss)
Quoted:
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electrical Limited* 0.00 0.00
6 [31 March 2022 : 6] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
CG Power & Industrial Solution Limited* 0.00 0.00
6 [31 March 2022 : 6] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Ruchi Soya Limited* 0.00 0.00
2 [31 March 2022 : 2] Equity shares of Rs. 2 each, fully paid-up (31
March 2019 : Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up)
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 0.46 0.46
1,232 [31 March 2022 : 1232] Equity shares of Re. 1 each fully paid-up
Unquoted:
Western India Sugar & Chemical Industries Limited 0.00 0.00
400 [31 March 2022 : 400] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Mid East India Limited 0.00 0.00

188



STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the provisional standalone financial statements as at 31 October 2022 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
300 [31 March 2022 : 300] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Montari Leather Limited 0.00 0.00
1,000 [31 March 2022 : 1,000] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up -
Otoklin Plants and Equipment’s Limited 0.00 0.00
500 [31 March 2022 : 500] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
SIV Limited (South India Viscose Limited) 0.01 0.01
600 [31 March 2022 : 600] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Sudhiti Hosiery Limited 0.01 0.01
2,500 [31 March 2022 : 2,500] Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up -
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of unquoted current 0.03 0.03
investments
Total (a) 0.47 0.45
* The Investment value is less than Rs. 1,000
Investment in debentures
(Measured at amortised cost)
Western India Sugar & Chemical Industries Limited 0.00 0.00
300 [31 March 2022 : 300] 15% Debentures of Rs. 50 each, fully paid-up
Total (b) 0.00 0.00
Investment in mutual funds
(Measured at fair value through profit and loss)
250,000 units [31 March 2022 : 250,000 units] Union Long Bond Fund 0.31 0.31
Growth
Total (c) 0.31 0.31
Total (d) - -
Total (a+ b +c) 0.79 0.77
Aggregate carrying amount of quoted investments 0.47 0.47
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.47 0.47
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 0.03 0.03
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 0.03 0.03
14. Trade receivables

(Unsecured)
Trade Receivables (refer note below)
- Considered good 1,240.09 1,248.61
- Considered doubtful 8.26 9.26

1,248.35 1,257.87
Less: Doubtful debts 8.26 9.26
Net trade receivables 1,240.09 1,248.61
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
15 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Bank
- in current accounts 9.49 47.93
Cheques, drafts on hand - 0.08
Cash on hand 0.14 0.71
9.63 48.72

16 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- in deposit accounts * (with original maturity more than 3 months but 40.25 49.72
less than 12 months)

40.25 49.72
17 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
To related parties (refer note 1 and 2 below) 2,636.35 2,841.83
-Loans given to subsidiaries
- considered good 2,636.35 2,841.83
- credit impaired 40.00 40.00
2,676.35 2,881.83
Less: credit impaired 40.00 40.00
2,636.35 2,841.83
- Other related parties 4.26 9.55
To parties other than related parties
(i) Loan to others (4.60) 6.24
(i) Security deposits
- considered good 9.80 9.44
- considered doubtful 0.60 0.60
10.40 10.04
Less: Provision for doubtful deposit 0.60 0.60
9.80 9.44
(iii) Loan to employees 1.31 1.62
2,647.12 2,868.69
Dues from firms or private companies in which any director is a
partner or a director or member :
Note 1: Loan given to subsidiaries
Sterling and Wilson International FZE 906.49 1,110.19
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical L.L.C 1,545.11 1,545.11
Sterling and Wilson Middle East WLL 92.41 89.14
Sterling & Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Pvt Ltd 119.09 124.65
GCO Australia PTY Ltd 12.51 12.03
Sterling & Wilson Nigeria Ltd 0.75 0.71
2,676.35 2,881.83
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Note 2: Loan to other related parties
Transtel Utilities Ltd UK. 4.26 9.55

4.26 9.55
(Loan given to subsidiaries and other related parties carry an interest
rate ranging from 8% to 11.5% and is repayable on demand

18 Other financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
To related parties
(i) Unbilled receivables - 57.46
(ii) Recoverable expenses 277.55 214.88
(iii) Other receivables 2.80 1.46

To parties other than related parties

(i) Interest accrued on receivables

(ii) Unbilled receivables

- considered good 361.05 750.32
- considered doubtful - -

361.05 750.32
Less: Provision for doubtful unbilled receivables - -

361.05 750.32
(iii) Other receivables 3.84 4.68

645.24 1,028.80
Dues from firms or private companies in which any director is a
partner or a director or member:
Recoverable expenses -
Sterling and Wilson International FZE 1.20 1.20
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC 4.44 1.80
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC 155.77 155.77
Sterling and Wilson Security Systems Private Limited 1.94 1.94
Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited 5.13 5.13
Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited 6.97 8.80
Shashwat Energy Pvt Ltd 0.56 0.56
Sterling & Wilson Solar FZCO 2.63 2.63
Transtel Utilities Limited, UK 12.13 12.13
Enrich-SWPL JV 17.94 16.57
STC Power S.R.L 244 1.33
SWPL-Jindun JV 9.70 7.00
Other receivables
Sterling Generators Pvt Ltd 2.79 1.45
Sterling & Wilson Nigeria Pvt Ltd - -
Sterling & Wilson Solar Ltd -
Branch receivables 56.68 -
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
19 Other current assets -
(Unsecured, considered good) -
To related parties -
Advances for supply of goods - 1.82
To parties other than related parties -
Advances for supply of goods -
- considered good 82.53 87.29
- considered doubtful 4.65 4.65
87.18 91.94
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (4.65) (4.65)
82.53 87.29
Unbilled receivables - -
Advance to employees 10.53 5.81
Advance for projects - -
Other recoverables - -
Balance with government authorities 159.58 206.36
Prepayments 0.73 10.64
Advances to employees -
Retention money
253.37 311.92
20 Equity share capital
Authorised
50,000,000 Equity shares (31 March 2022: 50,000,000 shares) of Rs 50.00 50.00
10 each
“215,00,000 (31 March 2022 : 165,00,000) 0% Compulsorily convertible 2,150.00 2,150.00
non-cumulative preference shares of Rs 1,000 each”
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: -
29,369,333 Equity shares (31 March 2022 : 29,369,333 shares) of Rs 29.37 29.37
10 each, fully paid-up
18,025,000 (31 March 2022 : 15,025,000) 0% Compulsorily convertible 1,802.50 1,802.50
non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 1,000 each, fully paid-up
(A) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year :
31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 2,93,69,333 29.37 2,93,69,333 29.37
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,93,69,333 29.37 2,93,69,333 29.37
0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year * 1,80,25,000 1,802.50 1,80,25,000 1,802.50
Add: Issued during the year ** - - - -
Less: Repayment during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,80,25,000 1,802.50 1,80,25,000 1,802.50
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(B)

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends
and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time
to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll
(not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot
be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution
of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares:

* Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issued on 17 March 2018 and 10 March 2020 and
each share is convertible into four equity shares of par value Rs. 10 each after 36 months from the date of issue.

** Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issued on 03 October 2020 and 07 January 2021
and each share is convertible into five equity shares of par value Rs. 10 each after 240 months from the date of
issue.

Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where dividend is not declared
in respect of a financial year, the entitlement for that financial year lapses. The preference shares are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly affecting their rights. In the
event of liquidation, the preference shareholders’ will be entitled to receive from the proceeds of liquidity event, on par
to the holders’ of equity shares or securities convertible into equity shares, an amount equal to 100% of the amounts
invested by it plus any declared but unpaid dividends, to be distributed pro-rata among the holders’ of equity shares
and preference shares of the Company on an as converted basis.

(C) Shares held by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Shapooriji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 1,94,80,000 19.48 1,94,80,000 19.48
Holding Company
“0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares”
Shapooriji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 95,00,000 950.00| 95,00,000.00 950.00
Holding Company
Sashwat Energy Private Limited, subsidiary of the 25,00,000 250.00 25,00,000 250.00
Holding Company

etails of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
(D) Details of sh held by shareholders holdi than 5% of th te sh in the C

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
“Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 1,94,80,000 66.33% 1,94,80,000 66.33%
Holding Company”
Khurshed Daruvala, Director 97,45,293 33.17% 97,45,293 33.17%
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Number Amount Number Amount
0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares
“Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 95,00,000 61.19% 95,00,000 61.19%
Holding Company”
Khurshed Daruvala, Director 60,25,000 38.81% 60,25,000 38.81%
Sashwat Energy Private Limited, subsidiary of the 25,00,000 100.00% 25,00,000 100.00%
Holding Company

(E) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference 1,00,00,000 100 1,00,00,000 100
shares
10,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference 5,01,00,000 100 5,01,00,000 50
shares
50,100,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference 1,50,00,000 100 1,50,00,000 15
shares
15,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
21 Other equity
Particulars Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
Securities premium account (i) 560.04 560.04
Loan towards Equity (i) - -
Capital Redemption Reserve (iii) 50.00 50.00
General Reserve (iv) 13.39 13.39
Retained earnings v) (756.12) (614.34)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (vi) 1.09 1.09
(131.59) 10.18
(i) Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 560.04 560.04
Add : Addition during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 560.04 560.04

(ii) Loan towards Equity
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year
Add : Addition during the year
Less: Deletions during the year
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Notes to the provisional standalone financial statements as at 31 October 2022 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

Particulars Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Balance at end of the year - -
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 50.00 50.00

Add: Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - -
arisen during the year

Balance at end of the year 50.00 50.00
General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 13.39 13.39
Balance at end of the year 13.39 13.39
Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning and end of the year (614.34) (409.38)
Add : Addition during the year (141.77) (204.95)
Balance at end of the year (756.12) (614.34)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability

Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 1.09 (0.69)
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re- - 1.78
measurement of defined benefit obligation, net of tax

Balance at end of the year 1.09 1.09
Total (131.59) 10.19
Notes:

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

Note on allotment against loan towards equity

The Company has issued and allotted 1,33,33,333 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/-, at a price of Rs. 376/-
each (inclusive of Premium of Rs. 366/- per share)on October 17, 2019, in lieu of and against the conversion of the
aggregate value of unsecured loans taken by Company from Promoters and Promoter group. The issue price for
conversion of loan into equity was determined on the basis of valuation report obtained by the Company.
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Particulars Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

22

23

24

25

26

Long-term Borrowings
Term Loan
Secured (refer note 24)

From Others 748.00 750.00
From banks - -
748.00 750.00

Term Loan from ICICI Bank Limited of Rs. 60 crore is repayable over a period of three years carrying a moratorium
of one year commencing from the date of drawdown. The loan has been fully availed is repayable in 8 quarterly
instaments. The loan carries interest based on One year Marginal Cost of Lending Rate (MCLR) 7.30% plus Spread
3.10% (adjustable annually). The loan is secured by exclusive charge on commercial office unit no. 1301-1312, 13th
Floor along with 55 car parkings located in Universal Majestic, P L Lokhande Marg, Chembur, Mumbai.

Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 41) 13.08 17.29
13.08 17.29
Current borrowings
Secured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
- Cash credit loan from banks (refer note (a) below) 61.01 76.61
Working capital loan from others (refer note (b) below)
(b) Other loans
Working capital loan from banks (refer note (a)) 116.46 138.12
- Buyers credit (refer note (c) below) 19.07 8.06
196.54 222.79
Unsecured
Working capital loan from others (refer note (b) below) - -
Loan and deposit from related parties (refer note (c), (d) and 447.56 399.50
(e) below)
447.56 399.50
644.11 622.29
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - 23.34
enterprises (refer note 45.1)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 777.86 1,025.31
and small enterprises*
Acceptances ** 28.08 71.22
805.94 1,119.87

Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 22) 14.97 14.97
To related parties -
Interest accrued and due: -
- to holding company 0.00 -
- to director 5.53 5.53
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Particulars Note 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
- other related parties 0.95 1.12
Other Payables - 7.92

To parties other than related parties
Interest accrued and due

- to banks 0.21 0.21
- to others 25.21 16.31
-to micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.44 7.55
Other payables 44.61 35.00
Employee benefits payable 18.63 36.25

116.56 124.86

27 Other current liabilities
To related parties

Advances from customers (refer note 39 (C)) - 62.27
Billing in advance of work completed - 5.26
To parties other than related parties
Employee payables 3.36 3.76
Statutory dues payable :
- Tax deducted at source payable 4.25 10.35
- Provident fund payable 5.10 2.38
- Profession tax payable 0.23 0.10
- Employees State Insurance payable 0.01 0.05
Advances from customers (refer note 39 (C)) 257.92 284.37
Billing in advance of work completed - 110.46
270.87 479.00

28 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 41) 0.92 0.92

Compensated absences 17.41 24.88

Other provisions

Provision for liquidated damages or price discount 4.54 4.54

Provision for foreseeable loss - 13.95
22.86 44.29

“Provision foreseeable loss:

In case of construction contracts, when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss (foreseeable loss) is recognised as an expense immediately in the statement of profit and loss. “

Provision for: 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Opening balance 15.07 5.35
Add: during the year - 13.95
Less: Utilised during the year (15.07) (5.35)
Closing balance - 13.95

Provision liquidated damages:

Liquidated damages or Price discounts are contractual obligations affecting the contract revenue in case of the construction
contracts arising as a result of penalties arising from delays caused in the completion of a contract. For contracts delayed
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beyond the stipulated contract completion periods, management has estimated the liability that could arise on these
contracts”

Provision for: 31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022

Opening balance 4.54 16.00
Add: during the year - 1.72
Less:Adjustments (0.00) (13.18)
Closing balance 4.54 4.54

29 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for current tax 7.26 7.41
(includes fringe benefit tax and wealth tax)

7.26 7.41
31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
30 Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Income from works contracts 679.53 1,940.81
Revenue from operation and maintenance services 61.71 189.96
Other operating income -
Sale of scrap 5.39 9.19
Export incentives 0.97 4.19
747.60 2,144.15

31 Other income

Interest income:
- deposits with banks 0.32 2.48
- loan to subsidiaries and other related parties 43.54 153.73
- loan to others - 0.72
- loan to employees 0.04 0.26
- income tax refund - 4.26
Write back of provision for bad and doubtful debts (net) 1.00 14.93
Dividend Income - 2.00
Supplier balances written back 0.55 11.41
Provision for Liquidated damages utilised(net) - -
Foreign exchange loss (net) - 10.35
Other miscellaneous income 0.61 15.27
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments (net) (0.02) 0.27
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss a/c - net - 6.90

change in fair value

Guarantee commission - 1.20
Gain on foreclosure of lease rental - 0.47
46.04 224.25
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31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
32 Cost of construction materials, stores and spare parts
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 3.93 17.93
Add: Purchase during the year 459.60 1,248.19
Less : Inventory of materials at the end of the year 8.45 3.92
455.08 1,262.20
33 Change in inventory of stock-in-trade
Inventory of stock-in-trade at the beginning of the year 30.47 33.23
Less: Inventory of stock-in-trade at the end of the year 28.54 30.47
Decrease/ (increase) in inventory 1.93 2.76
34 Direct project costs
Communication expenses 0.26 1.73
Stores and spare parts consumed 4.16 9.41
Commission expenses 0.54 4.62
Legal and professional fees 5.13 15.03
Printing and stationery expenses 0.32 0.98
Insurance costs 4.71 18.16
Repairs and maintenance - others 5.49 13.36
Selling and marketing expenses 0.02 0.29
Traveling and conveyance expenses 2.35 8.24
Rent 7.44 16.15
Rates and taxes 2.59 5.26
Electricity, power and fuel 1.35 3.77
Donation 0.02 -
Bank charges 2.93 15.68
Provision for foreseeable loss(net) - 8.60
Liquidated damages - 1.04
Provision for Liquidated Damages - -
Miscellaneous expenses 18.39 43.33
55.70 165.65
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 74.39 179.38
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 5.38 13.27
Staff welfare expenses 1.48 5.01
81.25 197.66
Sub-contractor expenses 159.53 464.97
296.48 828.28
35 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 69.57 155.56
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 4.70 9.77
Gratuity (refer note 41) 0.01 4.04
Compensated absences - 5.56
Staff welfare expenses 1.17 5.10
75.45 180.03

199



STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the provisional standalone financial statements for period ended 31 October 2022 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

31 Oct 2022 31 March 2022
36 Finance costs
Interest expense
- on secured loans 13.04 31.60
- on unsecured loans 46.52 45.93
- on dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 1.10
- on lease liabilities 1.89 3.54
- on others 3.30 9.70
- on retention payable - 0.21
Other borrowing costs 0.06 5.22
64.81 97.30
37 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6.47 15.89
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 4.00 6.66
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.51 1.31
10.98 23.86
38 Other expenses
Communication expenses 0.94 2.37
Stores and spare parts consumed 0.60 1.08
Commission expenses - 0.40
Legal and professional fees 8.45 28.36
Printing and stationery expenses 0.26 0.47
Insurance costs 0.44 3.52
Repairs and maintenance - others 2.74 7.51
Selling and marketing expenses 0.16 0.46
Traveling and conveyance expenses 5.89 9.82
Rent 0.84 6.08
Rates and taxes 1.14 215
Electricity, power and fuel 1.1 2.38
Payment to auditors (refer note (a) below) - 0.34
Property, plant and equipment written off - 6.40
Bank charges 1.97 4.67
Loss on sale of land - 1.04
Bad debts written off 1.92 27.29
Land development charges 0.1 1.75
Miscellaneous expenses 1.33 13.35
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.28 -
Allocated expenses (13.49)
30.68 105.96
Payment to auditors
As auditor
Statutory audit - 0.29
Tax audit - 0.03
Other services - 0.02
- 0.34
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Managing Director has pleasure in submitting the report and accounts of Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical L.L.C. (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021.

LEGAL STATUS

Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC is a limited liability company incorporated on 19 May 2008 in
the Emirate of Dubai under Federal Law No. (8) of 1984 and its subsequent amendments.

Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 issued on 1 April 2015 (“the Companies Law"), which is effective from 1 July 2015, has
superseded the Federal Law No. (8) of 1984 and its subsequent amendments. According to Article 374 of the
Companies Law, the Parent Company had a period of twelve months from 1 July 2015 to regularise its affairs in
accordance with the Companies Law. Subsequently, the said deadline was extended to 30 June 2017. However,
based on a Ministerial Resolution No. (694) of 2016 (“the Resolution") issued on 19 December 2016, the existing
Memorandum and articles of association of the Parent Company shall remain in force and any statement, provision or
clause included in the memorandum or articles of association which is in derogation to the Companies Law is
deemed to have been amended and replaced with the provisions of the Companies Law from the effective date of
Resolution.

The Parent Company is managed and controlled by Sterling and Wilson International FZE, Dubai.

The Parent Company has controlling interests in the following entities:

SI. No.  Name of subsidiary Percentage of Share in profits/ Country of
shareholding (losses) registration
2021 2020 2021 2020

Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Sanitation, Electrical, Cooling and

Conditioning Contracting LLC 49% 49% 95% 95% Kuwait
1l Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical (Bahrain) W.L.L. 49% 49% 49% 49% Bahrain

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group”.

There has been no significant commercial activity in the Parent Company’s subsidiary in Kuwait and Bahrain as of the
reporting date.

Although the shareholding in subsidiaries in Bahrain and Kuwait above is 49% in each subsidiary, the Parent
Company controls and has the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries, and thereby can significantly
affect the returns of the subsidiaries.

The Parent Company operates a branch in Abu Dhabi under a separate trade license issued on 15 December 2008
by the Department of Planning and Economy, Abu Dhabi, and a branch in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under a
commercial registration issued on 15 September 2015 by the Ministry of Commerce, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Under
the taxation laws of the Kingdom, the activities of this branch are treated as a taxable entity. These consolidated
financial statements combine the assets, liabilities and results of operations of this branch in Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.

The principal activities of the Group include import, export and trading of building materials, related accessories,
installation and maintenance of air conditioning systems, electricity transmission and control apparatus and

electromechanical equipment. The Group is also engaged in plumbing, sanitary and electrical fitting contracting and
building construction.

The principal place of business of the Parent Company is at Business Village, Block B 6th floor, Deira, Dubai.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group achieved a turnover of AED 71,422,461 and incurred a loss of AED
19,583,940 against a turnover of AED 170,091,741 and a loss of AED 39,575,159 in the previous year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDING

The shareholding pattern at the end of the year under review was as follows:

Name of shareholder Shareholding %
31 March 2021
Mr. Ahmad Mohd. Jassim Mohammad 51%
M/s. Sterling and Wilson International FZE 49%
100%
AUDITORS |

Messrs Moorg [Stephens, the fauditors of the Group, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

Managing Director
25 November 2021
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u MOORE Moore Stephens
P.O. Box 28817
M 5A Zalfa Building, Garhoud
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

T +971(0)4 2820811/2820783
F  +971(0)4 2820812

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF www.moore-use.ae

STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC
(“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ funds and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including the significant accounting policies set out in pages 6 to 34.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion
a) The Group’s due from related party balance as at 31 March 2021 include an amount of AED 15,152,463,
which does not agree with the confirmation received from the related party. Consequently, due from related
party balance is overstated by up to AED 8,174,793 in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021. Had the Group recorded the amount due from related party correctly, its consolidated loss
for the year would have been increased by AED 8,174,793 and its consolidated accumulated losses would
have been decreased by AED 8,174,793.

b) The Group's other receivables as at 31 March 2021 include an amount of AED 12,136,624 which represents
performance guarantee encashed by a customer on termination of the contract. We were not able to satisfy
ourselves that the Group will be able to recover this amount from the customer. Consequently, we were
unable to determine whether any adjustments to this amount were necessary.

¢) The Group's due to a related party balance as at 31 March 2021 is understated by AED 1,405,538 as a
result of certain old outstanding reconciling items. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the recording of reconciling items in the relevant financial year because we were not
provided access to the financial information by the management. Consequently, we were unable to
determine whether any adjustments of the reconciling items were necessary in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated accumulated losses and the consolidated statement of financial
position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab
Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion.

Continued...
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Managing Directors’ report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs and in compliance with the applicable requirements of the UAE Commercial Companies Law
of 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Continued...
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

Report on the Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements include, in all material respects, the applicable requirements of

the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Parent Company. We have

obtained all information and explanations which are necessary for the purpose of the audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief no violation of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 2015 and the Articles of Association of
the Parent Company came to our attention which would materially affect the Parent Company’s financial position.

In our opinion, the Parent Company has maintained proper books of account and the accompanying consolidated
financial statements are in agreement therewith.

M core Steploss

Moore Stephens

Farad K. Lakdawala
Partner

Registration No. 341
25 November 2021

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
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STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(stated in AED)
Note 2021 2020
Income
4.4 a)
Revenue from contracts with customers and 5 71,422,461 170,091,741
Direct costs 6 (80,230,822) (182,739,635)
Gross loss (8,808,361) (12,647,894)
Other income 7 10,040,937 12,045,138
1,232,576 (602,756)
Expenses
General and administration 8 3,069,296 11,830,787
Finance charges 9 201,654 237,560
Selling and marketing - 57,991
Depreciation 11 138,364 199,476
Impairment of financial assets 24.1b) 17,407,202 26,646,589
20,816,516 38,972,403
Loss for the year before tax (19,583,940) (39,575,159)
Provision for tax 10 -- --
Loss for the year (19,583,940) (39,675,159)
Other comprehensive income
Item that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (354,454) 308,202
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (354,454) 308,202
Total comprehensive loss for the year (19,938,394) (39,266,957)
(Loss) for the year attributable to:
Shareholder of the Parent Company (19,543,145) (38,494,451)
Non-controlling interest 20 (40,795) (1,080,708)
(Loss) for the year (19,583,940) (39,575,159)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year attributable to:
Shareholder of the Parent Company (19,891,969) (38,200,642)
Non-controlling interest 20 (46,425) (1,066,315)

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

(19,938,394)

(39,266,957)

The attached notes 1 to 28 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Consolidated statement of financial position

(stated in AED)

Note 2021 2020
Assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 11 598,651 1,487,919
Loan receivable 12 20,639,956 19,148,530
Total non-current assets 21,238,607 20,636,449
Current assets
Inventories 13 - 1,233,840
| Contract assets 14 21,831,941 75,244 955
Accounts and other receivables 15 231,869,014 207,081,763
Bank and cash balances 16 2,059,398 2,696,268
Total current assets 255,760,353 286,256,826
Total assets 276,998,960 306,893,275
Shareholders’ funds and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 17 300,000 300,000
Legal reserve 18 547,636 547,636
Amount due to shareholder 19 157,152,732 177,069,518
Foreign currency translation reserve (88,986) 259,838
Accumulated losses (18,437,367) (19,214,895)
Total shareholders’ funds attributable to
shareholders of the Parent Company 139,474,015 158,962,097
Non-controlling interest 20 (5,884,349) (5,837,924)
Total shareholders’ funds 133,589,666 153,124,173
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ terminal benefits 21 2,581,857 6,278,551
Total non-current liabilities 2,581,857 6,278,551
Current liabilities
Income tax payable 10 -- -
Contract liabilities 14 10,402,551 60,739,503
Accounts and other payables 22 130,424,886 86,751,048
Total current liabilities 140,827,437 147,490,551
Total liabilities 143,409,294 163,769,102
276,998,960 306,893,275

Total shareholders’ funds and liabilities

The attached|notgs 1 to 28{form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Managing Director
25 November 2021
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STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Consolidated statement of cash flows
(stated in AED)

Note 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year before tax (19,583,940) (39,575,159)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 11 840,085 941,456
Impairment of financial assets 241 17,407,202 26,646,589

b)

Interest income on related parties 7 (8,832,064) (11,006,601)
Interest income on loan receivable 7 (596,091) (377,690)
Interest expense on third party loan 9 127,801 124 111
Gain on sale of property and equipment (57,167) --
Release of provision for employees' terminal benefits 21 (987,467) -
Provision for employees’ terminal benefits 21 - 3,265,045
Cash flows (used in) operations before working capital changes (11,681,641) (19,982,249)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 1,233,840 (1,233,840)
(Increase)/ decrease in retention receivables (6,773,781) 2,160,996
Decrease/ (increase) in contract assets 46,413,626 (11,954,262)
(Decrease)/ increase in accounts and other receivables (19,589,220) 117,237,814
(Decrease)/ increase in contract liabilities (50,336,952) 24,584,175
Increase/ (decrease) in accounts and other payables and dues to 63,927,602 (47,520,166)
related parties
Employees’ terminal benefits paid during the year 21 (2,780,605) (681,010)
Income tax paid 10 - (633,377)
Net cash from operating activities 20,412,869 61,978,081
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 11 (39,553) (758,480)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 150,759 -
Net movement in loan receivable (895,335) (18,770,840)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (784,129) (19,529,320)

Cash flows from financing activity

Net movement in amount due to shareholder (19,916,786) (49,348,507)
Net cash (used in) financing activity (19,916,786) (49,348,507)
Net movement in currency translation (348,824) 293,809
(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (636,870) (6,605,937)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,630,268 9,236,205
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 1,993,398 2,630,268
Non-cash transactions during the year:
Transfer of employees’ terminal benefits from a related party 21 49,504 193,753
Netting off losses against due to related party 23 20,320,673 51,102,345
20,370,177 51,296,098

The attached notes 1 to 28 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST
ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(stated in AED)

1.

Leyal slalus and principal aclivities

Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (“the Parent Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated on 19 May 2008 in the Emirate of Dubai under Federal Law No. (8) of 1984 and its subsequent
amendments.

Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 issued on 1 April 2015 (“the Companies Law"), which is effective from 1 July
2015, has superseded the Federal Law No. (8) of 1984 and its subsequent amendments. According to Article
374 of the Companies Law, the Parent Company had a period of twelve months from 1 July 2015 to regularise
its affairs in accordance with the Companies Law. Subsequently, the said deadline was extended to 30 June
2017. However, based on a Ministerial Resolution No. (694) of 2016 (“the Resolution”) issued on 19 December
2016, the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Parent Company shall remain in force and
any statement, provision or clause included in the memorandum or articles of association which is in
derogation to the Companies Law is deemed to have been amended and replaced with the provisions of the
Companies Law from the effective date of Resolution.

The Parent Company is managed and controlled by Sterling and Wilson International FZE, Dubai (“the
Intermediate Parent Company”). The Ultimate Parent Company is Sterling and Wilson Private Limited,
Mumbai, India (“the Ultimate Parent Company”).

The Parent Company has controlling interests in the following entities:

SI. Name of subsidiary Percentage of Share in profits/ Country of
No. shareholding (losses) registration
2021 2020 2021 2020

| Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Sanitation, Electrical, Cooling and

Conditioning Contracting LLC 49% 49% 95% 95% Kuwait
1] Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical (Bahrain) W.L.L. 49% 49% 49% 49% Bahrain

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group”.

There has been no significant commercial activity in the Parent Company’s subsidiaries in Kuwait and Bahrain
as of the reporting date.

Although the shareholding in subsidiaries in Kuwait and Bahrain above is only 49% respectively, the Parent
Company controls and has the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries, and thereby can
significantly affect the returns of the subsidiaries.

The Parent Company operates a branch in Abu Dhabi under a separate trade license issued on 15 December
2008 by the Department of Planning and Economy, Abu Dhabi, and a branch in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
under a commercial registration issued on 15 September 2015 by the Ministry of Commerce, Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Under the taxation laws of the Kingdom, the activities of this branch are treated as a taxable
entity. These consolidated financial statements combine the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the
branches in Abu Dhabi and Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The principal activities of the Group include import, export and trading in building materials, related
accessories, installation and maintenance of air conditioning systems, electricity transmission and control
apparatus and electromechanical equipment. The Group is also engaged in plumbing, sanitary and electrical
fitting contracting and building construction.

The principal place of business of the Parent Company is located at Business Village, Block B, 6" floor, Deira,
Dubai.
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STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Demerger and transfer of business

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited, India (‘the Ultimate Parent Company”) was engaged in the business of
mechanical, electrical and plumbing “MEP" services and solar EPC power plants “S-EPC" business. To enable
the S-EPC division and MEP business to capitalise on growth opportunities in an independent manner, it was
proposed by the shareholders to demerge the S-EPC division into a separate company.

Accordingly, with retrospective effect from 1 April 2017, Sterling and Wilson Private Limited, India (“Demerged
Company” or “Ultimate Parent Company”) has demerged its S-EPC Division into Sterling and Wilson Solar
Private Limited (formerly Rashmika Energy Private Limited) (‘Resulting Company”) pursuant to an order dated
28 March 2018 from the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Mumbai, India and in accordance with the
Scheme of Arrangement (“arrangement”) between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are under common ownership and control.

Under the arrangement, the Demerged Company shall vesttransfer into the Resulting Company the S-EPC
Division including but not limited to its assets, liabilities, pre-qualifications, letters of intent, tenders, technical
experience, contracts, interests/investments in subsidiaries, partnership firm in India, overseas subsidiaries,
foreign branches and other assets and liabilities as described in the arrangement.

The Group’s intermediate Parent Company (which is a subsidiary of the Demerged Company) was part of this
restructuring arrangement and as a result, the Group has transferred its accumulated losses as of 1 April 2017
to Sterling and Wilson International Solar FZCO (“SWISFZCQ") and one of its subsidiaries, Sterling and
Wilson Middle East Solar Energy L.L.C (*SWMESELLC"). The transfer of accumulated losses was effected
based on a resolution passed by the Board of the Ultimate Parent Company and Parent Company pursuant to
a provision in the arrangement whereby it was necessary for the amount of the transfers to be approved by the
board of the Demerged Company from their view of the appropriateness of the transfer.

The restructuring arrangement as discussed above was also ratified by the business transfer agreements and
resolutions passed by the Board of the Intermediate Parent Company, Parent Company, SWISFZCO and
SWMESELLC.

Further, legal titles to the certain assets and liabilities are still in the name of the Parent Company as of the
reporting date. SWISFZCO and SWMESELLC shall at any time after the conditions stipulated in the
arrangement have been fulfiled, perform all such formalities to transfer the legal titles of such assets and
liabilities in favor of the SWISFZCO and SWMESELLC.

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
Amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has adopted the following applicable amended IFRSs as of 1 April 2020:

« Amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors” clarify the definition of ‘material’ across the standards. The new
definition states that, ‘information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those consolidated financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.’ The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the consolidated
financial statements.

The management believes that the adoption of the above amendments effective for the current accounting
period has not had any material impact on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of items
in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to existing standard that is not yet effective and has not been adopted early by the Group

The following amendment that is applicable to the Group has been published and is mandatory for accounting
periods of the Group beginning after 1 April 2020, but which has not been adopted early by the Group:
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3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to existing standard that is not yet effective and has not been adopted early by the Group
(Continued)

a) Amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” clarify the requirements for presentation of
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as current or non-current. For example, the
amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the right at the end of the
reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. The
meaning of settlement of a liability is also clarified. The amendments are effective for annual periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2023.

The management believes that the adoption of the above amendment is not likely to have any material impact
on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of items in the consolidated financial statements
for future periods.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Arab Emirates Dirham (AED).

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal
accounting policies that have been applied consistently by the Group to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise those of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries listed in
Note 1. Subsidiaries which are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group are consolidated. Control is
achieved where the Parent Company has power over the investees, that expose or give rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and the Parent Company is able to use its power to affect the
amount of returns from the investee. Generally, control is achieved with a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights over the relevant activities of the investee. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Parent Company
controls another entity.

When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Parent
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
e The Parent Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements of the subsidiaries drawn up
using the standard Group accounting policies. Accounting policies applied by individual subsidiaries have been
revised where necessary to ensure consistency with Group policies for consolidation purposes. All companies
in the Group have the same reporting date of 31 March.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant intra-group transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation.
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with a non-controlling interest as transactions with equity
holders when control of the subsidiary is not lost of the subsidiary. This is therefore reflected in equity. Profit or
loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and fo the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Significant accounting policies

a)

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the
customer.

Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. The normal credit terms are 60 days upon delivery.

Revenue from contracts

Revenue from contracts is recognised over time based on the input method. Under the input method, the
extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the total
estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation. Revenue, including estimated fees or profits,
are recorded proportionally as costs are incurred. The related costs are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when they are incurred. The payment is generally due within 60 days
from the invoice date.

In determining the transaction price for its revenue from contracts with customers, the Group considers
the effects of variable consideration and existence of significant financing component.

(1) Variable consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at the inception of the contract and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. As of
the reporting date, no variable consideration has been identified.
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4.
4.4

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

a)

b)

<)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts (Continued)

(2) Significant financing component
Advances from customers
When advances received are received before the transfer of goods/service to the customer, the
customer may be providing the Group with financing. If so, and the financing is significant, the Group
accrues interest expense over the financing period. Consequently, the revenue recognised will
exceed the cash received. As of reporting date, the Group considers the financing component in its
contracts not significant.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Contract balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and collections may result in contract assets, trade accounts
receivable and contract liabilities.

Contract assets

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned on work completed as
receipt of consideration is conditional on completion of work done and acceptance by the customer, at
which point the contract assets are reclassified to trade accounts receivables.

The contract assets are transferred to trade accounts receivable when the rights become unconditional
(i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due), which usually
occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the customer.

Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers prior to
meeting the revenue recognition criteria or when the amount of consideration received from customers
exceed the amount of revenue recognised. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The residual values and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation is charged on assets so as to write off the costs, over their estimated useful lives, less
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method on the following bases:

Office equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-6.67 years
Motor vehicles 3 —5years
Tools and equipment 3 -6.67 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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e e
4. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)
4.4 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets, to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unif) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

e) Financial instruments — recognition, classification, measurement, derecognition and offsetting

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade accounts receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly aftributable to its acquisition or
issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets: Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at:

—  Amortised cost;
—  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
—  Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The Group has not classified and measured any financial asset at either FVOCI or FVPL. All
recognised financial assets are classified and measured subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's financial assets include accounts and other receivables, due from related parties, loan
receivable, retention receivables and bank and cash balances which are all classified and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

216



STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

4. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

4.4 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

e) Financial instruments — recognition, classification, measurement, derecognition and offsetting
(Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets: Subseguent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities: Classification. subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. The Group does not have
any financial liabilities classified at FVPL. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other payables and due to related parties are
classified and measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition
Financial assets

A financial asset (or where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised either when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

(i) the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

(i) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable

right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)
4.4 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
f) Impairment of financial assels

q)

h)

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that
it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss
allowance on the following:

s Trade accounts receivable, retention receivable and contract assets; and
e Other financial assets measured at amortised cost.

In case of trade accounts receivable, retention receivable and contract assets, the Group follows a
simplified approach wherein an amount equal fo lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss
allowance. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which
case those are measured at lifetime of ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL
which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. ECL are
measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and profitability weighted amounts determined by a
range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information
available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised, is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value, after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow moving items. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis and consists of aggregate of
purchase price and other related expenses incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be
incurred on disposal.

Employees’ terminal benefits

Provision is made for employees’ terminal benefits on the basis prescribed under the labour laws of the
countries in which the Group operates and is based on employees’ salaries and number of years of
service. Terminal benefits are paid to employees on termination or completion of their term of
employment. Accordingly, the Group has no expectation of settling its employees’ terminal benefits
obligation in the near future.

Accounts and other payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received whether or
not billed to the Group.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (AED), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

i

k)

Foreign currencies (Lontinued)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising in these cases are dealt within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related assets, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt
of advance consideration.

Translation of the financial statements of foreign operations

The Group’s presentation currency is AED. The financial statements of foreign operations are translated
into AED using exchange rates in effect at period end for assets and liabilities and average exchange
rates during the reporting period for results of operations. Adjustments resulting from translation of
financial statements are reflected as a separate component of shareholder's equity in a foreign currency
translation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted bank and cash balances, less margin money deposits
under lien, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease. A contract
is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this maybe specified explicitly or implicitly in the
contract and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not an identified
asset;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset, i.e., the Group has the decision-making rights
that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the
right to direct the use of the asset if either:

- the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used

As a Lessee
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessee will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

m)

n)

Operating leases (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
office premises that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Group recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current income taxes are recognised for the estimated income taxes payable or receivable on taxable
income or loss for the current year and any adjustment to income taxes payable in respect of previous
years. Current income taxes are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. This amount is determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless the
item to which the tax relates was recognised outside the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income being other comprehensive income or equity. The tax associated with such an item is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

A change in deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of a change in the tax rates or laws are
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income or other comprehensive income to the
extent that it relates to items previously recognised in other comprehensive income.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from the past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as provision.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)
Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revisions affect both current and future periods.

The significant management judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The application of revenue recognition policy in accordance with IFRS 15 has required management to make
the following judgments:

Satisfaction of performance obligation

The Group is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance
obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine appropriate method of recognising
revenue. For the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers, the satisfaction of performance obligation is
determined as follows:

a) Sale of goods — revenue is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer,
normally upon delivery of the goods

b) Revenue from contracts — revenue is recognised over time as the Group creates/enhances an asset the
customer controls

Determination of transaction prices

The Group is required to determine the transaction prices in respect of each of its contracts with customers. In
making such judgment, the Group assesses the impact of any variable consideration in the contract, due to
discounts or penalties, the existence of any significant financing component in the contract and any non-cash
consideration in the contract.

Allocation of transaction price to performance obligation in contracts with customers

The Group has elected to apply the input method in allocating the transaction price to performance obligations
where revenue is recognised over time. The Group considers that the use of input method which requires
revenue recognition on the basis of the Group’s efforts to the satisfaction of the performance obligation
provides the best reference of revenue actually earned. In applying the input method, the Group estimates the
cost to complete the project in order to determine the amount of revenue to be recognised. The estimates
include the job work charges, potential claims by contractors and the cost of meeting other contractual
obligations to the customers.

Determining whether financing component in contracts is significant
The Group is required to apply judgment in determining whether a financing component within a contract is
significant. In making such judgment, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances, including:

a. The difference, if any, between the amount of promised consideration and the cash selling price of
goods/services; and

b. The combined effect of both of the following:

i. the expected length of time between when the Group will recognise the revenue from the sale of
goods/services and when the customer pays; and

ii. the prevailing interest rates in the relevant market

221



STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST

ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated financial statements for the year end 31 March 2021

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)

Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Trade accounts receivable, retentions receivable and contract assets

The Group reviews its trade accounts receivable, retentions receivable and contract assets to assess
impairment at regular intervals. In determining whether impairment losses should be reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. Accordingly,
an allowance for expected credit loss is made where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based
on previous experience and forward-looking estimates, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.

The contract assets relate to unbilled receivables and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade accounts receivable for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
provision rates for trade accounts receivable are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Expected credit loss (ECL) on other financial assets are measured at an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, or lifetime ECL when the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly, the Group takes into account quantitative and qualitative reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information.

Cash and cash equivalents

Impairment of cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects
the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its bank balances have low credit risk based
on the external credit ratings of the counterparties. While bank balances are also subject to impairment, the
identified impairment loss is considered immaterial.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost or net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made on their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed
on an individual basis. Amounts not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence,
based on historical selling prices.

Estimated cost on uncompleted contracts

Revenue from contracts is measured by reference to the ratio of costs incurred to the estimated total costs for
each contract applied to the estimated contract revenue, and reduced by the proportion of revenue previously
recognised. This requires the Group to use judgement in the estimation of the total cost expected to complete
each contract.

Profit on uncompleted contracts
Profit on uncompleted contracts is only recognised when the contract reaches a point where the ultimate profit

can be estimated with reasonable certainty. This requires the Group’s management to determine the level at
which reasonable estimates can be reached.
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies and estimates (Continued)
Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions (Continued)
Impairment of property and equipment

A decline in the value property and equipment could have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. Management assesses the impairment of property and equipment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
- significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments

- evidence from internal reporting which indicates that the economic performance of the asset is, or will be,
worse than expected

Useful lives of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment for calculating
depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset
or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future
depreciation charges would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives differ from previous
estimates.

Deferred tax asset

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary difference, to
the extent that it is possible that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Determining the lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods

after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or not terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee. During the current financial year, there has been no revision in the lease terms.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The following sets out the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

a) Type of goods or services

2021 2020

Revenue from contracts 66,570,031 167,360,766
Revenue from sale of goods 4,852,430 2,730,975
71,422,461 170,081,741

b) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

2021 2020

Services transferred over time 66,570,031 167,360,766
Goods transferred at point in time 4,852,430 2,730,975
71,422,461 170,091,741
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5. Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
b) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligations (Continued)
At the reporting date, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially satisfied which includes the expected revenue to
be recognised in the future is as follows:

2021 2020
Within one year 71,422,461 97,374,029
71,422,461 97,374,029
¢) Customer relationship
2021 2020
Related party customers (Note 23) 407,216 254,349
Third party customers 71,015,245 169,837,392
71,422,461 170,091,741
6. Direct costs
2021 2020
Salaries and employee related costs 21,278,757 45,811,600
Material purchases 29,878,119 104,563,025
Subcontract costs 24,129,781 24,894 337
Depreciation (Note 11) 701,721 741,980
Others 4,242,444 6,728,693
80,230,822 182,739,635
7 Other income
2021 2020
Interest income - related parties (Note 23) 8,832,064 11,006,601
Interest income on loan receivable 596,091 377,690
Unrepresented liabilities written back 2,500 295,123
Rental income (Note 23) 75,000 135,000
Others 535,282 230,724
10,040,937 12,045,138
8. General and administration expenses
2021 2020
Salaries and employee related costs 804,870 6,997,347
Legal and professional fees 610,127 2,398,911
Short term lease (IFRS 16) 732,547 1,099,260
Travelling and conveyance 3,290 285,529
Communication 96,573 135,899
Utilities 35,878 68,713
Loss on foreign currency exchange -- 31,678
Vehicle expenses 3,020 11,794
Printing and stationery 716 3,927
Insurance 4,859 8,008
Others 777,416 789,721
3,069,296 11,830,787
9. Finance charges
2021 2020
Bank charges 73,853 113,449
Interest on third party loan 127,801 124,111
201,654 237,560
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10. Provision for tax

Details of provision for tax are as follows:

Current tax expense - -

The current tax expense relates to operations of the branch in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The computation of the branch’s income tax expense is detailed below:

2021 2020

(Loss) for the year before tax (29,843,614) (41,166,986)
Add: Non-deductible depreciation 338,607 305,176
Non-deductible provisions and adjustments 17,597,728 3,074,525
Non-deductible expenses - 27,108,469
Less: Non-Taxable provision (759,180) (615,207)
Taxable (loss) for the year (12,666,459) (11,294,023)

Tax on income has been computed as per the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Income Tax Law and is arrived at as

follows:
2021 2020

- Taxable income o e

- Tax due at 20% - o
Current tax expense - .

Income tax payable at the reporting date relating to operations of the branch in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is

as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year - 633,377
Provision for tax from operations during the year - -
Payments made during the year - (633,377)

Translation adjustment o=
Balance at the end of the year - -

The subsidiaries in Kuwait and Bahrain and the branch in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia are subject to income tax
in accordance with the countries’ respective income tax laws. Since the subsidiaries have incurred losses for
the year, no tax liabilities arise as at the reporting date. The management has decided not to consider the
potential deferred tax benefit arising from carry forward losses until future profitability is consistently

demonstrated.
11. Property and equipment

2021 Office  Furniture and Motor Tools and

equipment fixtures vehicles equipment Total
Cost
At 1 April 2020 2,257,481 2,582,338 195,278 1,667,507 6,702,604
Additions during the year 12,889 -- -- 26,664 39,553
Disposals during the year (286,253) (75,821) (132,158) (125,770) (620,001)
Translation adjustment 5,546 6,564 -- 6,551 18,661
At 31 March 2021 1,989,663 2,513,081 63,120 1,574,953 6,140,817
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11. Property and equipment (Continued)
2021 Office  Furniture and Motor Tools and
equipment fixtures vehicles equipment Total
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 1,960,014 2,190,200 175,365 889,106 5,214,685
Charge for the year 208,658 270,314 19,913 341,200 840,085
Relating to disposal during (255,766) (63,106) (132,158) (74,718) (525,748)
the year
Translation adjustment 4,512 5,459 - 3,173 13,144
At 31 March 2021 1,917,418 2,402,867 63,120 1,158,761 5,542,166
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 72,245 110,214 - 416,192 598,651
2020 Office  Furniture and Motor Tools and
equipment fixtures vehicles equipment Total
Cost
At 1 April 2019 2,209,722 2,510,073 195,278 1,041,616 5,956,689
Additions during the year 52,108 77,239 - 629,133 758,480
Translation adjustment (4,349) (4,974) - (3,242) (12,565)
At 31 March 2020 2,257,481 2,582,338 195,278 1,667,507 6,702,604
At 1 April 2019 1,688,242 1,836,881 131,113 628,477 4,284,713
Charge for the year 275,754 357,732 44252 263,718 941,456
Translation adjustment (3,982) (4,413) - (3,089) (11,484)
At 31 March 2020 1,960,014 2,190,200 175,365 889,106 5,214,685
Net book value
At 31 March 2020 297,467 392,138 19,913 778,401 1,487,919
The depreciation charge is allocated as follows:
2021 2020
Direct costs (Note 6) 701,721 741,980
General and administration expenses 138,364 199,476
840,085 941,456

12i Loan receivable

The loan to third party is denominated in United States Dollars (USD) is unsecured, carries interest at 3% per
annum (2020: 3% per annum) and is receivable on or before 30 September 2022. Accordingly, the loan
receivable has been disclosed as a part of non-current assets as at the reporting date.

13. Inventories
2021 2020
Spare and consumables - 1,233,840
-- 1,233,840
14. Contract balances

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities relating to contracts with customers:

2021 2020
Contract assets (see a) below) 21,831,941 75,244,955
Contract liabilities (see b) below) 10,402,551 60,739,503
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14. Contract balances (Continued)
a) Contract assels

Contract assets represents Group’s right to consideration for work performed but not invoiced at the
reporting date, which upon invoicing will be transferred to trade accounts receivable.

2021 2020
Contract revenue 404,244 170 335,625,142
Less: Progress billings (370,500,208) (255,500,447)
33,743,962 80,124,695
Less: Impairment loss on contract assets (Note 24.1 b)) (11,912,021) (4,879,740)
Contract assets (unbilled revenue) 21,831,941 75,244,955

The Group’s contract assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and is disclosed in Note 24.1
b).

b) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration from customers. Significant change in the
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 60,739,503 36,155,328
Advances from customers received during the year - 42,110,473
Amount recognised as revenue:
- relating to current year advances received (33,604,253) (11,438,970)
- relating to prior year advances received (16,732,699) (5,976,701)
Translation adjustment - (110,627)
Balance at the end of the year 10,402,551 60,739,503

The significant decrease in contract liabilities during the year is the result of completion of major portion of
construction contracts entered into by the Group in previous year.

15. Accounts and other receivables

2021 2020

Trade accounts receivable
- Third parties 86,109,743 47,762,286
- Related party 15,689,923 26,939,320
Retention receivables 24,485,728 17,711,947
Due from related parties 134,949,465 141,821,342
Advances to suppliers/contractors 1,300,117 887,163
Deposits and prepayments 1,185,978 4,965,246
Staff loans and advances 39,231 16,228
Other receivables (see c) below) 12,672,531 1,004,279
276,432,716 238,623,805
Allowance for impaired receivables (Note 24.1 (44,563,702) (34,026,048)

b))

231,869,014 207,081,763

a) The Group's trade accounts receivable, retention receivables, due from related parties, other receivables,
staff loans and advances and deposits are subject to the expected credit loss model and are disclosed in
Note 24.1 b).

b) Unimpaired receivables and amounts due from related parties are considered collectible based on historic
experience. It is not the practice of the Group to obtain collateral over receivables. The recovery of due
from related parties amounting to AED 133,699,930 (2020: AED 123,567,572) has been guaranteed by
the shareholder with no charge and are secured against the amount due to shareholder (Notes 19, 23 and
24.1b)).
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Accounts and other receivables (Continued)

c) Other receivables includes AED 12,136,624 (2020: Nil), which represents performance guarantee
encashed by a customer on termination of the contract. The Group management believes that this amount
will be recovered from the customer.

Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
Cash on hand 88,115 212,364
Bank current accounts 1,905,283 2,417,904
Margin money deposits 66,000 66,000
Bank and cash balances 2,059,398 2,696,268
Less: Margin money deposits under lien (66,000) (66,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows 1,993,398 2,630,268

Margin money deposits are under lien for the letter of guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group
(Note 25).

Share capital

2021 2020

Authorised, issued and fully paid
(300 shares of AED 1,000 each) 300,000 300,000
300,000 300,000

Legal reserve

Legal reserve is created out of net profits of the Parent Company, Branch in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
subsidiary companies, in accordance with Company Law No. 2 of 2015 of United Arab Emirates and Law
1437H of Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 10% of net income for the year is to be transferred to legal reserve.
Further, in accordance with the provisions of the said laws, the Group has resolved to discontinue such annual
transfers once the balance in the reserve account for subsidiary in United Arab Emirates is 50% and for the
branch in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is 30% of their respective share capital, which is the minimum prescribed
by the said laws. The reserve is not available for distribution except in circumstances as stipulated in the said
laws.

Amount due to shareholder

Amount due to shareholder is unsecured and interest free (Note 23). The principal amount and the related
interest is repayable only on adequacy of sufficient profits and available cash flows at the option of the Group
and has accordingly been classified as a part of shareholders’ funds. The amount due to shareholder is
subordinated against the recoverability of certain amounts due from related parties (Notes 15, 23 and 24.1b)).

Non-controlling interest

Proportion of ownership interest held by

Name of the subsidiary the Non-controlling interests

2021 2020
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Sanitation, Electrical, Cooling and
Conditioning Contracting LLC, Kuwait 5% 5%
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electro Mechanical (Bahrain)
W.L.L. 51% 51%
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Non-controlling interest (Continued)

The aforesaid entities’ summarised aggregate financial information is as follows:

31 March 2021

Sterling and Wilson
Middle East
Sanitation,
Electrical, Cooling
and Conditioning
Contracting LLC,

Sterling and
Wilson Middle East
Electro Mechanical

Kuwait (Bahrain) W.L.L. Total
Loss for the year - (79,990) (79,990)
Balance at the beginning of the year 152,653 (5,990,577) (5,837,924)
Share of loss for the year - (40,795) (40,795)
Exchange difference from translation (208) (5,422) (5,630)
Balance at the end of the year 152,445 (6,036,794) (5,884,349)
Non-controlling interest's share on
statement of financial position:

Current assets 300,579 25,180 325,759
Current liabilities (411,234) (11,862,030)  (12,273,264)
Net assets (110,655) (11,836,850) (11,947,505)

Total share of non-controlling
interest 152,445 (6,036,794) (5,884,349)
31 March 2020 Sterling and Wilson
Middle East
Sanitation, Electrical, Sterling and
Cooling and Wilson Middle
Conditioning East Electro
Contracting LLC, Mechanical
Kuwait  (Bahrain) W.L.L. Total
Loss for the year (39,303) (2,115,183) (2,154,486)
Balance at the beginning of the year 154,443 (4,926,052) (4,771,609)
Share of loss for the year (1,965) (1,078,743) (1,080,708)
Exchange difference from translation 175 14,218 14,393
Balance at the end of the year 152,653 (5,990,577) (5,837,924)
Non-controlling interest’s share on
statement of financial position:
Current assets 289,266 105,112 394,378
Current liabilities (395,755) (11,851,341) (12,247,096)
Net assets (106,489) (11,746,229) (11,852,718)
Total share of non-controlling interest 152,653 (5,990,577) (5,837,924)

Employees’ terminal benefits

The provision for end of service benefits for employees is made in accordance with the requirements of the
labour laws of the respective countries in which the Group operates. This is an unfunded defined benefits
retirement plan. Employees are entitled to benefits based on length of service and final remuneration and are
payable on termination or completion of term of employment. The cost of providing these benefits is charged

as an expense on an annual basis.
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Employees’ terminal benefits (Continued)

The movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,278,551 3,620,193
(Reversed)/ provided during the year (987,467) 3,265,045
Paid during the year (2,780,605) (681,010)
Amount recharged by a related party (Note 23) 49,504 193,763
Transfer to accrued and other payables (current liability) - (99,176)
Translation adjustment 21,874 (20,254)
Balance at the end of the year 2,581,857 6,278,551

Certain employees of the Group’s Parent Company are under the visas of its related parties. However, the
employees’ terminal benefits are accounted and reported in the books of the Group.

Accounts and other payables

2021 2020

Trade accounts payable 33,390,792 36,309,493
Due to related parties 11,686,385 13,972,206
Due to shareholder (see a) below) 68,255,542 15,175,677
Third party loan (see b) below) 4,387,822 4,260,021
Accrued expenses and other payables 12,704,345 17,033,651
130,424,886 86,751,048

a) Based on an agreement between the Parent Company which operates a Branch in Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and a shareholder, the shareholder has agreed to absorb the losses for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2021 of the Branch. Accordingly, accumulated losses for the years ended 31 March
2021 amounting to AED 20,370,177 and 31 March 2020 amounting to AED 51,102,345 (including losses
for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounting to AED 9,983,329) have been set off against the balance
due to shareholder (Note 23).

b) Third party loan is unsecured, denominated in United States Dollars (USD) and carries interest at 3%
(2020: 3%) per annum. The loan is repayable within 12 months from the reporting date.

Related party transactions

The Group has entered into both funding and other transactions with related parties during the year. Related
parties represent shareholders and key management personnel of the Group and entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Prices and terms of these largely funding transactions
were approved by the management. The significant related party transactions during the year are as follows:

Relationship 2021 2020
Revenue from contracts with customers from
continuing operations (Note 5) Other related parties 407,216 254,349
Interest income — related parties (Note 7) Other related parties 8,832,064 11,006,601
Rental income (Note 7) Other related parties 75,000 135,000
Recharge of medical insurance (included in
salaries and employee related costs) Other related parties -- 105,494
Personnel cost (under salaries and employee
related cost) Other related party 1,130,501 2,699,121
Employee terminal benefits recharged by a
related party (Note 21) Other related parties 49,504 193,753
Bank charges Other related parties 15,756 -
Expenses paid on behalf of Group Other related parties 543,406 712,904

Intermediate Parent

Expenses incurred on behalf of Group Company 74,920,721 21,400,428

The amounts due from/to related parties do not attract interest and are receivable/payable on demand, except
for amounts due from related parties of AED 127,220,512 (2020: AED 143,341,292) which carry interest at the
rate of 7.5% per annum (2020: 7 to 7.5% to 8% per annum).
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Related party transactions (Continued)

During the year, a shareholder has absorbed the losses amounting to AED 20,370,177 (2020: AED
51,102,345) of the Branch of the Parent Company (Note 22 a)).

Amount due to shareholder of AED 157,152,732 (2020: AED 177,069,518) is interest free at the reporting date
(Note 19).

The recovery of due from related parties amounting to AED 133,699,930 (2020: AED 123,567,572) has been
guaranteed by the shareholder with no charge and are secured against the amount due to shareholder (Notes
15, 19 and 24.1 b)).

Financial risk and capital management
Financial risk factors

The Group's financial instruments consist mainly of retention receivables, loan receivable, contract assets,
accounts and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank and cash balances, accounts and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and income tax payable. The management believes that the
fair values of the financial assets and liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group's financial risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects of the financial performance. Under the Group’s risk management
programme, management identifies and documents key risks and sets out policies and procedures required to
mitigate these risks. No changes were made in the risk management objectives and policies during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. The identified key risks are:

a) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed o foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures such as USD, Saudi Riyal (SAR), Bahraini Dinar (BHD) and Kuwaiti Dinar (KD). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. The exchange differences are reported as part of the result for the year.

The Group manages its currency risk by regularly assessing current and expected foreign currency
exchange rate movements. Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to
exchange rate fluctuations and consequently the Group does not hedge foreign currency exposures.

The table below indicates the Group's foreign currency exposure, as a result of its monetary assets and

liabilities:
2021 2020
AED AED
Financial assets- SAR 103,299,283 63,951,999
Financial liabilities- SAR (214,280,262) (148,858,433)
Net exposure (110,980,979) (84,906,434)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the following foreign
currency, with all other variables held constant.

2021 2020
Effect on loss Effect on loss
(+/-) (+F)
Change in currency rate by 5% (+/-)
Currency
SAR (5,549,049) (4,245,322)
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241 Financial risk factors (Continued)
b) Credit risk

The Group is potentially exposed to concentration of credit risk from its financial assets which comprise
principally bank balances, retention receivables, contract assets, loan receivable, trade and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties.

Bank balances
Credit risk from banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Group’s policy. The
Group'’s bank accounts are placed only with high credit quality financial institutions.

Trade accounts receivables, retention receivables, due from related parties, loan receivable and contract
assets

The credit risk on trade accounts receivables, retention receivables, due from related parties, loan
receivable and contract assets is subjected to credit evaluations. The Group assesses the credit quality of
the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual credit
limits are defined and are set based on internal and external ratings in accordance with the Group's
policies. Outstanding customer receivables, contract assets, loan receivable and amounts due from
related parties are regularly monitored and an allowance has been made for expected credit losses. The
amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances for expected
credit losses.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration of credit risk. At the reporting date, 79% of the trade
accounts receivable are due from 5 customers (2020: 98% from 5 customers). At the reporting date, 99%
of the amounts due from related parties are due from 2 parties (2020: 95% from 3 parties). At the
reporting date, 37% of the retention receivable is due from a single party (2020: 39% is due from single

party).

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:
a) Trade accounts receivables, retention receivables and contract assets

b) Due from related parties

c) Cash and cash equivalents

d) Other financial assets at amortised cost

The impairment losses on financial assets recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income were as follows:

2021 2020
Impairment loss on trade accounts receivables (net) 10,407,814 21,766,849
Impairment loss on contract assets 6,999,388 4,879,740
Impairment loss on financial assets 17,407,202 26,646,589

Trade accounts receivable. retention receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses for all trade accounts
receivable and contract assets (see Note 4.4 f)). At the reporting date, the expected credit losses on
retention receivable is considered immaterial.

For trade accounts receivable from third parties and related parties and contract assets, an impairment is
made, depending on the expected recovery of the contractual cash flows. In addition, trade accounts
receivable and contract assets more than one year past due are assessed for impairment individually.
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Financial risk factors (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

c

-~

Trade accounts receivable, retention receivables and contract assets (Continued)

2021 2020

Trade accounts Trade accounts
receivable and Of which receivable and Of which
contract assets impaired  contract assets impaired
0-3 months past due 7,590,081 7,635,321 91,496,666 4,879,740
3-6 months past due 21,130 - 2,327,830 -
6 months to 1 year past due 47,145,978 6,088,548 3,505,017 --
More than 1 year past due 80,786,440 42,851,854 55,012,782 34,026,048
135,543,628 56,475,723 152,342,295 38,905,788

Reconciliation of the closing loss allowances for trade accounts receivable and contract assets at 31 March
2021 to the opening loss allowances are as follows:

Trade accounts receivables and
contract assets

2021 2020
1 April 38,905,788 12,385,363
Allowance during the year 26,867,052 26,646,589
Amounts written back during the year (9,459,850) -
Translation adjustment 162,733 (126,164)
At 31 March 56,475,723 38,905,788

Trade accounts receivable, retention receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
failure to agree in a repayment plan with the Group and a failure to make contractual payments.
Impairment loses on trade accounts receivable, retention receivables and contract assets are presented as
net impairment losses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same account.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include due from related parties, other receivables, loan receivable
and deposits and advances. The recovery of due from related parties amounting to AED 133,699,930
(2020: AED 123,567,572) has been guaranteed by the shareholder with no charge and are secured
against the amount due to shareholder (Notes 15, 19 and 23). The identified impairment loss on other
financial assets is considered immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to impairment, the identified impairment loss is
considered immaterial.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring it has sufficient liquid cash balances to meet its payment
obligations as they fall due.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities at 31 March,
based on contractual payment dates:

2021 On demand 0to 3 months 3 to 12 months Total
Accounts and other payables 13,242,780 27,250,201 89,931,905 130,424,886
Total 13,242,780 27,250,201 89,931,905 130,424,886
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Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2020 On demand 0to 3 months 3 to 12 months Total
Accounts and other payables 29,147,883 17,033,651 40,569,514 86,751,048
Total 29,147,883 17,033,651 40,569,514 86,751,048

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital funds in accordance with the planned level of operations and in
proportion to the levels of risk. The Group manages the shareholders’ funds and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the shareholders’ funds, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholders, return funds to the shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce its exposure to debt.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020. Capital comprises share capital, legal reserve, amount due to shareholder, foreign currency
translation reserve and accumulated losses, and is measured at AED 139,474,015 as at 31 March 2021 (2020:

AED 158,962,097).

Contingent liabilities

2021 2020
Bank guarantees 66,000 66,000
66,000 66,000

Bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group are secured by margin money deposits (Note 16).
Subsequent event

Pursuant to an agreement signed with the Intermediate Parent Company (Sterling and Wilson International
FZE) on 1 April 2021, Parent Company has acquired assets, liabilities and accumulated losses as of 1 April
2021 amounting to AED 269,712,176, AED 793,942,230 and AED 544,870,011 respectively from the
Intermediate Parent Company. The aforesaid agreement was ratified by resolutions passed by the Board of
the Parent Company and Intermediate Parent Company.

Further, pursuant to a business transfer cum acquisition agreement entered into between Oman Shapoorji
Company LLC (*OSCOQ"), a related party and the Parent Company on 1 April 2021, the Parent Company has
transferred its mechanical, electrical and plumbing (MEP) business along with assets, liabilities and
accumulated losses as of 1 April 2021 (relating to MEP business) amounting to AED 298,539,933, AED
868,219,492 and AED 569,679,560 respectively to OSCO. The aforesaid agreement was ratified by
resolutions passed by the Board of the Intermediate Parent Company and the Parent Company.

Comparative figures

Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year.
Impact of Covid-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as a
global pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency
measures, that include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed guarantine periods, self-isolation,

physical and social distancing and the closure of non-essential businesses, which have caused only marginal
disruption to the Group’s operations.
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Impact of Covid-19 (Continued)

The situation including government and public response to the challenges continue to progress and rapidly
evolve. Therefore, the extent and duration of the impact of these conditions remain uncertain and depend on
future developments that cannot be accurately predicted at this stage. Notwithstanding, these developments
are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's future financial results, cash flows and financial
position, and the management will continue to monitor and adopt the required mitigating actions during the

next financial period.

235



STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC

PROVISIONAL STATEMENT OF INCOME
31 MARCH 2022

ANNEXURE G

Mar-22 Mar-21
AED AED
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers (10,634,365) 71,422,461
Direct costs (5,344,549) (80,230,822)
Gross (loss)/profit (15,978,914) (8,808,361)
Other income 265,356,174 10,040,937
249,377,260 1,232,576
Expenses
General and administration 5,719,838 3,069,296
Finance charges 38,119,050 201,654
Depreciation 429,357 138,364
Provisions/ Impairment of financial assets 33,248,162 17,366,407
77,516,407 20,775,721
Profit for the year before tax
from continuing operations 171,860,853 (19,543,145)
Provision for tax = >
Profit /(Loss) for the year from continuing operations 171,860,853 (19,543,145)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 171,860,853 (19,543,145)
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property and equipment 171,801 598,651
Loan receivable - 20,639,956
171,801 21,238,607
Current assets
Contract assets 8,087,360 21,831,941
Accounts and other receivables 220,535,013 231,869,014
Bank and cash balances 1,730,008 2,059,398
230,352,381 255,760,353
Total assets 230,524,182 276,998,960
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 300,000 300,000
Legal reserve 547,636 547,636
Foreign currency translation reserve (88,986) (88,986)
Accumulated losses (638,529,722) (18,437,367)
- Beginning balance (18,437,367) (19,214,895)

- Acquisition Reserve

(791,953,208)

-Transfer of Loss 20,320,673
- Profit or loss 171,860,853 (19,543,145)
Shareholder Current Account 823,337,513 157,152,732
Total shareholders' funds attributable to
shareholder of the Parent Company 185,566,441 139,474,015
Non-controlling interest (5,884,349) (5,884,349)
179,682,092 133,589,666
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employees' terminal benefits 1,772,969 2,581,857
1,772,969 2,581,857
Current liabilities & Provision
Contract liabilities 11,232,080 10,402,551
Due to related party 10,677,873 79,941,927
Provisions and Accounts and other payables 27,159,168 50,482,959
49,069,121 140,827,437
50,842,090 143,409,294
Total shareholder's fund and liabilities 230,524,182 276,998,960
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AED AED
DIRECT COSTS
Salaries and employee related costs (COS) 1,956,195 21,278,757
Material purchases 401,494 29,878,119
Subcontract costs 2,019,447 24,129,781
Depreciation (COS) - 701,721
Others (COS) 967,415 4,242,444
5,344,551 80,230,822
OTHER INCOME
Interest income - related parties 9,541,538 8,832,064
Interest income on loan receivable - 596,091
Unrepresented liabilities written back 917,820 2,500
Net gain on foreign currency exchange 23,340,959 -
Rental income - 75,000
Others (Income) 231,555,858 535,282
265,356,175 10,040,937
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Salaries and employee related costs 4,250,539 804,870
Legal and professional fees 225,785 610,127
Short-term lease 292,298 732,547
Travelling and conveyance 70,563 3,290
Communication 85,675 96,573
Utilities - 35,878
Vehicle expenses 4,338 3,020
Printing and stationery - 716
Insurance 164,319 4,859
Others (G&A) 626,319 777,416
5,719,836 3,069,296
FINANCE CHARGES
Bank charges 51,356 73,853
Interest on third party loan - 127,801
Interest expense - shareholder 38,067,694 -
38,119,050 201,654
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ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Mar-22 Mar-21
AED AED

Trade accounts receivable - third parties 62,845,556 86,109,743
Trade accounts receivable - related parties 14,581,292 15,689,923
Retention receivables 23,834,687 24,485,728
Due from related parties 175,838,479 134,949,465
Advances to suppliers/contractors - 1,300,117
Deposits and prepayments 13,293,867 1,185,978
Staff loans and advances 3,848 39,231
Other receivables 1,174,255 12,672,531
291,571,984 276,432,716
Allowance for impaired receivables (71,036,971) (44,563,702)
220,535,013 231,869,014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 408,715 88,115
Bank current accounts 1,255,293 1,905,283
Margin money deposits 66,000 66,000
Bank and cash balances 1,730,008 2,059,398
EMPLOYEES TERMINAL BENEFITS
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,523,688 6,278,551
Provided during the year 93,281 (987,467)
Paid during the year (844,000) (2,780,605)
Amount recharged by a related party - 49,504
Transfer to accrued and other payables (current liability) - -
Translation adjustment - 21,874
1,772,969 2,581,857
PROVISIONS AND ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade accounts payable 15,327,705 33,390,792
Third party loan - 4,387,822
Provisions 5,800,000 -
Accrued expenses and other payables 6,031,467 12,704,345
27,159,172 50,482,959




ANNEXURE H
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KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY LLP

CHARTERETD ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Certificate

The Board of Directors,

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited,
9" Floor, Universal Majestic,

P.LL Lokhande Marg,

Chembur West Mumbai —400043.

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated July 01,
2022.

2. We, Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditors of the Company
have been requested by the Company’s Management to provide a certificate that the accounting
treatment proposed for the reduction of share capital, reorganisation of reserves in the books of
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited and with respect to the merger of Sterling and Wilson Middle
East Electromechanical LLP (“SW ME” or “Transferor Company”) with and into Sterling and
Wilson Private Limited (“Iransferee Company” or “the Company”) and their respective
shareholders (“Scheme” or “this Scheme”) in the Scheme of Arrangement of the Transferor
Company with the Company (‘Scheme of Arrangement’), proposed to be filed by the Company
in this regard with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’), is in
conformity with Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013(“Act”), read with rules thereof, and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

We have examined Clauses 4.1 to 4.5 of Part Il and Clause 12 of Part III of the Proposed Scheme
of Arrangement (furnished hereto in ‘Annexure 1°, attached herewith and initialled by us for
identification) with regards to the proposed accounting treatment for the reduction of share capital,
reorganisation of reserves in the books of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited and with respect to
the merger of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLP (“SW ME” or “Transferor
Company”) with and into Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“Transferee Company” or “the
Company”) and their respective shareholders (“Scheme” or “this Scheme”) under Section 66 of
the Act, Section 234 read with Section 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of
the Act and the rules made thereunder, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company at its meeting held on June 06, 2022.

(98]

Management’s Responsibility

4. The Management of the Company is responsible for ensuring that the proposed accounting
treatment pursuant to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement is in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rules thereof, other
generally accepted accounting principles in India, Act and rules made thereunder, including the
preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records and
documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

LLP IN AAH - 3437
REGISTERED OFFICE ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG, FORT, MUMBAI 400 o001
TEL (91) (22) 6158 6200, 6158 7200 FAX : (91) (22) 6158 6275
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The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with all other
requirements to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement and the application proposed to be filed by
the Company in this regard with the NCLT.

The responsibility for giving effect to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement and the accounting
treatment in the books of the Transferee Company is that of the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, our responsibility is only to examine and report whether
the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee Company referred to Clause 12
under Part III and Clauses 4.1 to 4.5 under Part II of the Scheme referred to above comply with
the applicable Indian Accounting Standards as specified under section 133 of the Act and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection
with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may have
in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates
for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

. We have complied with relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control 1,

Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and Other Assurance and Related Service Engagements.

Opinion

1l

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme has to provide for an Appointed Date from which
the Scheme shall be deemed to be effective. The Company has accordingly proposed the closing
hours of 31% day of March 2022 as per the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement as the Appointed
Date. However, the Effective date as per the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement is the last of the
date on which the conditions specified in Clause 19 of the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement are
complied with, which may be different from Appointed Date.

Based on our aforesaid examination and read with our comment above and according to the
information and explanations and representations given to us by the Company's management, we
are of the opinion that the resultant accounting treatment with regards to Clauses 4.1 to 4.5 of Part
II and Clause 12 of Part III of the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement, for the reduction of share
capital, reorganisation of reserves of the Company and merger of Sterling and Wilson Middle East
Electromechanical LLP (“SW ME” or “Transferor Company”) with and into Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited (“Transferece Company” or “the Company”) in the books of the Transferee
Company, if approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, will be in compliance with the
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applicable Ind AS, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, other generally
accepted accounting principles, Act and rules made thereunder.

12. For ease of reference, the Clauses 4.1 to 4.5 of Part II and Clause 12 of Part III of the Proposed
Scheme of Arrangement, duly authenticated on behalf of the Company, is attached as an
Annexure to this certificate, and is initialled by us only for the purposes of identification.

Restriction on use

13. This certificate has been issued for the sole use of the Board of Directors, to whom it is addressed,
for onward submission by the Company to the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench.
This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or responsibility or any duty of care for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may

come without our prior consent in writing.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
irm Reg. No.: 104607W/ W100166

shed K. Udwadia
RTNER

M. No.: 124658
UDIN: 22124658 AMLYIG9189
Mumbai, July 08, 2022
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4.1

4.2

4.4

4.5

Annexure I:
Extract of Part II of Draft Scheme of Arrangement

REORGANISATION OF RESERVES AND REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

EXTRACT OF REORGANISATON OF RESERVES AND REDUCTION OF SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,80,25,000 number of CCPS (having face value of INR
1,000 each) of the Transferee Company shall stand extinguished and cancelled through capital
reduction proportionate to percentage of such CCPS held by the holders of the CCPS as on the
Effective Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68 per equity sharc (as determined on a fully
diluted basis), as determined vide Valuation Report dated 2 June, 2022, issued by an
Independent Registered Valuer, bearing registration number IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106,
amounting to a total payout of INR 87,71,68,000.

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,46,84,667 number of Equity Shares (having face value
of INR 10 cach) of the Transferee Company (50% of the Equity Shares of the Company as on
28 February 2022) shall stand extinguished and cancelled through capital reduction
proportionate to percentage of such Equity Shares held by the holders of the Equity Shares as
on the Effective Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68 per equity share, as determined vide
Valuation Report dated 2 June, 2022, issued by an Independent Registered Valuer, bearing,
registration  number  IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106, amounting to a total payout
of INR 17,15,16,905.

With ceffect from the Appointed Date, the difference between the aggregate of face value of
CCPS and Equity Shares so extinguished and cancelled through capital reduction as per Clause
4.2 and 4.3 above, on the one hand, and the amount of consideration payable on such
extinguishment and cancellation, shall stand transferred to and be recorded as credit to the
Capital Reduction Reserve.

With effect from the Appointed Date, such Capital Reduction Reserve shall be utilised for set-
off of the debit balance in the Profit & Loss Account of the Transferee Company.

The extinguishment and cancellation of CCPS and Equity Shares in the manner stated above
shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and the order of the NCLT sanctioning this
Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under section 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Act and no separate sanction under section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act will
be necessary.

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Associates of: Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited

Registered Office: Universal Majestic, 9th Floor, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (W), Mumbai — 400 043

Phone: (91-22) 25485300 | Fax: (91-22) 25485331 | CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538
Email: mumbai@sterlingwilson.com | www.sterlingandwilson.com
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Extract of Part I11 of Draft Scheme of Arrangement

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH AND INTO THE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY

12, ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

121 Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferce Company shall be accounted
in the books of the Transferee Company for by way of as per “Pooling of Interests Mcthod”
under Appendix C of Ind-AS 103 (Accounting for Business Combinations under common
control) notified under Section 133 of the Act and under any other relevant Indian Accounting
Standard prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as may
be amended from time to time.

122 All the assets and liabilities of Transferor Company shall be recorded in the financial
statements of the Transferee Company at the carrying value as appearing in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date after giving cffect te Part 11
of this Scheme.

12.3 The identity of the reserves pertaining to the Transferor Companies, shall be preserved and
shall appear in the merged financial statements of Transferce Company in the same form in
which they appeared in the financial statements of the Transferor Company and it shall be
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of Transferee
Company, as on the Appointed Date after giving effect to Part 11 of this Scheme.

12.4 The investments in shares of the Transferor Company, as appearing, inter alia, in the books
of the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled.

12.5 To the extent that there are inter-company loans, deposits, obligations, balances or other
outstanding including any interest thereon, as between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company as the case may be, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an
end and there shall be no liability in that behalf and corresponding effect shall be given in the
books of account and records of the Transferee Company for the reduction of such assets or
liabilities as the case may be.

12.6 The surplus / deficit of the value of the assets over the value of liabilitics and reserves of the
Transferor Company, pursuant to Amalgamation of Transferor Company with and into the
Transferee Company, and as recorded in the books of account of the Transferee Company
shall, after adjusting for cancellation of inter-company investments in Clause 12.4 and other
adjustments as above in Clause 12.5, be recorded as “Capital Reduction Reserve” in the books
of the Transferee Company. ’

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Associates of: Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited
Registered Office: Universal Majestic, 9th Floor, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (W), Mumbai — 400 043
Phone: (91-22) 25485300 | Fax: (91-22) 25485331 | CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538
Email: mumbai@sterlingwilson.com | www.sterlingandwilson.com
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12.7

Mr/Parmesfowar Hegde

CHief Financial Officer )
Date: 07.07.2022

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company shall
prevail to ensure that the financial statements reflect the financial position based on consistent
accounting policies and the difference till the Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted
in the Capital Reduction Reserve mentioned earlier to ensure that the financial statements of
the Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting

policy.

Comparative financial information in the financial statements of the Transferece Company
shall be restated for the accounting impact of merger, as stated above, as if the merger had
occurred from the beginning of the comparative period.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein above, the Board of Directors of
the Transteree Company, in consultation with its statutory auditors to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with the applical..e
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and gencerally

/&%////

—

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Associates of: Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited

Registered Office: Universal Majestic, 9th Floor, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (W), Mumbai — 400 043

Phone: (91-22) 25485300 | Fax: (91-22) 25485331 | CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538
Email: mumbai@sterlingwilson.com | www.sterlingandwilson.com
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH -V
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. C.A. (CAA) 224/MB/2022

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
AND

In the matter of Section 234 read with Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation)
Rules, 2016 and Rule 11 and other applicable rules of the NCLT Rules, 2016

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC (‘SW ME’ or ‘the
Transferor Company’) WITH Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (‘SWPL’ or ‘the Transferee Company’) and their
respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme’ or ‘this Scheme’)

STERLING AND WILSON MIDDLE EAST ELECTROMECHANICAL LLC
...the Non-Applicant Company / Transferor Company
STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

...the Applicant Company / Transferee Company
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
9t Floor, Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg,
Chembur (West), Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra
CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538

[

... Applicant Company / Transferee Company
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PROXY FORM FOR MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS

I/ We (*) the undersigned Unsecured Creditors of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (CIN U31200MH1974PTC017538)
do hereby
nominate and appoint

1. Name:

Address:

Email ID:

Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:

Address:

Email ID:

Signature: , or failing him/her

3. Name:

Address:

Email ID:

Signature: , or failing him/her

as my/our PROXY to act for me/us at the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited to
be held on Thursday, 16" February 2023 at 2:30 P.M. at the registered office of the Applicant / Transferor Company at
Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West), Mumbai 400043, Maharashtra, for the purpose of considering
and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of Arrangement of Sterling and Wilson
Middle East Electromechanical LLC with Sterling and Wilson Private Limited and at such meeting or any adjournment
thereof to vote for me/us and in my/our name [here, ‘if for’, insert ‘for’; ‘if against’, insert ‘against’ and in
the latter case, strike out the words below after ‘Scheme of Arrangement’] the said Scheme of Arrangement either with or
without modification as my/our proxy may approve.

Name of Unsecured Creditor:

Address:

Email Id:

Signed this ............. dayof .oooiiii, 2023

Signature of UNSeCUred Creditor .........ccouuiiii e e et e e e nanas Affix
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(S)........ooiu e Stamp

NOTES:

1. Please affix appropriate Revenue Stamp before putting Signature

2. The proxy duly stamped, signed and completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting

3. Aproxy need not be an Unsecured Creditor of the Company

4. Alterations, if any made in the form of proxy must be initialled by the Unsecured Creditor

5. In case of multiple proxies, the Proxy later in the time shall be accepted.
(*) Strike out whichever not applicable.
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STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U31200MH1974PTC017538
Registered Office: 9" Floor, Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur (West),
Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Venue)

Name of Unsecured Creditor
Address of Unsecured Creditor

Name of Authorised Representative/ Proxyholder,
attending if any*

| hereby record my presence at the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited, convened
pursuant to order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, on Thursday, 16" February 2023 at 2:30
P.M. IST at the registered office of the Applicant / Transferor Company, Universal Majestic, P. L. Lokhande Marg, Chembur
(West), Mumbai — 400043, Maharashtra

Signature of the Unsecured Creditor/Authorised Representative/Proxyholder*
* Strike out whichever is not applicable
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